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In 2017, the global economy was recovering. Looking at the two
key markets in which C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) operate, China’s gross
domestic product growth rose to 6.9% in 2017 from 6.7% in 2016 and
Vietnam’s gross domestic product growth rose to 6.8% in 2017 from
6.2% in 2016. During the year, China implemented a series of new
economic policy measures on supply-side reform, economic structure
optimisation, and transformation and upgrading of the economic
development model. In Vietnam, gross domestic product growth was
driven by solid growth in the industrial, construction and service
sectors. The agricultural sector, however, was relatively sluggish due

to natural disasters and agricultural price fluctuations during the year.

The Chinese government implemented an array of regulations in
the agri-food industry to raise the standards of agricultural resource
conservation and utilisation, as well as promote green production and
strengthen regulatory control. Also, in order to heighten supervision,
the government accelerated legislation for food quality and safety
on feed, farm and food processing industries. The implementation of
comprehensive industry regulations sped up industrial upgrade and
weeded out weaker players. As the economy develops and income
growth accelerates, food consumption is becoming increasingly
sophisticated and consumers are increasingly concerned with food
safety, quality, healthiness and convenience. The demand for safe
and high-quality food products is set to increase. As the market
environment in China is being overhauled, the Group’s strengths in
maintaining stringent standards on product safety, quality and overall
service are conducive to improving sustainability of the feed business
and increasing its sales volume, market share and profitability.
Furthermore, the industry transformation is also beneficial to the

development of the Group’s integrated production value chain.

In Vietnam, in view of plunging swine prices, the government
encouraged the industry to work together as a whole, improve animal
farming plans, adopt advanced technologies and enhance production
efficiency. The Vietnamese government’s 2017-2020 Agricultural
Restructuring Plan underscores the importance of environmental
protection and food safety. To adhere with the plan, the industry is
encouraged to adopt measures on disease inspection, prevention and
control, as well as improve slaughtering practices and examine closely
the use of veterinary drugs and feed additives. The changes in the
Vietnam market enable the Group to draw on its core competencies

and sharpen its competitive edge to achieve sustained growth.
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As market competition intensifies and the Chinese and Vietnamese
governments introduce stricter food safety and eco-friendly
requirements, the Group pushes to build a farm-to-table operation
spanning the entire agri-food value chain, and embraces advanced
technologies including automation, digitalisation and smart initiatives
to increase production efficiency and product differentiation. These
strategies have helped boost our core competencies and consolidate
our market position. Leveraging our expertise and modern production
capabilities, the Group is committed to upholding food safety and
quality assurance and abiding by national regulations to deliver
excellent quality. We continue to upgrade our operational process —
from raw materials procurement to production, logistics and sales — to
ensure product safety and traceability. We build our corporate image
of producing reliable, safe and quality products by adhering to our
stringent food safety and quality assurance standards. The Group is
committed to eco-friendly operation and green production to enhance
our social image, consolidate our core competitiveness, and elevate
our production efficiency and competitiveness to achieve sustainable

development.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to be guided by our “Three-
Benefit Principle” — benefit the countries in which we operate,
the people whose community we share, and the companies for
which we are responsible — and elevate our production model in
the direction of Industry 4.0. At the same time, we will increase
focus on environmental and resource protection, deliver on
social responsibility and maintain transparent information flows.
Capitalising on our solid corporate governance and sustainable
operating capabilities, the Group endeavours to ensure food safety
from farm to table. We aspire to be a leader of the agri-food industry
dedicated to delivering high-quality and delicious food products for

consumers.

Finally, I would like to express my heartfelt thanks to all members of
our team for their efforts and contributions to the Group in the past
year. My gratitude also goes to our shareholders and stakeholders for
their unwavering trust and support over the years.

Dhanin Chearavanont
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 February 2018
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With state-of-the-art equipment from
around the world, our highly automated
food processing factories in China
are capable of producing a range of
convenient food products. This year we
are showcasing our

deep-fried product line.
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At the beginning of the

process, meat, along with
other raw materials, are
dispensed into different
moulds. S
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A N E MR
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Afterwards, batter is evenly
distributed on to the products.
& HEEmMmEHIEE-

Excess batter is removed
for dry coating and a layer
of golden crumbs are
applied before frying.
BREZHEOREMEK - B
BEF—EzmEEN
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Deep frying is followed by hot-air

grilling, producing batches of
beautifully fried and
uniformly cooked products.
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They are then being frozen in less
than an hour in advanced individual

quick freeze equipment and are then

portioned into packets.
NIERFTEN B RREAN - LD —
NNEFR SR TEACGRR - ZIRBIERE -

pim
——

e




Out of the package, golden
and crispy finger foods are
ready to be consumed in merely
minutes of reheating
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Financial Highlights
MBS E
(Unit: US$ million) (HApr: F#FET) 2017 2016
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income Items FE2AKHEREH
Revenue A 5,638 5,281
Gross Profit EcY 1| 610 933
Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company A2 R JBE R A 16 A 42 260
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (US cents)* A I A T R ) (SEAI) * 0.165 1.027
Total Dividend Per Share (HK cents) BB E (HA) 0.7 4.0
Interim Dividend Per Share (HK cents) AF B R 3 s B (AL - 2.4
Final Dividend Per Share (HK cents) B B Rk B (L) 0.7 1.6
Key Statement of Financial Position Items FEMHERNELEE
Property, Plant & Equipment Wk~ MG Rt 1,755 1,399
Total Assets B 4,233 3,633
Total Bank Borrowings & Corporate Bond HSRITE R R A EE SR 1,687 1,424
Issued Capital CLEEAT R AR 253 253
Shareholders’ Equity T TR A W 2% 1,238 1,124
Total Equity WE 25 40 % 1,515 1,419
Revenue US$ million Gross Profit US$ million
WA BEBET A ABET
6,000 - 5,638 1,000 ~
800 -
4,000 A 610
600 -
400 -
2,000 A
200 -
0 0
2016 2017 2016 2017
Profit Attributable US$ million Dividend HK cents
to Shareholders B EZXTT Per Share 3l
of the Company 35, _ BRRE 40 -
$”D\ﬁﬁ?‘:$
EfER 30 -
200 -
2.0 A
100 A
42 1.0 + 0.7
2016 2017 0 2016 2017

Remarks #§ & :

*

convertible preference shares in issue during the year

A 2 TR AR > T ACAE P9 T B AT T8 B T T 40 A 4B e e 2 T 3 A

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GROUP RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s revenue increased
6.8% to US$5,638 million (2016: US$5,281 million). Agri-food
business in China contributed 65.5% of the Group’s revenue while
agri-food business in Vietnam contributed 34.5% of the Group’s
revenue. Overall gross profit margin for the year was 10.8% (2016:
17.7%). The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders was US$42
million (2016: US$260 million).

Basic and diluted earnings per share were both US 0.165 cents (2016:
US 1.027 cents). The board has proposed a final dividend per share
(“DPS”) of HK$0.007, and total DPS in 2017 was HK$0.007 (2016:
HK$0.040).

LN

5,638

US$ million
E-E

BUSINESS REVIEW

Agri-food Business in China

The overall economy in China showed a mild improvement in 2017.
According to the National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC, the
country’s gross domestic product growth was 6.9% in 2017 (2016:
6.7%). As a first step towards building an ecologically more civilized
society, China has tightened environmental and other requirements in
the agri-food industry. Larger commercial players with more expertise
and resources embraced the changes, while smaller players grappled

with the stricter requirements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

In 2017, revenue of the Group’s agri-food business in China grew by
21.6% to US$3,691 million. Feed business accounted for 87.9% of
agri-food business revenue in China while farm and food businesses
combined contributed the remaining 12.1%.

A

R LE > PREBREHEBERA LF21.6%
F36.91f%3ET0 o IR EF WA b B R S
WEAB7.9% > Thi £ 58 e & M EB LGB T I12.1%

China - Revenue

B - WA

0 1,000 2,000

With a focus on the commercial segment and, in particular, large-
scale farms, the Group’s China feed sales volume increased 13.8%
to 6.91 million tons and feed revenue rose 11.9% to US$3,244
million. As raw materials prices started to stabilise, gross profit
margin moderated to a more sustainable level. Gross profit margin for
the Group’s China agri-food business was at 15.5% in 2017 (2016:
17.8%).

Swine feed continued to be the largest component in the Group’s
China feed business segment, accounting for 52.9% of this segment’s
revenue in 2017. Poultry feed, aqua feed, other feed products and
premix contributed 27.7%, 9.0%, 5.4% and 5.0%, respectively. The
Group’s swine feed sales volume in 2017 expanded by 21.1% to 3.64
million tons, mainly due to strategic marketing of our feed products
for the entire life cycle of the pig. Swine feed revenue rose 18.1% to
US$1,717 million. Poultry feed sales volume grew by 8.1% to 2.30
million tons and revenue increased by 6.2% to US$898 million.
Volume increment was mainly contributed by the integrated broiler
businesses which we acquired in mid-to-late 2016. Sales volume
of aqua feed increased by 18.5% to 0.45 million tons and revenue
increased by 18.1% to US$293 million. This result was primarily
because of increased marketing efforts on aqua feed.

Combined farm and food revenue in China was US$447 million
compared to US$136 million in 2016. Sales from high-value-added
processed food products continued to increase and packaged meat
sales from newly acquired integrated broiler businesses as mentioned
above also contributed significantly to the increase in the revenue of
this segment.

US$ million

3,000 4,000 HEET

AREEHFEERES TS R RHSEEEY - P
15 7 G B B N 13.8% 691 #5 W » WK AR IR4E S R
11.9%Z32.44f8 3 50 o BE 25 A BHE A% i i 12 e »
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WAy M ER - EERAN29% - K&
AR ~ ARk T K R A BB 4 B0 AG 27.7% -
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2 R REE > WA R EFFH18.1%E 171748
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ZEANFPEBBUBZ AR EEEEL > WA
INBEM6.2%Z8.98f 3t o /KSR BRI R 18.5%
ZHA5EME > WA ETF18.1%%2.93f8 3570 » ZEHM
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEBNRR DN

-

Aqua Feed
7K 2 BB

N
9.0% —'

Breakdown of China

Feed Revenue

o B8] &R R U A B A

Agri-food Business in Vietham

In 2017, according to the General Statistics Office of Vietnam,
Vietnam registered a gross domestic product growth of 6.8% in
2017 (2016: 6.2%). Growth in non-agricultural sectors was solid but
agricultural sector growth was adversely affected by natural disasters
and fluctuation in agricultural prices. In particular, oversupply
leading to plunging prices in the swine sector heavily impacted the
agricultural sector.

The Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam generated revenue of
US$1,947 million, declining 13.3% year-on-year. Feed business
accounted for 42.0% of the Group’s Vietnam revenue, while farm and
food businesses combined accounted for the remaining 58.0%. Overall
gross profit margin of the Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam
was 1.9% in 2017 (2016: 17.4%) due to a rapid fall in swine prices
dampening our farming business.

5 40 / Other Feed Products
T /0 AR

.
— 52.9% i

HERRERER

982 L A AR R > R LA B A
BENR6.8% (ZF — A4 1 6.2%) o M IERMAT
EWRIRE > (A ARIKH SR i (M D B 3 R AK
A7 SR U 2R ST R 2 - SR A i S A B O R
BUEAS T > BREEE T RMATE -

AEEBERRERERRARETRIZ3NE
1947453570 » H b B 2B A AR B R W A 1
42.0% > T #2258 S £ b 2L 0 LA % T 1958.0% o HIR
AR ST R T R SR > A
B EREN BB RR R —LHER1.9% (2
BN 1 17.4%)

Vietnam - Revenue

MR- WA

Farm and Food
BEEME MR

US$ million

0 500
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

Feed

Similar to the situation in China, average feed selling prices in 2017
were steady compared to 2016 as raw materials prices stabilised.
However, falling swine prices resulted in reduced demand for swine
feed, which contributed to lower overall feed sales versus 2016. In
2017, total feed sales volume dropped by 7.0% to 1.80 million tons in
Vietnam. Revenue of the Group’s feed business in Vietnam decreased
by 6.9% to US$817 million. Swine, poultry, aqua and other feed
products accounted for 49.2%, 22.5%, 27.0% and 1.3%, respectively.

B AR

A

kS

B e A UL s B RS R RHE A RS > fREF
B AR R NEH L RERE - AT - 4
R A K B B R R T SR A » i B B R A
BB —NETHR . _F—LE BmfibgER
BT Me7.0% % 1805 WA o A< 45 8] 8k e £ B} 3 B WA
TH6.9%F81TMEEIL » HPH - XE - KERK
At 857 B 2E 2 A 49.2% ~ 22.5% ~ 27.0% 5% 1.3% o

Breakdown of Vietham
Feed Revenue
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Farm and Food

Combined revenue of the Group’s farm and food businesses in
Vietnam was US$1,130 million, a 17.5% decline from last year. Swine
farming continues to be the major revenue contributor of this business
segment. As mentioned above, oversupply of swine in Vietnam
caused swine prices to slump in 2017, and significantly hampered
the performance of our farming business. The average selling price
of our fattening pigs in 2017 were approximately VND28,000 per kg
compared to VND46,000 per kg in 2016, a decline of 39% year-on-
year. Separately, aqua farming segment benefitted from favourable
shrimp prices and higher demand during the year.

OUTLOOK

In the agri-food industry, increasingly stringent requirements in our
two operating markets — China and Vietnam — are forcing small to
medium-sized farms to exit the industry, as the industry gradually
transitions to large-scale and modern farming. Over the long run,
the Group is well positioned to benefit from the industry evolution
as we have always valued research and development and kept a focus
on the commercial segment. However, in the short run, outlook in
2018 remains uncertain as the oversupply of swine in Vietnam is still
affecting the market. We remain cautious for 2018.

Swine Feed
—— 49.2% 5

EEKREM

R R R RAREZEA17.5%
F1130f3E00 - R EHEBHE LW ER WA R E
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total assets of US$4,232.9
million, representing an increase of 16.5% as compared to US$3,633.4
million as at 31 December 2016.

Net debt (31 December 2017: US$1,360.2 million, 31 December
2016: US$962.6 million) to equity ratio (defined as total bank
borrowings and corporate bond minus cash and deposits divided by
total equity) was 0.90 as compared to 0.68 as at 31 December 2016.

The borrowings of the Group are denominated in U.S. dollars (“US$”)
(31 December 2017: US$761.7 million, 31 December 2016: US$789.8
million), Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) (31 December 2017: US$381.5
million, 31 December 2016: US$229.7 million) and Renminbi
(“RMB”) (31 December 2017: US$543.8 million, 31 December 2016:
US$404.1 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current portion of long-term
borrowings amounted to US$115.5 million (31 December 2016:
US$66.1 million) and fixed interest rate borrowings amounted to
US$314.1 million (31 December 2016: US$203.7 million).

All domestic sales in the PRC and Vietnam are transacted in RMB
and VND respectively and export sales are transacted in foreign
currencies. Foreign currencies are required for purchase of certain
raw materials, equipment etc. The Group monitors foreign exchange
movements and determines appropriate hedging activities when
necessary. During the year, the Group has entered into forward
exchange contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures of US$
denominated liabilities against RMB and VND. As at 31 December
2017, the aggregate notional principal amount of these outstanding
derivative financial instruments for US$ against RMB was US$133.9
million.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and borrowings. The
Group had time deposits and cash and cash equivalents of US$302.1
million as at 31 December 2017, a decrease of US$117.9 million as
compared to 31 December 2016.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, out of the total borrowings of US$1,687.0
million (31 December 2016: US$1,423.6 million) obtained by the
Group, US$162.9 million (31 December 2016: US$113.5 million)
was secured and accounted for 9.7% (31 December 2016: 8.0%) of
the total borrowings. Certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and land lease prepayments with an aggregate net book
value of US$117.8 million (31 December 2016: US$102.8 million)

were pledged as security.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees were given by certain subsidiaries in the Group to
financial institutions in the PRC for certain indebtedness of
independent third party customers of the Group. In the case of
financial guarantees provided which exceed the net asset value of the
relevant subsidiaries, our maximum contingent liabilities are limited
to the net asset value of these subsidiaries. The net asset value of
the relevant subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 was approximately
US$91.2 million (31 December 2016: US$85.8 million). The
contingent liabilities of the Group in respect of such guarantees as
at 31 December 2017 were US$23.5 million (31 December 2016:
US$30.9 million).

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s biological assets amounted to
US$417.0 million (2016: US$383.8 million). The increase in the
value of biological assets during the year ended 31 December 2017
of US$33.2 million (2016: US$35.1 million) was mainly attributable
to purchases/raising of biological assets of US$1,206.7 million (2016:
US$1,002.7 million) minus sales of biological assets of US$1,102.6
million (2016: US$872.2 million). Details of the Group’s biological
assets are set out in note 18 to the financial statements of the annual
report.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a
positive net change in fair value of biological assets of US$7.4 million

(2016: negative net change of US$33.0 million).

We have complied with relevant laws and regulations and have
obtained the requisite licenses and permits for carrying out our
farming business from relevant regulatory authorities, including the
Investment Certificate issued by the Management Board of Dong Nai
Industrial Zone in Vietnam.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant investments held, nor material acquisitions or disposals

during the year.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed around 35,000 staff
in the PRC, Vietnam and Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing
market rates while performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary
basis. Other employee benefits include, for example, medical

insurance and training.
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Corporate Governance Report

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.

maintaining a high corporate governance standard, the principles

(the “Company”) is committed to

of which are to uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
accountability and integrity in all aspects of business and to ensure
that affairs are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”)
Governance Report (the “Corporate Governance Code”) throughout
the year 2017.

— Corporate Governance Code and Corporate

THE BOARD

(a) Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) comprises fifteen directors including
eight executive directors, two non-executive directors and five

independent non-executive directors.

The biographical details of all directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) and the relationships among Directors and
senior management are set out in the Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management section on pages 32 to 37 of

the annual report.
(b) Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is the Chairman of the Group.
Mr. Bai Shanlin and Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg are the
Chief Executive Officers of China area and Vietnam area

respectively. The roles of chairman and chief executives are

=

1F ﬂ&m

I e I B A R W) (T AR AW 1) B e v JE A 36 4
R > s RIS A1e A o A R e % 368 U5 T e E
R KT R~ BB - BT R R
DRI A 36 25 SR A 5 00 P R A 8 o

EEERTA

BoF-EERN KAAFCENEEBRGRSMA
B 2 ) Gt i B ([ LRI ) 1) B 8+ DU By
Wz (IR T ) R (3B H0h ) (T8
165 R 1) it B B S B A S IR S

EES
(a) EEEMAMK

BEABEEANIL  AAFEFG ((EF
FHRE+HARE » GFHN\LBRTEDS
WMAFEAITEF R LL B I RITHEE -

AAFFRAESR (THF]) WEEREFNE
AN B Z [ R B AR SO AR WSR3 2 83 TH
[ R A BN BB A | — 8 o

(b) EEERMTHAR

AW REEAREIERER - AFRBER
Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglergse 42 43 Bl 25 w5 [
T v ik AT B AR o R BT AR R Y
AR I EFRAHEY

distinct and separate with a clear division of responsibilities. HHFRAREAE » /7B B TS AR
The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the function of the B -
Board while the Chief Executive Officers are responsible for
managing the Group’s business.
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TEERRE

(c)

(d)

(e)

f

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, directly and through its committees, leads
and provides direction for the management by laying
down strategies and overseeing their implementation by
the management, reviews the operational and financial
performance, provides oversight to ensure that a sound system
of risk management and internal control is in place, and

performs corporate governance functions.

The non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) provide advisory, check and balances
for effective and constructive contribution to the Board to
safeguard interests of the shareholders and the Company as a

whole.

The management is responsible for the execution of business

strategies and dealing with day-to-day operations.
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all independent non-executive Directors are

independent.
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules —
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), as the code of conduct for dealings
in the Company’s securities by its Directors. In response to a
specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed that
they complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during 2017.

Directors’ Training

Every Director has kept abreast of his or her responsibilities as
a director of the Company and of the business activities and
development of the Company. During the year, the Company
provided trainings on the Listing Rules and monthly updates
on the Company’s financial performance and financial position
to all Directors.

B AR

A

(c)

(e)
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General Meeting, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company held
one annual general meeting, ten Board meetings, four Audit
Committee meetings, two Remuneration Committee meetings,
one Nomination Committee meeting and one Corporate

Governance Committee meeting.

Directors are expected to devote sufficient time and attention
to perform their duties and responsibilities. According to the
bye-laws of the Company, Directors can attend board meetings
in person or by means of a conference telephone or similar

communications equipment.

The attendance of each Director to the meetings, by name, in

2017 is set out in the following table:

G|

(9)

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

BRRAE -EFEREEEETHNESESS
B

REEZF-LFEFZA=ZHIEE
AAFCET - RKBRAFEKRE - HkES
k- WIRESZ BT R Z
BE@ - — KRBT RTTEMN— KA
BHREZR @k -

7 AT S ST AT S IR D % B
T o MREAA T AR > A H R0
8% Rk 7 A R 2 S
7k o

TERAAFIRGAEFR _F - LFELREE
i B H R R

No. of meetings attended/held

HRKY/ GRETRY
Annual Corporate
General Audit  Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Governance
Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
R 27 M 4 REHH
RELR 54 04 04 04 08
Executive Directors 5%
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (Chairman) HEREL (BHE) 1 0/10 - - 11 -
Mr. Adirek Sripratak 3y s 11 0/10 - 0 i -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont EEIN L 1 9/10 - - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont WKk W) 6/10 - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin AEREE ] 9/10 - - - -
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg & Il 9/10 - - - -
Mr. Anan Athigaphanich HER KA
(resigned on 16 January 2017) (R=F—LE-H1rHE) - 11 - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan® £ W) 10/10 - - - -
Mr. Yu Jianping TR AL
(appointed on 16 January 2017) (R=F—tE—f17HEH) 111 89 - - - -
Non-executive Directors FHEE
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont AR 111 910 4/4 - - -
Mr. Yoichi [kezoe iRE—k4 /1 10/10 - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors Vg T
Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung Bl 1l 0/10 414 0 11 I
Mr. Sombat Deo-istes Sombat Deo-isres i 4: 1 0/10 34 i 11 01
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul 6 4 il 0/10 44 i 11 I
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai VittavasgarnvejJ6 4 1 0110 - - - -
Mrs. Vatchari Vimookeayon Varchari VimooktayonZ 1 I 9/10 - - - -
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EEERRS
(h) Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance in

annual and interim reports.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the financial performance
and cash flows of the Group in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement of
the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report section on pages 62 to 70 of the annual

report.

The Board considers that, in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in accordance

with the applicable accounting standards.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

A

(h)
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BOARD DELEGATION

The Board has delegated authority to four committees which operate
under defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee are available on the Company’s website. The attendance
of each committee member to the committee meetings, by name, in

2017 is set out on page 21 of the annual report.
(i) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive
Directors, namely Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (Chairman) and
Mr. Adirek Sripratak, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung, Mr. Sombat
Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul.

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board
with the primary responsibility to formulate and implement
the nomination policy and board diversity policy, make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individual(s) nominated for directorship and assess the

independence of independent non-executive Directors.

According to the board diversity policy of the Company,
selection of candidates is based on a range of considerations
relating to diversity, which include but are not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Company’s corporate
strategy and organisational needs are also taken into account.

Board appointments are based on meritocracy.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a successive term of one year and,
together with all other Directors, are subject to retirement by
rotation, but may offer themselves for re-election at annual
general meetings in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws. According to the Company’s bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company no less than one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at

an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year

to review the Board composition.
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(i)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu
Cheung (Chairman), Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda

Thanitcul, and an executive Director, Mr. Adirek Sripratak.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated by the Board with
primary responsibility to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure for all directors and
senior management and determine the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management and

submit for endorsement by the Board.

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is
to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate high-caliber employees who are critical to the success
of the Company, thereby enhancing the value of the Company
to shareholders. The objective of the Company’s remuneration
policy is to maintain fair and competitive packages based on

business requirements and industry practices.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
year to determine remuneration packages for the Directors and

senior management and other remuneration matters.

Details of emoluments of each Director are set out in note
10 to the financial statements of the annual report. The
remuneration of the members of the senior management by

band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:
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(HK$) Number of Senior Management
(#7) RAEHMANB A
0 to 3,000,000 0%3,000,000 1
3,000,001 to 6,000,000 3,000,001 %6,000,000 1
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ma Andrew
Chiu Cheung (Chairman), Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr.
Sakda Thanitcul and a non-executive Director, Mr. Meth

Jiaravanont.

The Corporate Governance Committee is delegated by the
Board with the primary responsibility to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; develop, review and
monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees and
directors; and review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting
during the year to review the Company’s policies on corporate
governance and gave recommendation to the Board for

approval.
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung
(Chairman), Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

and a non-executive Director, Mr. Meth Jiaravanont.

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board with the
primary responsibility to provide independent oversight of the
Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to perform its duties including support
from the Internal Audit Department, the external auditor
and management in reviewing the Group’s financial results,

material financial, operational and compliance controls.
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(iv)  Audit Committee (continued) (iv)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year. The
following is a summary of work of the Audit Committee in
2017:

. reviewed the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2016

and gave recommendation to the Board for approval;

o reviewed the report from the external auditor to the
Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2016;

o reviewed the Group’s compliance with the Corporate

Governance Code;

o reviewed internal audit reports of the Group;

o reviewed the interim report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2017

and gave recommendation to the Board for approval;

o reviewed the report from the external auditor to the
Audit Committee for the six months ended 30 June
2017;

. reviewed the audit and non-audit services undertaken

by the external auditor; and

o reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and gave recommendation to

the Board for approval.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

B

EREEE (H)

FEHREZATRENAMTHRE®E DT R
FEREZBAR F—LFEN TAEHE

. FHRE-Z-AFE+H=1+—H
Ak 4F A4 R AR PSR AR N >
i 3

. BRI BZEMBELZZEEGRE
FE—ANFETA=+T—HIEFENR
53

. 2 I A 45 [ s (A SR VRSP R M I
o

. 2 e A 4 1] 9 T

. FHRE-Z-LEANA=ZTHIEA
L3 B o 3T o B ISR A > I
e O

. FRSEEEMBAELZEGRE
FUEAAZ+HIEAMHA MRS

. 2 ] ¥ A1 I A S P AT B A B
TR 5 R

. 7 o o A B A A S A2 R AR PR B

RAERGERE BERLZRARHNEE_ZF

—HE+ A = H R AR R AR AR
ES I A § R

- -t FF K



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

(iv)

b E B E R 2 A

Audit Committee (continued) (iv)

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor. To ensure external auditor’s independence,
the Audit Committee reviewed the audit and non-audit

services undertaken by the external auditor during the year.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid by the

Group to external auditors are set out below:

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

EREEE (B

FHZ BT AN Z AT - A
RE S S % 1t A/ T8 A S 1 TN < B R AR K
F TR AL W BB S > BHEHE O
Kt T AF P e A A A O AT P A %
TR -

TP L R JBE T > A 5 B S A A7 A B Y T
3

2017

L

(US$°000)

Category of Services JIR %5 %8 531 (FILF L)

Audit Services 1% R 1,190
Review engagements and FR TR

agreed-upon procedures AT )P 323

1,513

Other services At IR %5 221

Total 4 755 1,734
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Our Approach

The Group has established and adopted a risk management policy
which is designed to manage the risks of failure associated with the
Group while achieving its business objectives and provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. A
risk appetite statement has been established to define the extent of
risks that the Group is willing to take in pursuit of its strategies and

business objectives.

Clear roles and responsibilities are assigned to different level of
management within the Group. The Board acknowledges that it is
responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board also (i) oversees the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems
and (ii) evaluates and determines the nature and extent of risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s business objectives. The
Board delegates the responsibility of reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems to the
Audit Committee, which monitors the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems through the Internal Audit Department. The
Internal Audit Department carries out independent review of key
business processes and controls, key findings and recommendations
for improvement are regularly reported to the Audit Committee.
The external auditor also reports on any control issues which has
been identified in the course of audit or review work to the Audit
Committee. Management is responsible for designing, implementing
and monitoring risk management and internal control systems,
whereas risk owners appointed by the management are responsible
for identifying, analysing and prioritising risk issues for further
consideration by management, and ensuring that the risk monitoring
and control system are working effectively and risk mitigation actions

are implemented within business units.
Effectiveness Review

During the year, the Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, has
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Board considers that
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group are
effective and adequate. The Board also considers that the Group
has adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of accounting, internal audit and financial

reporting functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Continuous Improvement

We are committed to continually improve our risk management
and internal control framework and will continue to enhance the
integration of risk management and internal control into our business

process.

For the handling and dissemination of inside information, an inside
information handling policy is in place to enable the Group to handle
inside information in accordance with the legal requirements and,
where required, communicate with the Group’s stakeholders in a

timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 48, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene a special general meeting, and special
general meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided
by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as the same may from time
to time be amended) (the “Companies Act”), and, in default, may be

convened by the requisitionists.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, at the date of the deposit of the
requisition, members holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can submit a written requisition to the

Board for convening a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of
the Company.

If the Board fails to proceed duly to convene a meeting within
twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of

three months from the date of the written requisition.

Such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Board. At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing
(and not less than 10 business days) shall be given to all members of

the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

To Make Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders of the Company can make enquiry to the Board by
writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong.
To Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of members of the
Company representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a right
to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates or not less than
one hundred members can submit a written requisition to the Board

for putting forward proposals at general meetings.

The requisition must state the resolution with a statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting

and the requisition must be signed by the requisitionists.

The requisition must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company by not less than six weeks before the meeting in the case
of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution or by not less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition. The
requisitionists must deposit a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution

and circulating the statement to all members of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

To Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Members of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) who
are qualified to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company
can submit a written requisition to the Board to propose a person for

election as a director of the Company at such general meetings.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited,
with a notice signed by the nominated candidate of his willingness to
be elected and the candidate’s information required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and a written consent from
the nominated candidate to the publication of his personal data, at
the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and ending no later than seven

days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Details of the procedures for proposing a person for election as a

director are available on the Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to the
communication with shareholders, with the objective of maintaining
full, open and timely communication with shareholders. Information
would be communicated to shareholder in a timely manner, mainly
through the publication of the Company’s corporate communications
including interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

These publications are available on the Company’s website.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to its

constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEANEBESFS

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont, aged 78, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 1988. He was appointed as Executive Chairman
of the Company in 2005 and this title was subsequently changed
to Chairman with effect from February 2010. Mr. Chearavanont
was appointed as Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company in April 2012. Mr. Chearavanont is also the Senior
Chairman of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited (“Charoen
Pokphand Group”). He has extensive experience in establishing
and operating businesses in Asia, Europe and USA. He also holds
directorship in a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chearavanont is
also the chairman of Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company
Limited (“CPF”), True Corporation Public Company Limited (“True
Corporation”) and CP ALL Public Company Limited (“CP ALL”)
(companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand).

Mr. Adirek Sripratak, aged 71, has been a Vice Chairman of the
Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company since April 2012.
Mr. Sripratak has been the Vice Chairman of CPF since 2013 and
Chairman of the Executive Committee of CPF since 2017. He is
also a director of several subsidiaries of CPF and of the Company.
Mr. Sripratak is also a director of CP ALL and Siam Makro Public
Company Limited (“Siam Makro”) (companies listed on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand). He has more than 40 years’ experience in
the agri-business and food industry. His valuable experience is widely
recognised and has led to his appointment to a number of public
offices and positions. His public service experiences include served as
a Senator of the National Assembly of Thailand, the Honor Presient
of the Thai Broiler Processing Exporters Association and an Honorary
Director of Chiang Mai University Council. He received Honorary
Doctorates from a number of universities in Thailand including Maejo
University, Mae Fah Luang University, Rajamangala University of
Technology Suvarnabhumi, Chiang Mai University, Rajamangala

University of Technology Isan and Kasetsart University.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mzr. Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 53, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2005 and a Vice Chairman since February 2010.
He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in the College of Business
and Public Administration of New York University, USA and has
extensive multinational investment and management experience in
various industries. He also holds directorships in several subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Chearavanont is also the Chairman of Charoen
Pokphand Group and True Visions Public Company Limited
(“True Visions”), a non-executive director and chairman of Chia
Tai Enterprises International Limited (“CTEI”, listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”)) and an executive director and chairman of C.P. Lotus
Corporation (“C.P. Lotus”, listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange). He is also a director of True Corporation and CP ALL
and a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company
of China, Ltd. (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Chearavanont was

previously a director of Siam Makro.

Mr.
Director of the Company since 2008. Mr. Chearavanont obtained a

Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 50, has been an Executive

Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from Boston
University in USA, majored in Financial Management. He has
extensive experience in the telecommunication and broadcasting
industries. Mr. Chearavanont is also the Chief Executive Officer of
Charoen Pokphand Group and an executive director of C.P. Lotus. He
is also a director and Chairman of the Executive Committee of True
Corporation and a director and chief executive officer of True Visions
and True Move Company Limited. Mr. Chearavanont was previously a

director of Siam Makro.

Mzr. Bai Shanlin, aged 58, has been appointed as Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer (Feed Division) of the Company since
February 2010. His title was changed to Chief Executive Officer
(China Area) with effect from April 2012. Mr. Bai obtained a
Professional Diploma in Animal Science, Gansu College of Animal
Husbandry, the Governmental Exchange Specialist in Agricultural
Management from the Australian Ministry of Foreign Affairs and
a Specialist Certificate in Livestock Management in the PRC. He
joined Charoen Pokphand Group in 1991. He is currently a senior
executive of the Group, responsible for the operation of our agri-food
business in Xinjiang, Ningxia, Gansu, Shaanxi, Shanxi, Neimenggu,
Heilongjiang, Jilin and Liaoning. Mr. Bai has extensive experience
in the management of agri-business operations. He is also a part time
professor honored by Gansu Agricultural University and Renmin
University of China. Mr. Bai also holds directorships in several

companies within the Group.
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Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, aged 65, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since October 2011 and Chief Executive
Officer (Vietnam Area) of the Company since April 2012. Mr.
Jiumjaiswanglerg is also a director, Chief Executive Officer (Agro
Industrial Business), Co-President and member of the Executive
Committee of CPF. Mr. Jiumjaiswanglerg has over 30 years of
experience in animal feed sales and breeding, having been with
Charoen Pokphand Group since 1980. Mr. Jiumjaiswanglerg also holds
directorships in several companies within the Group. He graduated
from the University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce with a

bachelor’s degree in Economics.

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan, aged 69, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since April 2012. Mrs. Watcharananan has
been an Executive Director of CPF since 2002 and vice chairman of
the Executive Committee of CPF since 2017. She is also a director
of several subsidiaries of CPF. She graduated from Thammasat

University, Thailand with a bachelor’s degree in Economics.

Mr. Yu Jianping, aged 58, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since January 2017. Mr. Yu is currently a senior executive
of the Group, primarily responsible for research and development,
manufacture and sale of food products in China. He also holds
directorship in several companies within the Group. Mr. Yu has been
working for the Group since 1995. Mr. Yu received a Bachelor of
Science degree from the Faculty of Mathematics, Jilin University in
China in 1982 and a Master of Economics degree from the Graduate
School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in China in 1989.

Mr.
Chairman of the Company since 2005, and was re-designated as a

Meth Jiaravanont, aged 59, has been an Executive Vice

Non-executive Director of the Company and appointed as a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company in August 2010 and
appointed as a member of the Corporate Governance Committee in
August 2017. Mr. Jiaravanont obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from Occidental College, California, USA and a master’s
degree in Business Administration from New York University, USA.
He has extensive experience in investment, finance, banking and
strategic business development in Asia and USA. Mr. Jiaravanont is
also an executive director of C.P. Lotus. He is currently the senior
executive assistant to the chairman-finance of Charoen Pokphand

Group and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mzr. Yoichi Ikezoe, aged 58, has been a Non-executive Director of
the Company since October 2015. Mr. Ikezoe is also a non—executive
director of CTEI. Mr. lkezoe is currently the Senior Officer for Asia
and Oceania Bloc, CP and CITIC (Overseas Operation) of ITOCHU
Corporation (a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange) and
Chairman of ITOCHU Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Ikezoe has been
working for ITOCHU Corporation (formerly known as C.ITOH &
Co., Ltd.) since 1983. He received his Bachelor of Arts degree from
the Faculty of Foreign Studies, Osaka University in Japan in 1983.

Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung, aged 76, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company since 2005. He has been a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since 2006. Mr. Ma was also appointed
as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company in April 2012 and appointed
as Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee in August
2016. Mr. Ma is a founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited
(formerly known as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Limited) and is presently
a director of Mayee Management Limited. He has more than 30
years’ experience in the fields of accounting, auditing and finance.
Mr. Ma received his bachelor’s degree in Economics from the London
School of Economics and Political Science (University of London)
in the United Kingdom. He is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. In addition
to his directorship in the Company, Mr. Ma is also an independent
non-executive director of Asia Financial Holdings Limited, China
Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, Chong Hing Bank
Limited, Asiaray Media Group Limited and C-MER Eye Care
Holdings Limited (companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange). Mr. Ma was previously an independent non-executive
director of Southwest Securities International Securities Limited
(formerly known as Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited) (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Sombat Deo-isres, aged 76, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2005. He has been a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company since September 2005 and was also appointed as a member
of the Nomination Committee in April 2012 and appointed as a
member of the Corporate Governance Committee in August 2016.
Mr. Deo-isres obtained a bachelor’s degree in Laws from Thammasat
University and a master’s degree in Laws from Chulalongkorn
University, Thailand. He held various senior positions with the Thai
judiciary. He was a former Senior Judge of the Supreme Court of
Thailand and is currently a member of the academic justice committee

of the President of Supreme Court.

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul, aged 59, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company since 2008. Mr. Thanitcul
was also appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee in
April 2012 and appointed as a member of the Corporate Governance
Committee in August 2016. Mr. Thanitcul holds a Bachelor of Law
degree from Chulalongkorn University, Thailand, a Master of Law
degree from Kyoto University, Japan and University of Washington,
USA and a Doctor of Law degree from Kyoto University, Japan and
University of Washington, USA. He has extensive experience in the
legal field and specialises in competition law and the World Trade
Organization Agreements. Mr. Thanitcul was a former Dean and is
presently a Professor of Law at the Faculty of Law, Chulalongkorn
University, Bangkok, Thailand.

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej, aged 67, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since December 2012. Mr.
Vittavasgarnvej obtained a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy and
a master’s degree in Political Science from Thammasat University,
Thailand. Currently, Mr. Vittavasgarnvej is the chairman and
independent director of Sahamitr Pressure Container Public Co., Ltd.
and independent director and the chairman of the audit committee
of Ekarat Engineering Public Company Limited, independent director
of Syn Mun Kong Insurance Public Company Limited and vice
chairman, independent director and chairman of the audit committee
of Srisawad Corporation Public Company Limited (companies listed
on The Stock Exchange of Thailand). He was the Director General
of The Treasury Department, Ministry of Finance, Thailand from
2010 to 2011 and the Director General of The Revenue Department,
Ministry of Finance, Thailand from 2008 to 2010.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon, aged 65, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since September 2013. Mrs.
Vimooktayon had held various government positions in Thailand
since 1997 and retired from the position of Permanent Secretary of
the Ministry of Commerce in September 2013. Mrs. Vimooktayon
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration (Accounting)
from Thammasat University, Thailand, a bachelor’s degree in Laws
from Sukhothai Thammathirat University, Thailand and a master’s
degree in Business Administration from National Institute of

Development Administration, Thailand.

Mr. Chang Bo Wai, Bobby, aged 48, has been the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since 2011. Mr. Chang obtained a Bachelor
of Science degree in Engineering from Princeton University and a
Master of Science degree from Stanford University in the USA. He
has extensive international experience in management consulting,

investment as well as business and financial management.

Mr. Lau Wing Yuen, aged 52, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lau joined the Company in
2011. He holds a bachelor’s degree of Social Sciences from University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, he worked for an
international accounting firm and several listed companies in Hong

Kong.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is the father of Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
and Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont and uncle of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont.
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont and Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont are
brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Adirek
Sripratak is the elder brother of Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan. Save
as disclosed above, there is no other material relationship among

members of the Board and senior management.
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Report of the Directors
EERFTE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The subsidiaries of
the Company are principally engaged, in the PRC, in (i) manufacture
and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding, farming and sale of livestock,
and (iii) manufacture and sale of value-added, processed food
products; and in Vietnam, in (i) manufacture and sale of animal feed,
(ii) breeding, farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals, and

(iii) manufacture and sale of value-added, processed food products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review with financial key performance indicators analysis
and future development of the Group are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement section on pages 2 to 3, Financial Highlights section on
page 12 and Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 13

to 18 of the annual report.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, a discussion
on the environmental policies and performance and the key

relationships with stakeholders are set out below.

For further information about the environmental and social
performance of the Group for this financial year, please refer to the

Environmental, Social, and Governance Report 2017 to be issued.

The Directors are not aware of any important event affecting the

Group since the end of the financial year under review.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are discussed

below. Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set

out in note 44 to the financial statements of the annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Volatility of Commodity Prices

Price of farm products is dependent on the demand and supply as
well as the economic condition and consumer purchasing power and
confidence. When supply exceeds demand, there is a negative impact
on the selling price of the farm products which in turn affects the

performance of the Group.

On the other hand, the Group’s results may also be affected by price
volatility of the main ingredients used in the production of animal
feed, including corn, soybean meal, wheat and fish meal. These raw
materials are basic agricultural commodities and their prices are
affected by global commodity prices as well as domestic demand and
supply. Management will set a safety stock level and continuously
collect and analyse the commodity price information when purchasing

these raw materials.
Product Quality and Safety

Product quality and safety are the most important issues in agri-food
business. Failure to maintain quality control during the manufacturing
process may lead to poor quality products and result in complaints,
claims for compensation or product recalls, penalties and damage
to the Group’s reputation. The Group is committed to producing
high quality and safe products from its manufacturing process and
has traceability systems for raw materials used and quality assurance

systems throughout its supply chains.
Customer Demand and Preference

Customer demand for a particular kind of meat may change due to loss
of consumer confidence as a result of epidemic outbreak or a change
in consumer preference and taste. Also, as consumer’s purchasing
power increases, preference may also shift from low cost protein
sources to higher cost protein sources. A decline in demand for any
particular kind of meat will directly affect the sales of that meat, and
indirectly affect the demand for the associated feed products, as well
as the demand for the food products made from that meat. In order to
stay alert to customers’ demands and determine appropriate marketing
strategies, management continuously follows the behavioral change

and satisfaction of consumers.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Animal Disease Outbreaks

Any epidemic outbreaks in livestock, poultry or aquatic animals would
affect the selling prices of our products and the results of the Group.
The Group will continue to provide regular training to its employees
to obtain knowledge and understanding on diseases and outbreaks, as
well as continuously conduct surveillance, follow-up, data analysis and

communication of information on diseases and their outbreaks.
Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group’s businesses are principally located in mainland China
and Vietnam. All domestic sales in mainland China and Vietnam
are transacted in RMB and VND respectively, whereas export sales
and import of raw materials, machinery and equipment are transacted
in foreign currencies. Also, certain subsidiaries in mainland China
and Vietnam have borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.
Depreciation of RMB/VND against foreign currencies would result
in loss on translation of these foreign currencies denominated
borrowings and increase the costs of imported raw materials,
machinery and equipment. Further, depreciation of RMB/VND
against US$ would also adversely affect results of the Group, as the
results of the subsidiaries in mainland China and Vietnam would be
reduced on translation from RMB/VND to USS$, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The Group will continue to monitor foreign
exchange movements and consider hedging when necessary. Please
refer to note 44(c) to the financial statements of the annual report
for the foreign currency risk exposures as at the end of the reporting

period.
Interest Rate Fluctuation

The Group had total bank borrowings and corporate bond of
US$1,687.0 million as at 31 December 2017, 81% of which were at
floating rate which subjects the Group to interest rate risk. In the
decision making for the selection of sources of capital, the Group
will consider various factors such as rate of return expected by
shareholders, current and expected interest rates in the market and
debt-to-equity ratio of the Group. Please refer to note 44(a) to the
financial statements of the annual report for the interest rate risk

exposures as at the end of the reporting period.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Compliance Risks

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in mainland China
and Vietnam and are subject to different industry standards and
government regulations in different jurisdictions. These standards
and regulations include food hygiene and safety related laws and
regulations, environmental protection regulations, employment
regulations and relevant tax laws, etc. The Group’s internal
legal department will ensure compliance with the laws, rules and
regulations applicable to the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation and minimizing our impact on the environment. As a
testament of our commitment to environmental protection, some of
our operations in China and Vietnam are certified with ISO 14001
Environmental Management System, which reflects our stringent
environmental policies and objectives. We have adopted strict
measures to control the discharge of wastes and pollutants. We have
also implemented an array of energy saving measures to reduce costs
and energy consumption in our production processes. In 2017, there
was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant environmental

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

We also require our suppliers to operate in strict compliance with
relevant environmental regulations and rules. Their environmental

performances are evaluated on a regular basis.
Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Employees

The Group regards its employees as one of its most important
assets. We strive to provide motivation and awards to employees
who demonstrate outstanding performance. Our employee benefits
include medical insurance, annual leaves, training, and discretionary
performance bonus. We also ensure our recruitment policies are in
compliance with the national regulations on equal opportunity and

anti-discrimination.

We also place great importance in establishing a safe and healthy
work environment for our employees. In our operations, safety
trainings are offered to production staff. We have obtained OHSAS
18001 Occupational Health and Safety Management Systems
certification in some of our food operations, which serves to
demonstrate our capability in managing the potential occupational

hazard in workplaces.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Customers

Customers’ satisfaction with products and services is key to our
success. The Group has set out rigorous procedures to ensure that
safe, nutritious, environmentally friendly products are produced and
delivered to our customers. To monitor our customers’ satisfaction,
the Group’s sales teams listen to customers’ needs and opinions.
With continuous feedback of our customers, we will continue to
improve our product and service qualities. The Group has a diversified

customer base.
Suppliers

We carefully choose suppliers that share the same commitment to
product quality and work ethics with us. In our procurement process,
we select our suppliers based on a number of assessment criteria,
including their service quality, environmental and social performance,
and ability to supply high-quality products on a consistent basis. We
also perform on-site inspections of our suppliers as and when necessary

to ensure our requirements are met.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the year ended 31 December
2017 and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out

in the financial statements on pages 71 to 210 of the annual report.

During the year under review, no interim dividend was declared
(2016: HK$0.024 per share (equivalent to approximately US 0.310

cents)).

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend for
2017 of HK$0.007 (equivalent to approximately US 0.090 cents)
(2016: HK$0.016 (equivalent to approximately US 0.206 cents)) per
share, totaling approximately US$22,881,000 (2016: US$52,300,000)
(based on the total number of issued ordinary shares and convertible
preference shares as at the date of this report). Subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 8 June 2018, the final dividend will be
paid on 28 June 2018 to the ordinary share holders and convertible
preference share holders whose names appear on the register of

members of the Company on 15 June 2018.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
5 June 2018 to 8 June 2018, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to ascertain shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
8 June 2018, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 4 June
2018.

In addition, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 14 June 2018 to 15 June 2018, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to qualify for the 2017 final dividend, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 13 June 2018.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The consolidated assets, liabilities and results of the Group for the
five years ended 31 December 2017, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, are as follows:
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
e = T St S S S Y
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FELFi E E i LT Em i
Total assets WEE 4,232,929 3,633,425 3,127,863 3,154,018 2,759,488
Total liabilities =R 2,711,565 2,214,671 1,811,981 1,767,610 1,513,173
Non-controlling interests e R 25 277,654 295,182 229,970 207,780 177,193
Equity attributable to AR W) IR O A
shareholders of the Company B 1,237,710 1,123,566 1,085,912 1,178,628 1,069,122
4,232,929 3,633,425 3,127,863 3,154,018 2,759,488
Profit for the year attributable to AR IR TR A
shareholders of the Company by 41,867 260,278 267,575 251,425 186,211
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 15

to the financial statements of the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 16 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued shares of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 35 to the financial

statements of the annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During 2017, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in notes 45 and 37 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of

the annual report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to US$1,360,336,000 (2016:
US$1,431,045,000) which included the proposed final dividend for
the year 2017 of US$22,881,000 (2016: US$52,300,000). Details of
the proposed final dividend are set out in note 13 to the financial

statements of the annual report.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and other
purposes amounting to US$2,224,000 (2016: US$1,211,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Revenue and purchases attributable to the five largest customers
and the five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the
Group’s revenue and purchases for the year ended 31 December 2017

respectively.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont

Mr. Adirek Sripratak

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont

Mr. Bai Shanlin

Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg

Mr. Anan Athigapanich (resigned on 16 January 2017)
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan

Mr. Yu Jianping (appointed on 16 January 2017)
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a successive term of one year and, together with all
other Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation, but may offer
themselves for re-election at annual general meetings in accordance

with the Company’s bye-laws.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 82, Mr. Dhanin
Chearavanont, Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe, Mr.
Sombat Deo-isres, and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all

independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the related party
disclosures as disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements of the
annual report, none of the Directors had any material interests, either
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement and contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a
party during the year ended 31 December 2017.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the related party
disclosures as disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements of the
annual report, there had been no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” on
page 52 of the annual report, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any

other body corporate.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to

shareholders by reason of their holding in the Company’s securities.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code are set out below:

(a) Directors’ interests in shares of the Company
(Long Positions)

A

EERFETBAEBRAEAQARHEEE
ZENROREAERONOESR AR

BEF-EETFZAZT R MRS R
1 56535 200 KL A2 v AR 4> ) A7 2 % A T B R % > X
SR B0 A o S ) e A R B I A2 P % A > %%
R B EATBON B R A A A R B R I8 1 T
i K2 K T M o 1 R i % % T (3% o B 9 B R ) SR
XV P &) @yImr

(a) EBERALANEDS(HFR)

Approximate

percentage of

Number of the issued ordinary

ordinary share capital of

Name of director Capacity shares held the Company

RN F B BT

JIt o 35 4 i W ik i A

HHELW 4y JB 6y 8 H B A B kb

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 37,600,000 0.16%
B R ek HEEAA

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 21,000,000 0.09%
AR Ak HRA A
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (continued)

Directors’ interests in shares of associated
corporations of the Company (Long Positions)

(b)

B A R 2

=

Report of the Directors
ESREE

EERFIETBAEBRAEADARHEEE
ZENRORARRONVERRKXE (F)

(b) EBRAQITHMEBEENOES (HFR)

Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited FAL¥EBERA T

Approximate

percentage of

the issued share

capital of the

Number of associated

Name of director Capacity shares held corporation

0% R B

CETBA

HHAW 54 Jii i ik oy BCH RN e

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 376,000 0.16%
B R S A HEBEEA

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 210,000 0.09%

i iR ek Ha A A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFQO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND FERREBBEIESRPERGFREERT
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT HEZAREZIXENAL
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE

UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES

ORDINANCE

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons (not being a director R _F—-t4E+_H=1—H » HIEBF LY &K%k
or chief executive of the Company) had the following interests and  f| %8336k M EH AR AR HFHEZ B M st T
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as  # A+ GEARA B HEFHKTEELTHAER) RAAF
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant B By S FH BRI A RO RE RS R IR BN F ¢

to Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate
Number of percentage of the
shares and issued ordinary
underlying share capital of
Name of shareholder Notes  Capacity shares held the Company
A 2w B 81T
R B 58 3t JBe A
JBe 3% 44 1 HaE B4 B HH BRI 4 B H R ONER/ige
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(Ht#E1) (WfiEL)
Charoen Pokphand Group (2) Interest of controlled corporation 12,774,814,845 (L) 53.1 (L)
Company Limited e v HE A5
Charoen Pokphand Foods (2) Beneficial owner and interest of 12,774,814,845 (L) 53.1 (L)
Public Company Limited controlled corporation
TR BEA N\ Bbe ) i P R 25
ITOCHU Corporation 3) Beneficial owner 6,017,959,308 (L) 25.0 (L)
BB R g At HaEaE A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (continued)

Notes:

(1)

The Letter “L” denotes a long position.
(2) Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) had
a long position in 12,774,814,845 shares and underlying shares of
the Company which included (i) 1,261,077,748 preference shares
beneficially owned by CPF and (ii) 11,513,737,097 ordinary shares
beneficially owned by CPF’s wholly-owned subsidiary, CPF Investment
Limited (“CPFI”). As a result of certain provisions in an agreement
entered into in July 2014 between CPF, CPFIl and ITOCHU
Corporation (“ITOCHU”) in relation to the sale of an aggregate of
6,017,959,308 ordinary shares of the Company to ITOCHU, for the
purpose of Sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO, CPF was taken to
be interested in the shares owned by ITOCHU. As such, CPF had a
long position in 18,792,774,153 shares and underlying shares of the
Company in aggregate. Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
also declared its interest in these shares by virtue of its shareholding

interest in CPF.

ITOCHU beneficially owned 6,017,959,308 ordinary shares of the
Company. As a result of certain provisions in an agreement entered
into in July 2014 between CPF, CPFI and ITOCHU in relation to the
sale of an aggregate of 6,017,959,308 ordinary shares of the Company
to ITOCHU, for the purpose of Sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the
SFO, ITOCHU was taken to be interested in the shares owned by
CPF. As such, ITOCHU had a long position in 18,792,774,153 shares

and underlying shares of the Company in aggregate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person (not
being a director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest
or a short position in shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted by the shareholders of the Company
in the annual general meeting held on 22 June 2012. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date unless

otherwise cancelled or amended.

The total number of ordinary shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme, being 1,698,783,571 ordinary shares of the Company,
based on 16,987,835,710 issued ordinary shares of the Company as
at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme in 2012. Such
maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of all the
share options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
now represents 7% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company as at
the date of this report.

No share option was granted during the year under review. As at 31

December 2017, the Company had no outstanding share options.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 36 to

the financial statements of the annual report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions that were subject to the

Listing Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Supply

Prior to the reporting period, on 31 October 2016, the Company had
entered into a master supply agreement with High Orient Enterprises
Limited (“HOEL”) (the “2016 CPP Master Supply Agreement”), for
the supply by the Group to HOEL and its associates (the “HOEL
Group”) of various feed-related, farm-related and food-related
products produced or procured by the Group including animal feed,
feed raw materials, livestock and aquatic products, and processed
meats and food products. The 2016 CPP Master Supply Agreement
took effect on 1 January 2017 and would continue until 31 December
2019. The 2016 CPP Master Supply Agreement and the annual caps
were approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on
13 December 2016.

As at the date of the Company’s announcement, 31 October 2016,
Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) was
interested in approximately 47.8% of the issued ordinary shares of
the Company and Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
(“Charoen Pokphand Group”) held approximately 45.4% of the
issued share capital of CPF. Due to Charoen Pokphand Group’s near
majority shareholding in CPF, the Company and Charoen Pokphand
Group have agreed to treat Charoen Pokphand Group as a substantial
shareholder of the Company, accordingly Charoen Pokphand Group
and its subsidiaries and their respective associates were treated as
connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. As HOEL was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Charoen
Pokphand Group, the transactions contemplated under the 2016
CPP Master Supply Agreement were treated as continuing connected

transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the approved annual
cap for the transactions contemplated under the 2016 CPP Master
Supply Agreement and the actual sales recorded amounted to

US$1,375,000,000 and US$947,357,000 respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase
High Orient Enterprises Limited

Prior to the reporting period, on 31 October 2016, the Company
had entered into a master purchase agreement with HOEL (the
“2016 CPP Master Purchase Agreement”) for the purchase from the
HOEL Group of feed raw materials, packing materials, livestock and
aquatic products, meats and other items required by the Group in the
production of feed-related, farm-related and food-related products.
The 2016 CPP Master Purchase Agreement took effect on 1 January
2017 and would continue until 31 December 2019. The 2016 CPP
Master Purchase Agreement and the annual caps were approved by

the independent shareholders of the Company on 13 December 2016.

As at the date of the Company’s announcement, 31 October
2016, CPF was interested in approximately 47.8% of the issued
ordinary shares of the Company and Charoen Pokphand Group
held approximately 45.4% of the issued share capital of CPF. Due
to Charoen Pokphand Group’s near majority shareholding in CPF,
the Company and Charoen Pokphand Group have agreed to treat
Charoen Pokphand Group as a substantial shareholder of the
Company, accordingly Charoen Pokphand Group and its subsidiaries
and their respective associates were treated as connected persons of
the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. As HOEL was
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Charoen Pokphand Group,
the transactions contemplated under the 2016 CPP Master Purchase
Agreement were treated as continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the approved annual
cap for the transactions contemplated under the 2016 CPP Master

Purchase Agreement and the actual purchases recorded amounted to
US$1,295,000,000 and US$872,598,000 respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase (continued)
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited

Prior to the reporting period, on 16 April 2015, the Company had
entered into a master purchase agreement with Chia Tai Enterprises
International Limited (“CTEI”) (the “2015 CTEI Master Purchase
Agreement”), for the purchase of chlortetracycline and animal drugs
(including any antibiotics) required for the production of animal and
aqua feed by the Group from CTEI and its subsidiaries (the “CTEI
Group”). The 2015 CTEI Master Purchase Agreement took effect on 3
July 2015 and continued until 31 December 2017.

As at the date of the Company’s announcement, 29 September 2015,
CPF was interested in approximately 47.8% of the issued ordinary
shares of the Company, and was the controlling shareholder of the
Company. CPF was also interested in approximately 47.8% of the
issued share capital of CTEl. Companies in the CTEI Group were
associates of CPF and also connected persons of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the 2015 CTEI Master Purchase Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2015 CTEI Master Purchase
Agreement and the actual purchases recorded amounted to
US$14,515,000 and US$2,432,000 respectively.

As the Company intended to continue the transactions under the
2015 CTEI Master Purchase Agreement, on 30 October 2017, the
Company entered into a new master agreement with CTEI, which
took effect on 1 January 2018 and would continue until 31 December
2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

CPG Trademark Licence

Prior to the reporting period, on 28 December 2016, C.P. Vietnam
Corporation (“CPVC”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, had entered into a trademark licence agreement
with Charoen Pokphand Group (the “CPG Trademark Licence
Agreement”), whereby Charoen Pokphand Group granted CPVC a
non-exclusive right to use the trademarks in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the CPG Trademark Licence Agreement. The
CPG Trademark Licence Agreement took effect on 1 January 2017
and would continue until 31 December 2019. The royalty fee was
equivalent to 1.5% of the net revenue of CPVC (and any subsidiary
which has been granted a sub-licence to use the trademarks) from sale
of goods and provision of services, exclusive of the valued added tax
chargeable on the sale of such products under applicable Vietnam laws

and regulations, commercial discounts, rebates and returned goods.

As at the date of the Company’s announcement, 28 December 2016,
CPF was interested in approximately 47.8% of the issued ordinary
shares of the Company and Charoen Pokphand Group held
approximately 44.75% of the issued share capital of CPF. Due to
Charoen Pokphand Group’s near majority shareholding in CPF,
the Company and Charoen Pokphand Group have agreed to treat
Charoen Pokphand Group as a substantial shareholder of the
Company, accordingly Charoen Pokphand Group and its subsidiaries
and their respective associates were treated as connected persons of
the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
transaction contemplated under the CPG Trademark Licence
Agreement was treated as a continuing connected transaction of the

Company under the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the CPG Trademark Licence
Agreement and the actual royalty fee incurred amounted to
US$42,000,000 and US$29,190,000 respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

CP Trademark Sub-licence

On 28 February 2017, CP China Investment Limited (“CP China
Investment”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a master trademark sub-licence agreement with Chia
Tai Animal Husbandry Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“CT Animal
Husbandry”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Charoen
Pokphand Group (the “Master Trademark Sub-licence Agreement”),
whereby CT Animal Husbandry would sub-licence subsidiaries of
CP China Investment in the PRC (“CP China Subsidiaries”) a non-
exclusive right to use the trademark in the PRC in connection
with the production, distribution and sale of certain designated
food products under Class 29 and the provision of ancillary retail,
management and consultancy services under Class 35. The royalty fee
in respect of the use of the trademark under Class 29 was equivalent
to 0.2% of the net sale value of fresh-food products and 0.4% of the
net sale value of cooked-food products of CP China Subsidiaries from
sale of goods and no additional royalty fee is payable for the use of
the trademark under Class 35. The Master Trademark Sub-licence
Agreement took effect on 1 March 2017 and would continue until 13
August 2018.

As at the date of the Company’s announcement, 28 February 2017,
CPF was interested in approximately 47.8% of the issued ordinary
shares of the Company and Charoen Pokphand Group held
approximately 44.75% of the issued share capital of CPF. Due to
Charoen Pokphand Group’s near majority shareholding in CPF,
the Company and Charoen Pokphand Group have agreed to treat
Charoen Pokphand Group as a substantial shareholder of the
Company, accordingly Charoen Pokphand Group and its subsidiaries
and their respective associates were treated as connected persons
of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. As CT
Animal Husbandry was a subsidiary of Charoen Pokphand Group, the
transaction contemplated under the Master Trademark Sub-licence
Agreement was treated as a continuing connected transaction of the

Company under the Listing Rules.

During the period from 1 March 2017 to 31 December 2017, the cap
for the transactions contemplated under the Master Trademark Sub-

licence Agreement and the actual royalty fee incurred amounted to
US$3,000,000 and US$629,000 respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Listing Rules Compliance

The Internal Audit Department has reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and had no material findings of non-
compliance to report to the independent non-executive Directors of

the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have also
reviewed the Group’s continuing connected transactions and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as

a whole.

In respect of the above continuing connected transactions, the
Company has complied with the relevant announcement, circular and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules from time to time.

KPMG, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
KPMG has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Transactions with joint ventures, associates and [TOCHU
Corporation, rental income and expenses and interest income with
HOEL, which are disclosed as related party disclosures in note 42
to the financial statements of the annual report, do not fall under
the definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction, or were fully exempt under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules and thus are not disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of the
Company which require disclosure in the annual report in accordance

with the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF
THE LISTING RULES

On 17 June 2016, the Company entered into a 5-year syndicated
term loan facility agreement with Cooéperatieve Rabobank U.A.,
Hong Kong Branch and Kasikornbank Public Company Limited
(“Kasikornbank”) as mandated lead arrangers, other lenders (together
the “Lenders”) and Kasikornbank as agent, relating to a facility
amount of US$600 million (the “Facility”) made available to the
Company by the Lenders (the “Facility Agreement”). The Facility was
used to repay all amounts owed by the Company under the US$410
million term loan facility agreement dated 19 December 2012 and to
finance the working capital and/or general corporate requirements of

the Company and its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default
if Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries cease to own the largest percentage of the legal and
beneficial interest in the total issued ordinary share capital of the

Company and cease to have control over the Company.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render all
outstanding liabilities of the Company under the Facility Agreement
to become immediately due and payable and any commitments under

the Facility to be cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure obligation
pursuant to the requirements under Rules 13.18 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In 2016, the Group acquired a 70% equity interest in a company
which is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
animal feed, poultry farming and trading as well as the processing
and trading of chicken meat products in the PRC. As a result of the
acquisition, poultry farming and trading and meat products trading
have been added to the range of the Group’s business in the PRC (the
“PRC Farming and Meat Products Business”)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont,
Mr. Adirek Sripratak, Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, Mr. Bai Shanlin
and Mr. Yu Jianping were also directors (but not substantial
shareholders) of Charoen Pokphand Group and/or a number of
Charoen Pokphand Group subsidiaries (the “Excluded Companies”)
which, including through their subsidiaries, engaged in businesses
including the PRC Farming and Meat Products Business. Accordingly,
these Directors have disclosed that they are considered to have an
interest in businesses which may compete or are likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the PRC Farming and Meat Products
Business of the Group, pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

As the board of directors of the Company functions independently
from the boards of the Excluded Companies, the Directors believe
that the Group is capable of carrying on its PRC Farming and Meat
Products Business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
PRC Farming and Meat Products Business carried on by the Excluded

Companies.

The Directors, including those who are considered to have an interest
in the PRC Farming and Meat Products Business of the Excluded
Companies, will, as and when required under the bye-laws of the
Company, abstain from voting on any resolution of the Board in
respect of any contract, arrangement or proposal in which he or any of

his associates has a material interest.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware that any of the
Directors had interest in any business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
which falls to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 145, every Directors shall be
indemnified out of the funds of the Company against all liabilities

incurred by him/her as such Directors.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability

insurance for its Directors and officers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed

during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was

entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year 2017,

and complied with all the code provisions set out in the Corporate

the Company applied the principles

Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and one non-executive Director. The principal duties of
the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of the
Company’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control. The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s consolidated

financial statements prior to the publication of the final results.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2017 and
up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

KPMG will retire and a resolution for its re-appointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Arunee Watcharananan
Director

Hong Kong
23 February 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB RS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 71 to 210, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed

in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% BAT RS
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a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4(v).

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from the sale of
animal feed products, livestock and aquatic animals and
valued-added processed food products.

The terms of sales contracts relating to goods acceptance by
customers are similar and revenue is generally recognised
when the products are collected by the customers from the
Group’s premises or when the products are delivered to the
location designated by the customers.

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and is, therefore, subject to an
inherent risk of manipulation by management to meet
targets or expectations and because errors in the recognition
of revenue could have a material impact on the Group’s
profit for the year.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

. evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the existence, accuracy and timing of revenue
recognition;

. challenging the revenue recognition policies adopted
by the Group by making inquiries of management and
inspecting a sample of sales contracts to understand
the delivery terms of the transactions to assess the
Group’s timing of revenue recognition with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

. inspecting significant manual adjustments to revenue
raised during the reporting period, enquiring of
management the reasons for such adjustments and
comparing the details of the adjustments with
relevant underlying documentation;

. assessing whether revenue had been recognised in the
appropriate accounting period and in accordance with
the terms of the sales contracts by comparing a sample
of sales transactions recorded around the year end
with relevant underlying documents, which included
goods dispatch notes or documentation indicating the
customers’ acknowledgement of delivery of the goods

sold; and

o identifying significant sales returns from the
sales ledger after the year end and inspecting the
underlying documentation to assess if the related
adjustments to revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate reporting period.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% BAT RS

Valuation of current livestock - swine

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4(k).

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s biological assets mainly represent piglets
and fattening swine which are presented as “current
livestock — swine” in the consolidated financial
statements and are measured at their fair value less costs
of disposal.

Management determined the fair value based on market
prices and, where market prices were not available for
certain age groups, based on market prices of other age
groups, with adjustments to take into account differences
in weight. The Group’s current livestock — swine had an
aggregate value US$296 million as at 31 December 2017.

We identified the valuation of the Group’s current
livestock — swine as a key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s total assets and the
significance of the changes in fair value of biological
assets to the Group’s profit before taxation and because
the valuation of swine requires significant management
judgement and estimation, in particular in determining
the market prices for swine of different age groups and in
making adjustments for weight differences.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of the Group’s

current livestock — swine included the following:

o evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to swine
management, in particular, the classification of swine
into different age groups and the assessment of swine

quantity;

. observing, on a sample basis, the physical count of
swine performed by the Group and comparing the
Group’s swine management records with the quantity
of swine for each different age group as set out in
management’s fair value calculation table;

. assessing the experience and knowledge of the
relevant personnel from the Group who were involved

in assessing the value of swine at the reporting date;

. discussing with management the methodology
adopted in estimating the fair value of swine and
challenging key estimates and assumptions adopted in
the valuations by comparing market prices for swine
of different age groups with available market data and
by utilising our industry knowledge;

. assessing whether the fair value of swine was
calculated in a manner consistent with the Group’s
fair value model by recalculating the fair value of
swine based on the inputs, in particular the market
prices for swine and weight difference adjustments,
adopted by the Group; and

. assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the valuation of swine with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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b E B E R 2

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group’s audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where

applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Yu Wai Sum.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 February 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FEeEZTEWKaE R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 K EZ _F—tE+__H=Z+—HILEE

2017 2016

e = =

Note US$’000 US$’000

M aE E i i FLF

REVENUE KA 5 5,638,036 5,281,193
Cost of sales 8B A (5,027,687) (4,348,607)
Gross profit E=Y 1| 610,349 932,586
Net changes in fair value of biological assets A A Z BB 6 7,389 (33,009)
617,738 899,577

Other income, net HoAth e A\ A 7 36,279 29,795
Selling and distribution costs SR B B4y B AR (258,421) (241,771)
General and administrative expenses TEEEMER (270,264) (244,874)
Finance costs B3 AR 8 (58,664) (35,473)

Share of profits and losses of: VA i B B s 4E
Joint ventures i 21(a) 4,709 4,129
Associates WA H 22(a) 15,351 11,091
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B Bt i %z A 9 86,728 422,474
Income tax ey 12 (45,891) (92,995)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AR AE i A 40,837 329,479
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZEKRE R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE _F—LE+-_H=+—HILFEE

2017 2016
e L
Note US$’000 US$’000
M 7t Ve T n
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HL b 52 i WK A
Items that will not be reclassified HEBSAGENIBEE
subsequently to profit or loss: HiEZHE :
Surplus on revaluation of office premises, net WEMF ENF AR 15 19,470 13,133
Income tax effect Jit 45 6 5 ¢ 34 (4,402) (790)
15,068 12,343
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HEWVEEEH»HE
profit or loss: B ZHA -
Exchange differences related to translation of B BB N B E R
foreign operations HH R I BE 2 A 79,834 (89,603)
Share of other comprehensive income of: JRE Al 3 At 22 TG W 2R
Joint ventures EBLE 21(a) 1,334 (1,278)
Associates iR /A | 22(a) 7,616 (5,051)
Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale WPt EZ REEMLA
investment % 23 32,096 -
Income tax effect Jit 45 6 5 %% 34 (8,024) -
112,856 (95,932)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR B B & A% 4% 3 fib 2 i
THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX W £ 127,924 (83,589)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR A4 4 T W £ 48 %1
THE YEAR 168,761 245,890
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZEKRRE X
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B E _F—LE+-H=+—HILFE

2017 2016
S CE AR
Note US$’°000 US$’000
M aE F 7 Fi FLF
Profit/(loss) attributable to: wAlLUEIR)EE T
Shareholders of the Company NN 41,867 260,278
Non-controlling interest I 452 ) 1 4 25 (1,030) 69,201
40,837 329,479
Total comprehensive income attributable to: EHWHEBAEERT
Shareholders of the Company AN ) B 166,836 184,748
Non-controlling interest I o2 i) P W 2% 1,925 61,142
168,761 245,890
US cents US cents
FAl FEl
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A 2 %) % % FE 4 2 45 1% %5 Al
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14
Basic and diluted AR R W 0.165 1.027

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the AFEZE BB RMEREMEIINHE -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B SRR &

At 31 December 2017 R _F—tHE+_H=+—H

2017 2016
e S 8 R AE
Note US$’000 US$’000
M7t E i i FLF
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥ i By &
Property, plant and equipment LE BN N & 15 1,754,648 1,399,227
Investment properties - E 16 23,897 13,513
Land lease prepayments TEAT L oA S 17 152,496 128,407
Non-current biological assets FEHEYE E 18 65,687 57,216
Intangible assets G E 19 28,798 29,464
Investments in joint ventures NEBLERNRE 21 22,977 19,289
Investments in associates RS AT RIRE 22 126,105 105,279
Available-for-sale investments WAL RE 23 41,751 11,730
Goodwill s 24 37,488 35,121
Other non-current assets At I % B B 43,581 124,692
Deferred tax assets W i TE 34 24,397 3,907
Total non-current assets kW B E A 2,321,825 1,927,845
CURRENT ASSETS i B A
Inventories yeyty 25 612,670 533,371
Current biological assets H A& E 18 351,340 326,582
Trade and bills receivables BEWE SRR RE 26 287,900 202,902
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  JHATHR K ~ 3% 4 M H A
A W R 3k 27 332,320 181,704
Pledged deposits TR 28 24,762 41,005
Time deposits with maturity FWABEB=AZ
over three months EWFER 28 15,305 151,112
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RB &% EY 28 286,807 268,904
Total current assets MR B E E 1,911,104 1,705,580
CURRENT LIABILITIES i By R
Trade and bills payables JEAT & 5 B gk I 5 29 462,834 340,609
Other payables and accruals Atk A R ok B T 4R 30 452,016 346,408
Bank borrowings AT 3K 31 697,749 376,093
Income tax payables FEAT B i A 20,945 18,326
Total current liabilities M B A 1,633,544 1,081,436
NET CURRENT ASSETS 9 B ' A 277,560 624,144
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT My MR AR
LIABILITIES 2,599,385 2,551,989
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBMRRE
At 31 December 2017 W - —t&E+_H=+—H
2017 2016
e Sl ¥ 2 R ARG
Note US$’000 US$’000
M aE #70Fi FEonFoo
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES Ik Ui Bh £ £
Bank borrowings RT3 31 836,465 904,133
Corporate bond I EESR 32 152,818 143,386
Other non-current liabilities H AR A& 33 25,271 24,096
Deferred tax liabilities R A B I AR 34 69,467 61,626
Total non-current liabilities A8 Ik R B £ 1,084,021 1,133,241
NET ASSETS &EEE 1,515,364 1,418,748
EQUITY B 25
Equity attributable to shareholders A 2 i) JBE 3R M A BE 25
of the Company
Issued capital CLEEAT B AR 35 253,329 253,329
Reserves 5 37 961,500 817,937
Proposed final dividend S R I i 13 22,881 52,300
1,237,710 1,123,566
Non-controlling interest I 52 1) WE 2% 277,654 295,182
TOTAL EQUITY B 25 A 1,515,364 1,418,748

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the

Company on 23 February 2018.

Adirek Sripratak %5

Director #H3H

BT DT B o

Arunee Watcharananan

Director BHZH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in
R

B &

N 4

B B AR

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

A

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Equity

AR TRAHE R
Available-
for-sale
Share investment Property PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium  Contributed Capital Merger  revaluation  revaluation reserve  fluctuation Retained final controlling Total
capital account Surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits dividend Total interest equity
k&
C#ff Tt 8 2 afE 24 ik PR MENE KA jif ] Felihitt
feAk i3 B (1] Wl EMRE EWGEE RS il AW KNRA ] [ SO ]
Note Us§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000 US§'000 US§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 Us§'000 US§'000 US§'000
Wi Frfr  ELTx  Eifr  Enfx  EdTr Fxfx Eifx ExTxk Eifx #EiTx Eifrn Enfx EiTr EiTtx
(note 37(a))  (note 37(b))  (note 37(c))  (note 37(d))  (note 37(e))
(Wisr)  (Wasie)  (W#500)  (WRBHd) (K#57eE)
At 1 January 2017 REZ-LE-A-R 253,319 10,740 1,141919 183012 (1,612918) - 46,851 142410 (138980) 1,214,897 52,300 1,123,566 295,182 1,418,748
Profi for the year RAA - - - - - - - - 41,867 - 41,867 (L030) 4087
Other comprehensive income SRR T -
for the year:
Exchange differences on MBS STRE
translation of foreign [ 3%
operations - - - - - - - - 76,879 - - 76,879 1955 9,834
Surplus on revaluation of WEBTEMNFAL
office premises, net 5 - - - - - - 19470 - - - - 19470 - 10
Income tax effect g% 34 - - - - - - (4402) - - - - (4,400) - 402)
Surplus on revaluation of LETH >4
available-for-sale investment RERHAR i) - - - - - 32,09 - - - - - 32,09 - 32,09
Income tax effect P 34 - - - - - (8,024) - - - - - (8,024) - (8,024)
Share of other comprehensive FE A S 2 i <
income of:
Joint ventures iy 1% a) - - - - - - - - 1,334 - - 1334 - 1,334
Associates W%ﬁ\ﬂ ll(u) - - - - - - - - 7,616 - - 7,616 - 7,616
Total comprehensive income A 2 T M 4 AR
for the year - - - - - 100 15,068 - 85,829 41,867 - 166,836 1925 168,761
Acquisition of non-controlling ORIk 4% o HE 25
interest - - - (392) - - - - - - - (392) (3,036) (3428)
Capital injection by a non- ERidilizi il
controlling equity holder [ IINZS - - - - - - - - - - - - 793 793
Dividend paid to bR =t
non-controlling equity holders AR A - - - - - - - - - - - - (17,210) (17,210)
2016 final dividend declared HR-F—AF
FEBE - - - - - - - - - - (52,300) (52,300) - (52,300)
2017 final dividend proposed i e St
E]E:) B - - - - - - - - - 2,81 - - -
Transfer in/(out) H\ /() - - - - - - - 18413 - (18,413) - - - -
At 31 December 2017 REZZ-LEFZA
=1—H 253,319 10,740 1,119,038* 12,620%  (1,612,918)* 24,012% 61,925% 160,823* (53,150)  1,138351* 12,881 1,237,710 177,654 1,515,364
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AR TRAHER
Share Property PRC Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium  Contributed Capital Merger  revaluation reserve  fluctuation Retained final controlling Total
capital account Surplus reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits dividend Total interest equity
C#ff Fety e ik wl b PEO MENE AR ik Febichitt

Tk R B (1] W EWRE R it M KMERL fd [ .
Note Us§'000 Us§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 Uss'000 Us§'000 US§'000
Wi FErfr  FxTx  FExTxk Fifx Einfx o EdTr #Fifxn Enfx FiTx o FExfr Eifx Eifx o FiTx
(note 37(a))  (note 37(c))  (note 37(d))  (note 37(e))
(Wit5ra)  (Wiksne)  (Waksid)  (Witsie)

At 1 January 2016 REF-RE-A—H 153319 10,740 1,272,669 13012 (1,612918) 34514 132,731 (51,107) 964,297 08,6044 1,085,912 19970 1,315,882
Profit for the year AL BA - - - - - - - - 260,278 - 160,178 69,201 3294719

Other comprehensive income SRR -

for the year:

Exchange differences on ST BT

translation of foreign operations 34 2 81 - - - - - - - (81,544) - - (81,544) (8059) (89,603)
Surplus on revaluation of office LEL Eaaizdts

premises, net 15 - - - - - 13,133 - - - - 13,133 - 13,133
Income tax effect ity e 34 - - - - - (790) - - - - (190) - (790)
Share of other comprehensive Pl b 2 i -

income of:
Joint ventures RERE ) - - - - - - - (1,278) - - (178) - (1,278)
Associates BAAR 12(a) - - - - - - - (5,051) - - (5,051) - (5,01)

Total comprehensive income AE W2 T A

for the year - - - - - 1238 - (87813) 160,278 - 184,748 61,142 245,890
Acquisition of subsidiaries e B 4 38 - - - - - - - - - - - 20,080 20,080
Capital injection by a non- Jebi R

controlling equity holder HABR - - - - - - - - - - - 1,530 1,530
Dividend paid to non-controlling % ff F el

equity holders ERRERA - - - - - - - - - - - (17,540) (17,540)
2015 final dividend declared ER-B-HERYRA - - - - - - - - - (68,64) (68,644) - (68,644)
2016 interim dividend SE-AEPHBRE 13 - - (18:450) - - - - - - - (78:450) - (18:450)
2016 final dividend proposed RE_Z-AEAMRE D - - (52,300) - - - - - - 52,300 - - -
Transfer in/(out) HA /() - - - - - - 9,678 - (9,678) - - - -
At 31 December 2016 WEB-AEHZA

=t-H 153,329 10,740% 1,141,919 13012¢ (1,612,918)* 46,857* 142,410% (138980)¢  1,214,897* 52,300 1,123,566 195,181 1,418,748
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * E ARG S B RLE N Z S R
US$961,500,000 (2016: US$817,937,000) in the consolidated 6,150.08 %70 (ZF— 4« 8f81,793.7#3%50)

statement of financial position.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N % m

B E R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE _F—LHFE+F_H=+—HILFEE
2017 2016
—“Z—LH TR
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t F I Fi E S on
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax i 5t i ¥ 86,728 422,474
Adjustments for: AR
Bank and other interest income SRAT B AR BN 7 (14,218) (9,104)
Net changes in fair value of investment wEMENDALE B FTHE
properties 7 2,091 272
Net changes in fair value of derivative A A 4 i T L Y Ao 5 B A
financial instruments 7 13,025 (5,214)
Finance costs 7 B AR 8 58,664 35,473
Depreciation of property, LIE I T
plant and equipment 9 105,430 89,086
Amortisation of intangible assets ST B R g 9 2,553 2,597
Amortisation of land lease prepayments FEAT Mo B 2 Y 9 3,840 3,588
Depreciation of biological assets stated AP B F T R
at cost less accumulated depreciation WAL R AR IR 2
and impairment EYEREZITE 9 35,991 28,174
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEwE - BEREHEZ
equipment, net i 18 9 961 199
Impairment of trade receivables, net JE WK B B R R 9 1,754 952
Impairment of prepayments, deposits and AR~ ER
other receivables i JEE S R K Uk A 35 R 9 2,419 -
Net changes in fair value of biological HEYEEANRMEZ ST
assets 6 (7,389) 33,009
Share of profits and losses of: P A i ) B s 4 -
Joint ventures aEAE 21(a) (4,709) (4,129)
Associates W& A W] 22(a) (15,351) (11,091)
271,789 586,286
Increase in inventories 7 & B (55,667) (38,619)
Increase in biological assets He W A W (58,851) (94,994)
Increase in trade and bills receivables JE W B 5 B ik B T 4 3 (70,435) (41,166)
Increase in prepayments, HATER - &R
deposits and other receivables FL il JFE WS R 3K 34 (57,406) (47,327)
Increase in trade payables JE £+ & 5 MR 2k 3% m 100,840 61,257
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HAbEM IR AR EH
and accruals (BA),/ ¥ m (29,372) 25,058
Cash generated from operations REBEAZHSE 100,898 450,495
Interest paid [BEE DS (70,966) (57,498)
Income tax paid oY B3 Bt (62,896) (87,923)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated BBEEBHE), B2
from operating activities HeEREEH (32,964) 305,074
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ZEAEBRERER
Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE
2017 2016
G- Sl 2 TR AN
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt F o Fi E s on
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREGHZHEHRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment [ E ¥ 3% ~ B = K ik (286,040) (209,429)
Decrease in other non-current liabilities Fo At I 7 B £ B A (663) (1,823)
Increase in land lease prepayments FEAT 1 L e B (15,197) (4,605)
Decrease/(increase) in other HAb IR F B EE WA, ()
non-current assets 2,634 (108,993)
Investments in subsidiaries & Wt E A F) 38 1,778 (49,242)
Investments in associates R g /A (146) (60,221)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest WL e i o) R 2R (3,428) -
Dividend received from joint ventures WA B EERE 2,355 3,231
Dividend received from associates W B 7 o ] R B 2,287 9,182
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWmE - BEX
plant and equipment WA AR I 1,719 1,988
Receipt from PRC government % 55 8t 3 i A% v R B
on factories relocation B 5,848 18,347
Interest received B &IPS 14,218 9,104
Net cash flows used in investing activities 3% & 1 By it H 2 B & i & 3 8 (274,635) (392,461)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MERHZHSRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from new bank borrowings R AT A R 28 (c) 1,168,983 1,435,449
Repayment of bank borrowings BB RITAE K 28 (¢) (949,920) (1,381,306)
New corporate bond Fo R nE X 32 - 144,842
Capital injection from a non-controlling e 4 o) e A 2 B RTE AN AR
equity holder 793 1,530
Decrease in pledged deposits TR 3K A 17,935 4,077
Decrease in time deposits with maturity FMHBEBR==MH=Z
over three months T AT 2K A 140,422 44,904
Dividend paid to shareholders of the BT BB T A 2 B B R
Company (52,300) (147,094)
Dividend paid to non-controlling equity AT T i 4 il ke A B R B
holders (17,210) (17,540)
Net cash flows from financing activities MERHHAZIHERERH 308,703 84,862
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN BERBEEFHED
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ¥, (W) 58 1,104 (2,525)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning EPMZIBERBEEHED
of year 268,904 288,238
Effect of foreign exchange rate APEE RSB 2 B HH
changes, net 16,799 (16,809)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBERBEEHD
AT END OF YEAR 28 286,807 268,904
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

b #® H

B % R = MY &L

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

C. P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company” or “CPP”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
ordinary shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are located at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and 21st Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong,

respectively.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”), joint ventures and associates of the Group were

involved in the following activities:

. (i) manufacture and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding,
farming, and sale of livestock, and (iii) manufacture
and sale of value-added, processed food products in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

. (i) manufacture and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals, and
(iii) manufacture and sale of value-added, processed
food products in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam

(“Vietnam”)
o investment and property holding

At 31 December 2017, the directors consider the immediate
holding company of the Company to be Charoen Pokphand
Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), which is incorporated
in the Kingdom of Thailand and shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and remains to be as such as
at the date of approval of these financial statements. CPF is
a significantly owned company of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), which is incorporated in the
Kingdom of Thailand.
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2.1

b E B ER

o F

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. These financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for office premises, investment properties,
certain biological assets, a listed available-for-sale investment
and derivative financial instruments, which have been
measured at fair value or at fair value less costs of disposal,
where appropriate. These financial statements are presented
in United States dollars (“US$”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“US$000”) except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full, except for
the unrealised loss which are eliminated only to the extent

that there is no evidence of impairment.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit

balance.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.1
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #® H

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2017 B E _F—tHE+_H=+—HILEE

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that

are first effective for the current year. Of these, the following

amendments may be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to IAS 7 Amendments to TAS 7 Statement of cash flows - Disclosure
initiative

Amendments to [AS 12 Amendments to TAS 12 Income tax - Recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealised losses

Amendments to [FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

Annual improvements to

IFRSs 2014 - 2016 cycle

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
Amendments to IAS 7, the adoption of these amendments to
IFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these financial

statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendment or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current year.

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of cash flows -
Disclosure initiative

Amendments to IAS 7 require the Group to provide
disclosures (note 28(c)) that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash

flows and non-cash changes.

B AR

A

2.1

2.2
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB issued a number of new standards, amendments and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2017 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may

be relevant to the Group:

Zﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁ@h‘ﬂ*i?&ﬂ’ﬂl‘%ﬂﬁ%iﬁ%
28l

BEAMBEHRET A > BEFEENZE
B O A ORI Y A ST AR R R > K
FF-LETZAZtT—HIREENRE
B> HLAE AR A B B WA R AN o T 5 64 B
SR [ VT HEAT B AT R~ T A S R

Amendments to [FRS 2 Classification and measurement of share-based payment
transactions !

Amendments to [FRS 10 Amendments to [FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

and IAS 28 and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

- Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture *

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

IFRS 16 Leases*

Annual Improvements to

IFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle

Amendments to [FRS 1 First time adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards and Amendments to IAS 28

Investments in associates and joint ventures!

Amendments to [AS 40 Transfers of Investment property'
IFRIC 22 Foreign curreny transactions and advance consideration!
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments’

2018

2019

adoption

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #® H

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2017 B E _F—tHE+_H=+—HILEE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and amendments to IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers the impact that
adopting the amendment and new standards will have on the
consolidated financial statements are unlikely to be significant,

except that the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases.
IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee
of leases for properties, plant and equipment and land which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase
in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note 40,
the Group has non-cancellable operating leases commitments
of US$545,011,000 (31 December 2016: US$420,095,000)
as at 31 December 2017, the majority of which is payable in
the second to fifth years or five years after the reporting date.
Some of these amounts may therefore need to be recognised
as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
IFRS 16 is adopted.

However, the Group has not yet determined to what extent
these commitments will result in the recognition of an asset
and a liability for future payments. The Group will need to
perform a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts
of new assets and liabilities arising from operating lease

commitments on adoption of IFRS 16.

IFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend

to adopt the standard before its mandatory effective date.

Apart from the aforesaid significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements upon adoption of IFRS 16 on
its mandatory effective date, below also explained the impact
of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15, which are unlikely to be significant, on
the consolidated financial statements upon adoption on their

mandatory effective date.

B AR

A

2.3
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new classification and measurement
requirements for financial assets on the basis of the Group’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets,
and a new expected credit loss model that replaces the
incurred loss impairment model used in IAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, with the result that
a loss event will no longer need to occur before an impairment

allowance is recognised.

Based on management’s initial assessment, the Group does not
believe that the new classification requirements will have a
material impact on its accounting for financial instruments.
At 31 December 2017, the Group had equity investments
classified as available-for-sale (note 23) that are held for
long-term strategic purposes. These equity investments
will be designated as equity investments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income under IFRS 9.
Consequently, all fair value gains and losses will be reported
in other comprehensive income, no impairment losses will
be recognised in profit or loss and no gains or losses will be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal. The Group also does
not anticipate that impairment based on expected credit loss

model will have significant financial impacts.

In respect of initial recognition, measurement, impairment of
financial assets and derecognition, the current policy is set out

in note 2.4(m).
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. IFRS 15
will replace the existing revenue standards, IAS 18 Rewvenue,
which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering
of services, and IAS 11 Construction Contracts, which specifies

the accounting for revenue from construction contracts.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in note
2.4(v)(i). In the year ended 31 December 2017 before IFRS
15 becomes effective, revenue arising from sale of goods is
generally recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been passed to the customers in accordance
with IAS 18 Rewvenue. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised
when the customers obtain control of the promised goods
or services in the contract. Transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators that will be

considered in determining when the transfer of control occurs.

Based on the assessment of the existing contracts signed with
certain contract broiler farms, the Group considered the
provision of raw materials of certain chicken food products
(including feed products and day-old-chicks to contract broiler
farms) will not be recognised as revenue under the transfer-
of-control approach in the new standard. The Group will
continue to recognise these raw materials transferred, any
consideration received from the contract broiler farms and the
farming costs as assets until the related chicken food products

are sold.

The Group plans to elect the cumulative effect transition
method (instead of the full retrospective or retrospective
transition method) for the adoption of IFRS 15 and will
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
Changes in accounting for contracts with contract farms would
result in a decrease of US$2.6 million approximately in both
net assets and total equity (US$2.2 million is included in
retained profits attributable to shareholders of the Company)
on 1 January 2018. The actual impacts upon the initial
adoption of IFRS 15 may differ as the assessment completed to
date is based on the information available, up to the reporting
date of these financial statements, to the Group. Further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group’s unaudited financial statements for the
three months ended 31 March 2018. The Group may also
change its accounting policy elections, including the transition
options, until the standards are initially applied in that

financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement in
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the

relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(i) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(iii)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. Investments in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method, as

for associates (note 2.4(c)).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the

financial and operating policies decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method and are recognised initially at cost. The

cost of the investments includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of equity-accounted investees,
after adjustments to align the accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date that significant
influence commences until the date that significant

influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount
of the investment including any long-term interest
that forms part thereof, is reduced to zero, and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has

made payments on behalf of the investee.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(a)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;

or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(a)

the entity and the Group are members of

the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;
one entity is a joint venture of a

third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Related parties (continued)

(ii)

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies: (continued)

(e)

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to

the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in (i);

a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.

A
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of the group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over (ii) the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2.4(1)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations of entities under common
control are accounted for using the pooling-of-interests
method. Under the pooling-of-interests method, the
assets and liabilities of the acquiree are stated at their
historical carrying values at the date of acquisition and
the difference between the consideration transferred
for a business combination under common control
and the total of (i) the acquisition date historical
net asset values of the acquiree attributable to the
Group and (ii) the pre-acquisition reserves of the
acquiree combined by the Group is accounted for as a
contribution from or a distribution to, as appropriate,
holding companies in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Accordingly, there is no goodwill
or a gain on bargain purchase as a result of a business
combination under common control. The results of the
acquiree under a business combination under common
control are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Office premises

Office premises are stated at their open market
values on the basis of annual professional valuations
performed at each financial year end. Changes arising
on the revaluation of office premises are dealt with as
movements in the property revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual premise basis, the excess of the deficit is
charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the

deficit previously charged.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the valuation of the office premises over their

estimated useful lives of 30 years to 50 years.

On disposal of an office premise, the relevant portion
of the property revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a

movement in reserves.
Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of other property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after other property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of other property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognised such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of other property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

2% to 4.5%
6% to 15%
10% to 33.33%

Industrial buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles and transport facilities 9% to 33.33%

Where parts of other property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial

year end.

Other property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the silos, factories
and warehouses under construction. Construction
in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and

ready for use.
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values of investment properties are included in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in

the period of the retirement or disposal.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner
occupied property becomes an investment property,
any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property at the date of change in use is

accounted for as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

U]

Investment properties (continued)

any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of
the property is recognised in profit or loss in the

period the change in use took place.

any resulting increase in the carrying amount
is credited to profit or loss, to the extent the
increase reverses a previous impairment loss for
that property, or restores the carrying amount
of the property to an amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for
the property in prior years; and any remaining
part of the increase in the carrying amount
is credited directly to equity in the property
revaluation reserve. On subsequent disposal
of the property, the relevant portion of
the property revaluation reserve realised is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent customer relationship

of the Group and are stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position at cost less accumulated

amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)

and impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite

useful lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over

the assets’ estimated useful lives, from the date they

are available for use. The estimated useful lives used

for this purpose are 14-15 years. Both the period and

method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

(k)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases, net of any incentives received
from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Land lease prepayments represent costs of land use
rights paid to governmental authorities in mainland
China and Vietnam. Land lease payments under
operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over

the lease terms.
Biological assets

Biological assets include swine, poultry and aquatic
livestock and are measured at their fair value less costs
of disposal, except where the fair value cannot be
measured reliably or when the costs are not materially
different from the fair value due to short production
cycle, in those cases they are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses and where appropriate,

less any accumulated depreciation.

Gains or losses arising from initial recognition of
biological assets at fair value less costs of disposal and
from a change in fair value less costs of disposal of
biological assets are included in profit or loss in the

period in which it arises.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

Biological assets (continued)

The cost of biological assets comprises its purchase
price and any costs attributable in raising the biological

assets.

For biological assets stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses,
the depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
method to write off the cost of these biological assets
over their estimated productive period of 12 months to
36 months. The expected productive period of these
biological assets is reviewed regularly, and adjusted
when appropriate. The carrying values of these
biological assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in the circumstances indicate that

the carrying values may not be fully recoverable.
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets, investment properties,
biological assets stated at fair value less costs of disposal
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash

generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39, other than
derivatives, are classified as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale investments, as appropriate. The
Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus

transaction cost.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account

any discount or premium on acquisition and
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interest rate amortisation is included in “Other EEZEBRMES P MITE K
income, net” in profit or loss. The loss arising BEHEH I PR -
from impairment is recognised in “General and
administrative expenses” in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(ii)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-
derivative financial assets in equity investments.
Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated at fair value

through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale
investments are subsequently measured at
fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss
is reclassified from the available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss.

When the fair value of unlisted equity
investments cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset,

whether significant or not, it includes the
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which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest

rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
either directly or through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using
the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future

recovery.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of
the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery
is credited to “General and administrative

expenses” in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Available-for-sale investments carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets

are not reversed.

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair

value

For available-for-sale investments carried at fair
value, the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of

investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired,
an amount comprising the difference between
its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in profit
or loss, is removed from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve and recognised

in profit or loss.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)
(iii)  Available-for-sale investments carried at fair

value (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost.
The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below
its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in the available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve.
Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a

financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

Derecognition (continued)

(ii)

the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the assets. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights

and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be

required to repay.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39, other
than derivatives, are classified as loans and borrowings.
The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities
are recognised initially at fair value and net of directly

attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in

“Finance costs” in profit or loss.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled,

or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
deferred income at its fair value, and is amortised in
profit or loss over the terms of the guarantee as income
from guarantee issued. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such information

is obtainable.

Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised to the category of asset in accordance with
the Group’s policies. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

Provision are recognised if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in deferred income in respect
of that guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised,

less accumulated amortisation.
Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or
loss.

24 FESTHHRBE (&)

(0)

(p)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

MBERRER

ACHR B AT 2 W B AR A IR TS L R
i S AR B N AR R 12 IR B TR s
B 9] 1R S A sk JEL Wy 2 32 ARk ik I DA A
RN ZZ K - MEBEERGT
BIUCLA 2 oG e 2 2 AR LN > 3 3%
VEORAEII RS > PR AR S OB
THRRZBA - CBRITZMBEERE
[5] 77 AT WRF 2 2 SO A TS AR B AL I
24 J5 R WAy e F e SE (n BB I
BEEER) -

il 72 B 47 3% 8 DR 17 Wl T e IR
7 > S0 AR B A 2 T 2 1B SR e R
Ty BE o ik N S I AT TR AR
BT > S 0 25 e i A o 28 2B G B
25 P9 B R AR A S

il B () 5 DR F5 A A VT REAR B AR 42
P AR ) 2 00 R i A 8 T A R
Be (i) AR B 92 ) 2 RAE S B
A0 % 1 R B0 IR 7 Lt B Ak I T B
JA A 2 i (BP0 ke o 2 4 A
Rt HRay) o QR A -

TTEEMTA

A7 Az 4 i R R ) U R R 5 RT L
FAE HZ A RMEAR > DA R
fEFFAHE o A7l TRIZA RS
B BB ERE > BB B
B o AR 2> F A6 5 B A Y i A
JE R 3 E AR 2R o

—® - t&&

#

107



108

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B AR

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the
weighted average basis, and net realisable value after
making due allowance for any obsolete or slow-moving
items. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the

purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in “Finance costs”

in profit or loss.

A

B

24 FESTHHRBE (&)

(@ =&

T8I HRA (R T A - 3 92 ) sl i
030 B i B A A 0 I H ARz T S B
T P Z B SR o A 45
ELEYIRE ~ HHES TORIEE Ay BLZ
BRA o 15 B A TG 1 A S R
B 5 T % Hy B i AE 1o T R AR FH AT o

(r) RERBESEEY
BE&ERBE&EEMIIEBE - HHE
R R EB R E (TR
BACMERZ B4 > ML EEEE
EBEARE KR > BB HARE > — B
EABARZEZMAN) - HMsEAB
SRMBRMT > T T RAE WA A
HEBSEMZ EERHZBRITEX
HEFBERSERBEESEDN -

(s) #HE
EHUAFHEHIEHENERE (EE
i) RIRTTRE BB AR K EIAT
AFRAEEEL > MZECAETHEZ
FEAG &% > TR O AT R -

HOTBL SR ORI > B e
BT DR AT G T AL B 3
TP 4 9 AR DA W BRARL G A5 o B IR D A
£ 700 I B B S TR A T 2
[ B RA A o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

- -t FF K



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B ER

o F

Notes to Financial Statements

B 3R R MY A
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

®

Provisions (continued)

A contingent liability recognised in a business
combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of (i) the
amount that would be recognised in accordance with
the general guidance for provisions above; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with

the guidance for revenue recognition.
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

(i) when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

Income tax (continued)
(ii) in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

(i) when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

(ii)  in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or

recovered.
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the period that the costs, which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the

relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(i)

(it)

(iii)

(iv)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the customers, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership,

nor effective control over the goods sold;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset; and

dividend income, when the equity holders’ right

to receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
(including directors) is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that

the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the option expires

(when it is released directly to retained profits).
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

(x)

Share-based payments (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share, if any. As at 31 December 2017 and
2016, and up to the reporting date, the Company had

no share options outstanding.

Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into

the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC
government, subsidiaries of the Group in mainland
China are required to make specific contributions
to the state-controlled retirement plan at rates not
more than 20% (the percentage to be determined by
each of the government of the provinces, autonomous
regions or municipalities) of the total salaries of the
employees in mainland China. Certain provinces,
autonomous regions or municipalities are overburdened
by the pension insurance due to higher number
of retired people, it is required to make specific
contributions at rates higher than 20% (the percentage
to be determined by each of the government of the
provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities) of
the total salaries of the employees upon approval of
the ministry of labour and the ministry of finance.
The PRC government is responsible for the pension
liability to the retired employees. The employees of
the subsidiaries are entitled to a monthly pension at
their retirement dates. The subsidiaries have no further
obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the

annual contributions.

Severance allowance

The severance pay to employees in Vietnam is accrued
at the end of each reporting period for Vietnamese
employees who have more than 12 months in service
up to 31 December 2008 at the rate of one-half of
the average monthly salary for each year of service
up to 31 December 2008 in accordance with the
Labour Code, the Law on Social Insurance and related
implementing guidance in Vietnam. Commencing from
1 January 2009, the average monthly salary used in
this calculation is revised at the end of each reporting
period using the average monthly salary of the 6-month
period up to the reporting date. Any changes to the

accrued amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(v)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Severance allowance (continued)

Pursuant to Law on Social Insurance effective from 1
January 2009, a subsidiary of the Group in Vietnam
and its employees are required to contribute to
an unemployment insurance fund managed by the
Vietnam Social Insurance Agency. The contribution
to be paid by each party is calculated at 1% of the
lower of an employee’s basic salary and 20 times the
general minimum salary level as specified by the
Vietnam government from time to time. With the
implementation of the unemployment insurance
scheme, the Group is no longer required to provide
severance allowance for the service period after 1
January 2009.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use. The
capitalisation rate for the year is based on the actual
cost of the related borrowings. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(aa)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits or
contributed surplus within the equity section of the
consolidated statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and

declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United
States dollar, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period and differences are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are currencies
other than the United States dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into United States dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of the exchange fluctuation
reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into United States dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries, which arise
throughout the year are translated into United States
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(ab) Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic, operating and/or
other characteristics. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Notes 15(d), 16(b), 18(e), 23(b), 27(b) and 30(b) contain
information about the assumptions relating to valuation of
office premises, investment properties, biological assets, a
listed available-for-sale investment and derivative financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainties are

as follows:
(a) Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for provision for impairment loss of the
Group’s trade receivables is based on the evaluation
of collectability and the aging analysis of the trade
receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be

required.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

3

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment
is recognised for the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount when events or
changes in circumstance indicate the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount of
the assets, or, where appropriate, the cash generating
unit to which they belong, is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. The recoverable
amounts are determined based on fair value less costs
of disposal which are based on the best information
available to reflect the amount obtainable at the
reporting date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable and willing
parties, after deducting the costs of disposal. For the
estimation of value in use, the Group’s management
estimates future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and chooses a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the aging
analysis of its inventories at each reporting date,
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for use in production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a
product by product basis at each reporting date and

makes allowances for obsolete items.
Provision for guarantee

Provision for guarantee are recognised if and when
it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and
the amount of that claim on the Group is measured
at the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure
require to settle the present obligation at the reporting
date, and the amount initially recognised as deferred
income less cumulative amortisation. The Group
carries out regular review on the creditability of its
customers which the Group has provided guarantee
for. A provision is made based on the assessment on
the probability of cash outflow to settle the obligation
under the guarantee. The ultimate liability due may
vary from the amounts provided and will be dependent

upon the eventual outcome of any settlement.
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4

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into the
following three reportable operating segments based on their

products and services:

. the China agri-food segment is engaged in (i)
manufacture and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding,
farming and sale of livestock, and (iii) manufacture

and sale of value-added, processed food products in the

PRC;

o the Vietnam agri-food segment is engaged in (i)
manufacture and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals, and
(iii) manufacture and sale of value-added, processed

food products in Vietnam; and

o the investment and property holding segment is
engaged in leasing properties owned by the Group and

investments in group companies.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment results,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that bank interest income and finance

costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude pledged deposits, time deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets and other unallocated

corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank borrowings, corporate bond,
income tax payables and deferred tax liabilities as these

liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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b E B E R 2

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (a) FEHKESE
The following tables present revenue, profit or loss and VLT $ 3 2 A 45 1 4% 7T 2 3R A 43
certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information REE_Z—-LERF-ANETZ
for the Group’s reportable operating segments for the AEZT—HIEEERNZHBA - HiE X
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. ETEE ABELBHZER -
Year ended 31 December 2017 ®E_Z—-LET_A=ZT—HILE
BE
Investment
China Vietnam  and property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
g R A MR R REERME
BHEH RmEH e ik
US$’°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$’000
FiFr FiwFi #iFi FiFr
Segment revenue BB
Sales to external customers HETHKEF 3,691,402 1,946,478 156 5,638,036
Segment results AEER
The Group N 208,826 (80,133) (8,005) 120,688
Share of profits and losses of: JE Al i ) % s 48
Joint ventures oL 2% 3 4,709 - - 4,709
Associates L /N 15,351 - - 15,351
228,886 (80,133) (8,005) 140,748
Reconciliation: WEEE
Bank interest income AT B A 4,644
Finance costs A (58,664)
Profit before tax I B 46 86,728
Other segment information HiwsaBER
Depreciation and amortisation PrEE B B 69,591 77,448 775 147,814
Capital expenditure” 2N 263,708 52,044 95 315,847
Additions of other non-current assets”™ B H M IEFH G E 79,622 53,795 - 133,417
Including additions to property, plant and equipment B - W Kt LA b

G|

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017 #E _F—tHFE+_H=+—HILEE

4 REIEER(HE)

and land lease prepayments, but excluding assets from

acquisition of a subsidiary.

Including (i) non-current assets from acquisition of a

subsidiary, and (ii) additions to non-current biological

assets and other non-current assets.
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B 7% 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2017 B E _F—tHE+_H=+—HILEE

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 BESBER (E)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TUEHRKLEIE(E)

At 31 December 2017

R_-Z—-tHE+_H=1+—H

Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
H B A WRERN  RERME
R fTE 37 B bl E 37 ok
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
BT #iFi FEF B
Segment assets SEEE 2,690,323 1,105,266 446,780 4,242,369
Reconciliation: WEIEE -
Elimination of intersegment receivables 4348 i 2 E Wk #K 85 (385,932)
Unallocated assets RAOBERE 376,492
Total assets g 4,232,929
Segment liabilities ARAR 1,103,245 219,944 2,864 1,326,053
Reconciliation: THEEE
Elimination of intersegment payables AT 22 A SR B (385,932)
Unallocated liabilities R4 HLE & 1,777,444
Total liabilities maE 2,717,565
Other segment information HivaBE R
[nvestments in joint ventures REBLENRE 22,977 - - 22,977
Investments in associates RS A EHRE 126,105 - - 126,105
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % ) & Mt &
Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 BESBER ()
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWERKEIE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2016 BE_Z—-NETH=Z1+—HIL¥E

JE

Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
i R MR ER  BRERMHE
BEH B Y E i
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FEr T E o e FEI T
Segment revenue BB
Sales to external customers BETIKRES 3,034,712 2,246,356 125 5,281,193
Segment results SEER
The Group AR 211,651 234,860 (7,043) 439,468
Share of profits and losses of: JE Al A R s R -
Joint ventures L 4,129 - - 4,129
Associate T A ) 11,091 - - 11,091
226,871 234,860 (7,043) 454,688
Reconciliation: HEEE
Bank interest income WARBRA 3,259
Finance costs W AR (35,473)
Profit before tax I 58 i 25 422,474
Other segment information Aty 43 B & B
Depreciation and amortisation P78 T B 48,787 74,057 601 123,445
Capital expenditure’ BB X 184,120 48,675 11 232,806
Additions of other non-current assets™ 57 8 Al IR 37 B 268,908 45,059 - 313,967

Including additions to property, plant and equipment

and land lease prepayments, but excluding assets from

acquisition of subsidiaries.

Including (i) non-current assets from acquisition

of subsidiaries, and (ii) additions to non-current

biological assets and other non-current assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2017 R E _-FE—LHE+_H=+—HIL4EH
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 reEHEER (E)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TUEHRKLEIE(E)
At 31 December 2016 R_E—AE+-H=1+—H
Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
R A MR RN RERME
BREE B S i
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FEr T EILFI E FI T
Segment assets nHEE 2,068,481 1,047,506 491,166 3,613,153
Reconciliation: WEIEE -
Elimination of intersegment receivables 2348 il 2 JE Wtk 4K 85 (452,689)
Unallocated assets RABEE 472,961
Total assets g R 3,633,425
Segment liabilities nEARE 979,376 181,319 3,107 1,163,802
Reconciliation: WEEE -
Elimination of intersegment payables I 2 AL SR 8 (452,689)
Unallocated liabilities FRAH A H 1,503,564
Total liabilities maE 2,214,677
Other segment information HivaBE R
Investments in joint ventures NEBLENRE 19,289 - - 19,289
Investments in associate RS A F IR E 105,279 - - 105,279

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

- -t FF K



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

4

b E B E R 2

(continued)

(i)

(ii)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R & M =
Year ended 31 December 2017 E R —LtHE T _H=1T—HILH)E
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEsHER (E)
(b) Geographical information (by HEZEH
Revenue from external customers () HAREFZHA
2017 2016
SELE SRR
US$’000 US$’000
F Tt Fr T
Mainland China o K B 3,693,895 3,039,619
Vietnam 78 1,878,164 2,167,119
Elsewhere At Ty 65,977 74,455
5,638,036 5,281,193
The revenue information shown above is based B AERE TS PR AE
on the location of the customers. A K o
Non-current assets (ii) FEREEE
2017 2016
=
US$’000 US$’000
F T Fx T
Mainland China el PN 1,750,727 1,438,180
Vietnam R 450,643 435,008
Elsewhere Al s 5 54,307 39,020
2,255,677 1,912,208
The non-current assets information shown R e R T
above is based on the location of assets and B AE AN 5 > W R 5 T AL
excludes available-for-sale investments and B 2 Y % 0 A AT B o

deferred tax assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2017 B E ~F—tHE+_H=+—H L4
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (K)
(continued)
(c) Information about major customers (c) HEBHXEEZFHER
The Group had the following customer (including ARMEEED TR D (A 4 E ip
sales to entities which are known to the Group to be B 3% % 5 36 W P bl o BE B 0l Y
under common control with the customer) with whom %) > A8 5 A I R 4R R I A
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue f910% :
during the year:
2017 2016
- Sl i 2 TR N
US$’000 US$’000
Ve n BV
CPG and its subsidiaries CPG I H M & A =] 862,676 634,871
REVENUE 5 KA
Revenue represents: (i) the aggregate of the invoiced value of WeAFE © G)BRBEE S BURF P n 2 > g
goods sold, net of value-added tax and government surcharges, BERYE G NE 2 B A s (i)
and after allowances for goods returned and trade discounts; FEHBREEDEREBREBHHEWRA -
and (ii) rental income from investment and property holding
operations.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: W AT
2017 2016
—F—LH ZRB A
US$’000 US$’000
FILFIT FILFIT
Sales of goods from: SHELMRIEE -
China agri-food operations o R
— Feed business — il Bl 3,244,037 2,899,040
— Farm business —BIHE 45,361 -
— Food business —BERER 402,004 135,672
Vietnam agri-food operations R RN
— Feed business i EY 817,163 878,151
— Farm business — /I EH 995,634 1,227,079
— Food business S-S E Y 133,681 141,126
5,637,880 5,281,068
Rental income from investment and property BERWEERER ZHERA
holding operations 156 125
5,638,036 5,281,193
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % ) & Mt &
Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE
NET CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF 6 EYMEEARBEZEBFE
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
Net changes in fair value of biological assets represent the AEBMZEMEEARBEZHBFHNRER
difference in fair value from 1 January 2017 to 31 December —EF—tH#E—-H—-HEZZF—LHET+H
2017. Net fair value changes consist of (i) negative realised Z=t+—HZAREZEZR - ARMEZEBHE
fair value changes of US$52,416,000 (2016: US$86,644,000) FRFBOR-F—LE—A—HHEHEDYD
in respect of biological assets held as at 1 January 2017 and (ii) BREZOBHEARMEZ ABES5 2416830
positive unrealised fair value changes in biological assets stated (ZZF— N 8,66448FE L) KR _F
at fair value as at 31 December 2017 of US$59,805,000 (2016: —tEF+ZH=Z1+—HUARMEI RN LY
US$53,635,000). B R B A 2 IEAEH)5,980.58 K0
(A4 :5363.58KT) °
OTHER INCOME, NET 7 HWm A FE
An analysis of other income, net, is as follows: HAb W AF# T :
2017 2016
—E L TR
US$’000 US$’000
FILF FIL T
Bank interest income HATH B WA 4,644 3,259
Other interest income HAbF BB 9,574 5,845
Rental income MERA 4,473 2,197
Government grants B il By 7,978 5,261
Gain on relocation of factories TR B ik - 8,794
Income from sales of consumables 8 B FE AT I £ 5 AR}
and packaging materials e A 3,638 3,693
Net changes in fair value of mEEm TR A RME
derivative financial instruments 55 B A (13,025) 5,214
Net changes in fair value of investment HEWENRIEE T FH
properties (note 16) (FsE16) (2,091) (272)
Foreign exchange differences, net s B 5 26 B 17,300 (6,303)
Others F Al 3,788 1,507
36,279 29,795

Government grants included above are subsidies or incentives
from the government in respect of certain investments of the
Group in the agricultural industry and areas promoted by the
government in the PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies relating to these grants. Government
grants received for which related expenditure has not yet
been undertaken are included in deferred income in the

consolidated statement of financial position (notes 30 and 33).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R R M &
Year ended 31 December 2017 R E _-FE—LHE+_H=+—HIL4EH
8 FINANCE COSTS 8 Bt 7 B A
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BB A A T :
2017 2016
- —
US$’000 US$’000
F L FIL FILFIC
Interest expense on bank borrowings RIS ZH B2 H 67,186 53,383
Interest expense on corporate bond SEEHEZFLEH 6,083 768
Less: Interest expense capitalised* s R B EHE AL (14,605) (18,678)
58,664 35,473
* Interest expense was capitalised at a rate of 4.1% — 6.8% per * F B 2 BB AL TS 34 F) R4.1%%6.8%
annum (2016: 3.1% — 6.3%). (ZF AN 1 3.1%F6.3%) 5l
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b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % ) & Mt &
Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9 RR B4 Al % R
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ A BB AT R A BB (BEA) THI&
(crediting): I -
2017 2016
G- Sl i 2 ZENE
Note US$’000 US$’000
M7t E i E > n
Cost of inventories sold CHEFE A 5,027,687 4,348,607
Depreciation of property, plant and L E RN Y &
equipment ZHeE 15 105,430 89,086
Amortisation of land lease prepayments  FHA} 1 HufH & & # 5 17 3,840 3,588
Depreciation of biological assets stated AU BEH T K
at cost less accumulated depreciation WAEHRESRZ
and impairment g R 18 35,991 28,174
Amortisation of intangible assets T B 19 2,553 2,597
Impairment of trade receivables, net JRE W B 5 W sk kAP T R 26(a) 1,754 952
Impairment of prepayments, AR - HER
deposits and other receivables H b JE WO R SRR 27(a) 2,419 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEX
plant and equipment, net e R 961 199
Minimum lease payments of leasehold ME LR -~ B
land and properties, plant and MR ZREMEZ
machinery under operating lease BAKHL & k&5 62,789 51,591
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 85 Bl Y 4 1,513 1,487
Rental income MHEIRA (4,629) (2,922)
Employee benefit expenses (including 8 B A X i (g
directors’ emoluments — note 10): M4 — HEE10)
— Wages, salaries and benefits in kind -ILE& - -#HeRk
FEBL & F 75 391,238 328,883
— Pension scheme contributions — B4tk 24,086 22,686
415,324 351,569
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #® H

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2017 B E _F—tHE+_H=+—HILEE

B E R 2 A

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10 EEMS
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) WIBEE ARG B33 (DL AT (WEE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the R ERL) B ZE R E > B A b
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contribution Bonus Total
Him
B R
we  EBENE B L ik
Note US§$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US§$°000
Mt Eonon FI T FLFr FL T Eomon
Year ended 31 December 2017 BEZZ L
TR RLERE
Executive directors: WrEE:
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Bl s - 1,181 - - 1,181
Mr. Adirek Sripratak Ei kA - - - - -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont E N %A - - - - -
Mt Bai Shanlin HERAEE - 881 11 354 1,246
M. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt JiumjaiswanglergJg 4 - 138 - - 138
Mr. Anan Athigapanich BERLA (i) - - - - -
M. Yu Jianping TRFRE (if) - 868 17 339 1,224
Mt. Suphachai Chearavanont A - - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan £ - - - - -
- 3,068 28 693 3,789
Non-executive directors: FafES:
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont EiR - - . _ -
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe i~ - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B FFHITES :
Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung A 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isresJi 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul f&4 31 - - - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej 64 31 - - - 31
Ms. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari VimooktayonZ4: 31 - - - 31
155 - - - 155
Total directors’ emoluments HHWE S 155 3,068 28 693 3,944
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N 4 B A& R 24 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE
10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10 EEM< (E)
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contribution Bonus Total
B -
T R
e FHeNE  BRIKSHER 184 ek
Note US$'000 US§$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
W EIm i EI o Frfr Fifr Em i
Year ended 31 December 2016 BEZZNE
FZAZF—HIAEE
Executive directors: rES:
M. Dhanin Chearavanont R - 1,181 - - 1,181
Mr. Adirek Sripratak Bk - - - - -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont WHN - - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin HEREE - 759 9 320 1,088
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg /g4 - 657 - - 657
Mr. Anan Athigapanich BERLA (i) - 744 - 12 866
Mt. Suphachai Chearavanont FiEL I i - - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan® £ - - - - -
- 3,341 9 441 3,792
Non-executive directors: FoTES:
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Wk - - - - -
M. Yoichi kezoe iR E— Rk - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B FFHITES :
Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung ERELE 31 - - - 31
M. Sombat Deo-istes Sombat Deo-isresfeA: 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul 464 31 - - - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej &4 31 - - - 31
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari VimooktayonZ 1: 31 - - - 31
155 - - - 155
Total directors’ emoluments HEMA N 155 3,341 9 441 3,947
Notes: M7t
(i) Resigned as executive director on 16 January 2017 (i) R-F—LHFE—~HTAHEERITESR
(ii) Appointed as executive director on 16 January 2017. (ii) WN_B—tFE—-HITAEBRELBTES
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

10

11

N 4

B AR

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no emoluments

was paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group as compensation for loss of

office (2016: nil), and there was no arrangement under which

a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments (2016:

nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three

(2016: two) directors. Details of their emoluments are set

out in note 10 above. The emoluments of the remaining two

(2016: three) non-directors are as follows:

A

10

11

B

EEME (&)

REEZF-LHE A= HIREE
AC AR SN 0 S A I AR EE R > DL AK
A3 T 7 i A A 45 O AR R T 2 4 R
B (ZF N4 ) > 5l 3 R R kA
HBCRETINGZ ZHE (2R N4 ) -

TNBEHFMES

N IAE R HE B B (ZF—A
AR 1 2fr) FEH > HMA X AR Lt
FFEE10 o R 2L (B — N4« 3fx) JEHF
ZMEmT

2017 2016

—F b —

US$’000 US$’000

E Ve it FILFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind F ~ S R IEBL AR 2 1,745 2,309
Bonus 4 708 958
2,453 3,267

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is set out below:

US$903,000 to US$968,000
(equivalent to HK$7,000,001 to
HK$7,500,000)

US$1,097,001 to US$1,161,000
(equivalent to HK$8,500,001 to
HK$9,000,000)

US$1,161,001 to US$1,226,000
(equivalent to HK$9,000,001 to
HK$9,500,000)

US$1,226,001 to US$1,290,000
(equivalent to HK$9,500,001 to
HK$10,000,000)

B v 3 I S 0 R A B DA A0 4 8
mE

903,0003& 7T £ 968,0003 J&

(FH % 7,000,001 88 5C &
7,500,000% J5)

1,097,0013€JE 1,161,000 7t

(#H 5 #+8,500,001 3 5T &
9,000,000 7T )

1,161,00138 78 £1,226,0005& 5T

(#H & 29,000,001 # 7T &
9,500,000 75)

1,226,0013 7€ %1,290,0003% JC

(#H %8 #*9,500,001 # T &
10,000,000 75)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % ) & Mt &
Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE
11 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11 ENESFMES (&)
(continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no emoluments was RE&EE_F—-bLETHAH=Z+—HILEE >
paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid employees of 7 4 8 3 S0 S A T 4 T A B R AR B 2 AT
the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group fal—Ar > DL in A AR 45 [ B A in A S 45 [
as compensation for loss of office (2016: nil). IR VE B IR IR Bk R IR R (B —N4F 1 i) o
12 INCOME TAX 12 FiBHt
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the A [ R A 4R BE SR AL ¥ I EUAT: 1) HE R B
year as the Group did not generate any assessable profits in W > B DA AR B A 4R B TN 1 7 o ) 15 50 38 45
Hong Kong during the year (2016: nil). (ZF—AFE ;) -
The subsidiaries operating in the PRC and Vietnam are subject AL P B R e A ZE TS BB - R M AR
to income tax at the rate of 25% (2016: 25%) and 20% (2016: w2 M A F TR E SRR 4 B R AR
20%) respectively on their taxable income according to the H25% (ZF—NE  25%) K20% (ZF—~
PRC and Vietnam corporate income tax laws. In accordance A2 20%) SR BT AR o AR o R R R RE 2 A
with the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC and B 5 < S T ) A T o I R MR
Vietnam, certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC and HTHBAR ZH BRSBTS R -
Vietnam enjoy various income tax exemptions or reductions.
2017 2016
G- Sl i 2 ZF N
US$’000 US$’000
Ve n FIL T
Current — the PRC A4 —
Charge for the year PG 67,926 55,198
Over-provision in prior years VIAEAE B 2 5 R (4,803) (7,084)
Current — Vietnam AR — T
Charge for the year AR S 1,322 38,381
Deferred (note 34) B (K 5E34) (18,554) 6,500
Total tax expense for the year AR B 2 B TE 4 3 HY 45,891 92,995
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

INCOME TAX (continued)

12

% B B AR

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

tax at the statutory tax rates for the PRC and Vietnam in

which the Group principally operates to the tax expense at the

effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable tax

rates (i.e. statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as

follows:

A

12 FrE% (&)

v I R M (A4 ) 2 S R M) W k2
it At 5 B DU S8R 3 G B BB S
2o JOmABR (M ERR) ZHUBERZ

iR ESIMT

2017 2016
IV S 3 RN
US$°000 % US$000 %
FIL i FEILFx

Profit before tax Ryl 86,728 422,474
Tax expense at statutory tax rate W ERMRF AR Tl 29,095 33.5 93,150 22.0
Lower tax rates for specific provinces TG A B R A

or enacted by local tax authority ZIRIERLR (4,769) (5.5) (14,627) (3.5)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% HAREERN R E B AT

on the distributable profit of ] A O S A

the Group’ s subsidiaries in the PRC 10% 2 5% 2 7,499 8.6 8,395 2.0
Effect of withholding tax on iR Bz mp s A

technical service fee - - 3,198 0.8
Adjustments in respect of current ARAEA R A4 BE 1Y

tax of prior years B (4,803) (5.5) (7,084) (1.7)
Profits and losses attributable to A ghe YU TN

joint ventures and associates A KR (4,177) (4.8) (2,964) 0.7
Income not subject to tax TEFARBUA (4,959) (5.7) (3,208) (0.8)
Expenses not deductible for tax Ak b 13,517 15.6 9,270 2.2
Tax losses not recognised RERERHEER 13,922 16.1 6,980 1.7
Tax losses from prior years utilised B EEREER (1,760) (2.0) (198) (0.0)
Others Hit 2,326 2.6 83 0.0
Tax expense at the Group’s effective tax ~ $§ACHE H A BB RFH A

rate FiH 3 i 45,891 52.9 92,995 22.0

The share of income tax attributable to joint ventures and
associates amounting to US$1,445,000 (2016: US$1,366,000)
and US$6,690,000 (2016: US$5,180,000), respectively, are

included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures

and associates” on the face of the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

AR EAG S8 RS AR Z RS
Bl 144 58 F 50 (ZF—N4F  136.68530)
K 669.08EIC (ZF— N4 : 518.08KL) °
HREBECEEEL G 2K R N BN
B A 2 T B A W A ROt e
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R & M =
Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE
DIVIDENDS 13 K&
2017 2016
—F L ZR A
US$’000 US$’000
FiLFi FILFIT
Interim — nil (2016: HK$0.024 (equivalent to ~ FH — i (=T — N4 : H B %@
approximately US 0.310 cents)) per ordinary B S 7T ¢ Jiit £ 56 J§:0.024 % ot
share and convertible preference share (PR #90.3103€41)) - 78,450
Proposed final — HK$0.007 (equivalent to T R B — 5 S S e B e i 1R
approximately US 0.090 cents) (2016: FeB0.007¥8 7T (FH %6 1% £70.0905%
HK$0.016 (equivalent to approximately i) (ZF— N4 : 0.016# G (H
US 0.206 cents)) per ordinary share and S 490.206511) )
convertible preference share 22,881 52,300
22,881 130,750

The proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017 is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
total amount of the proposed final dividend was calculated
based on the number of shares in issue on the date of this

annual report.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and

convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
and convertible preference shares used in the basic earnings
per share calculation, adjusted to reflect the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at nil
consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive share

options of the Company.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no dilutive potential shares in existence
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & Mt 5

¥ B B &8 R & 7

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

14

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 14 EXATRREEZERER (&)
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based 0 JBe e A e VR A T MR 4 DL R B T A
on the following data:
2017 2016
- Sl ot 5 RN
US$’000 US$’000
FiL T F T
Earnings i P
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders R AR K
of the Company, used in the basic i R R 2 AR 2y ] R
and diluted earnings per share calculation AR AF Al 6z ) 41,867 260,278
2017 2016
SE-LE BNk
Shares J&t 3
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and FH A w5t 534 e i A % 8 30 35 )
convertible preference shares in issue during ZAGE VBT A R
the year, used in the basic and diluted 45 B B S I I - £ 8

earnings per share calculation

25,332,914,980

25,332,914,980

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

- -t FF K



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

15

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R & M =
Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE -BERRE
Furniture, Motor
fixtures vehicles
Office Industrial Plant and and office and transport Construction
premises buildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
R RER HHR
HEET THEMT R B s W ikfi i TRIR ek
Note US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000
Wit Eomen Ertr Frtr Eomen Fu T FiTr Eomen
(notes (a) (notes (b) (note (b))
and (d)) and (c))
(Wit(a)R(d)  (Wik(b)R(c) (Hit(e)
At 1 January 2017: RER—-tE—H—H:
Valuation i 58,115 - - - - - 58,115
Cost A - 717,081 738,156 141,465 29,483 378,137 2,004,322
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTE R
impairment - (216,654) (334,870) (90,960) (20,726) - (663,210)
Net carrying amount IR A 58,115 500,427 403,286 50,505 8,757 378,137 1,399,227
Net carrying amount: SR A
At 1 January 2017 W_Z—tE—-H—H 58,115 500,427 403,286 50,505 8,757 378,137 1,399,227
Additions E - 2,630 9,623 8,933 2,553 276,906 300,645
Surplus on revaluation, net AfhFRaR 19,470 - - - - - 19,470
Acquisition of a subsidiary B — KB AR 38 - 41,842 32,377 1,011 293 - 75,523
Depreciation provided during the year 4} zHE T # 9 (1,199) (35,635) (49,481) (16,348) (2,767) - (105,430)
Transfer in/(out) #A /() - 154,922 246,655 13,541 994 (416,112) -
Transfer to investment properties ARG E 16 - (11,169) - - - - (11,169)
Disposals & - (175) (2,043) (218) (244) - (2,680)
Exchange realignment e 634 27,340 30,757 1,710 569 18,052 79,062
At31 December 2017 REZ—LE
+ZHZ4—H 717,020 680,182 671,174 59,134 10,155 256,983 1,754,648
At 31 December 2017: Rtk
FoAZT—H
Valuation it 77,020 - - - - - 77,020
Cost %N - 937,438 1,062,450 162,195 33,762 256,983 2,452,828
Accumulated depreciation and Rt E R
impairment - (257,256) (391,276) (103,061) (23,607) - (775,200)
Net carrying amount i A 71,020 680,182 671,174 59,134 10,155 256,983 1,754,648
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] & Mt &
Year ended 31 December 2017 & E _F—tHFE+_H=+—HILEE
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y- -BREKZE (&)
(continued)
Furniture, Motor
fixtures vehicles
Office Industrial Plant and and office and transport Construction
premises buildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
R RER HER
kBT TEBT T BB WA Tk HRIHE bk
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Wit Eomen b b Fr T b EL T Eomen
(notes (a) (notes (b) (note (b))
and (d)) and (c))
(Wita)R(d)  (Witb)R() (Wite)
At 1 January 2016: REB—AE
—fA—H:
Valuation liig i 45,204 - - - - - 45,204
Cost Bk - 602,634 687,853 129,159 29,852 306,520 1,756,018
Accumulated depreciation R R
and impairment - (198,432) (319,278) (80,436) (20938) - (619,084)
Net carrying amount MR A 45,204 404,202 368,575 48,123 8,914 306,520 1,182,138
Net carrying amount G £
At 1 January 2016 REZ-AE
—J—H 45,204 404,202 368,575 48,723 8,914 306,520 1,182,138
Additions W - 17,151 12,1 13,761 2,460 181,964 228,107
Surplus on revaluation, net EitiReyitd 13,133 - - - - - 13,133
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wi B I A ) 38 - 90,484 26,409 2,625 586 11,158 131,262
Depreciation provided during the year R 9 (939) (30,371) (38,995) (15,938) (2,843) - (89,086)
Transfer in/(out) #A /() - 39,308 56,117 3,254 411 (99,090) -
Transfer from investment properties HAREmE 16 1,625 - - - - - 1,625
Disposals e - (691) (963) (286) (247) - (2,187)
Exchange realignment E (908) (19,656) (20,628) (1,634) (524) (22,415) (65,765)
At 31 December 2016 REB—NE
+ZH=+—H 58,115 500,427 403,286 50,505 8,757 378,137 1,399,227
At 31 December 2016: RZF—R
apiES el
Valuation i1 58,115 - - - - - 58,115
Cost Bk - 717,081 738,156 141,465 29,483 378,137 2,004,322
Accumulated depreciation ZRHTE R
and impairment - (216,654) (334,870) (90,960) (20,726) - (663,210)
Net carrying amount i T 0 58,115 500,427 403,286 50,505 8,757 378,137 1,399,227
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s office premises

were stated at open market values.

Had the Group’s office premises been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amount of the

premises at the end of the reporting period would have been
US$4,502,000 (2016: US$4,739,000).

The revaluation surplus of US$15,068,000 (2016:
US$12,343,000) has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve of the

Group during the year, net of deferred tax (note 34).

At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment in mainland China with an aggregate net
carrying amount of US$72,685,000 (2016: 59,542,000) were
pledged to secure certain bank borrowings of the Group (note

31(a)).

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s industrial buildings with
an aggregate net carrying amount of US$152,556,000 (2016:
US$94,924,000) have not yet obtained ownership certificates.
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15

M- BERRE (&)

(b)

IR > AL B 2 i SRS TSR 4 B
LEREAN:

A AR 55 T i S A L A 0 B Rl T
IR o M B 8 R 2 MR T A E 45 450.2
BRIC (RN 1 473.98K50) -

SHH1,506.8HE L2 EMHARK (ZF
—NAR 1 1,234.3%00) ORI b 2 T AR
THE 58 B A7 9 B A 4 1) 1 o 3 A
(BB BLIE) (M5E34) -

MN_-Z—tE+-A=Z+—H > K4EH
B KEZETYWE - BEEXEA
IR 7,268,588 E I8 (ZF— N4 ¢
5,954.28 3 0) TAE % AR B 2 T AT
KA 5 (M EE31(a)) -

RE-F—LE+ZHA=Z—H AEEZ
T M T A Rt R R 145,255,608 36 0
(ZB—N4E 19,4924 3K 50) MR MR
FERE ©
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

(i)

N 4 B A R A 7
Year ended 31 December 2017 & E - F—LE+_H=+—HILFEE
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y- -BREKZE (&)
Mt : (4)
Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (d) W BB RSN ARG &

Fair value hierarchy (i) RRAEZ HF

Fair values are categorised into three-level fair O FOAE T R 42 1B B B i v ) 4R

value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair value 139A RAEFT R B =M - 2

measurement. The level into which a fair value FAH Z B 43 T3 2 % A5 T R

measurement is classified is determined by reference F 2 8500 w8152 1 B T OK 1k i

to the observability and significance of the inputs used E > ST

in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active B R EHR H ISR S B
markets for identical assets or liabilities at [7] & 2 ok A fE AR g
the measurement date. (AT AT FHHE) -

Level 2: Observable inputs which fails to meet IR R AN WA B
Level 1, and not using unobservable B2l RBREFAR
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for B2 o AT
which market data are not available. BEMBHTIRA THH

BRHNZ Y-

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs. BEAA c ERATEENZY -

The following table presents the fair value of the TESMNRENRARERZY

Group’s property, plant and equipment measured at 3~ MR Bk M R R AR R B

the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, S 5 S I B B T R 5 BRI 13

categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as QI A 711 2 58 s M = AR o

defined in IFRS 13 Fair value measurement.

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December categorised into
RT_H=Z=1T—HaARMat &2 48
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B8 BN B s
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Frfx  FxFrx - FrFr - FErLTr

2017 “E b

Office premises EEZ =3 - - 77,020 77,020

2016 ZE—A

Office premises [GE 3 e - - 58,115 58,115
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % ) & Mt &
Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE -BERRZE(E)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) MfaE > (4F)
(d) Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (d) Yk B KA REE R ()
(continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) R RMEZ R (4F)

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,

there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,

or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy

is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value

hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques

used in the determination of fair values within Level

3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable

inputs at the end of the reporting period used in the

valuation models.

Type
it

Office premises in Hong Kong

RETR 7 5 Y T A T

Office premises in mainland China

AR v I 0K e i 7 S

Valuation technique

il {05 ¥

Market comparison approach

5 Lh g i

Market comparison approach

i 455 P

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

BEZE-LERE-AETD
A=+ HI4ERN > BHEE— R
BB Z 2 WS > BOp A B
AR =0 o AR [ 2 BOSR TSR
) AR 2 ST A i AR ) 2
%

RN B = U 4 R AR R
BIR B4R A 2 A AE 5 5 B A B A
KA AT BREN 2 -

Key unobservable inputs

FABEN2E

Estimated price of US$54,006
(2016: US$38,719) per square metre
- J5 Ok Z i w44 54,0065% 7T
(2016: 38,7193 L)

Estimated price of US$7,300 — US$9,144
(2016: US$6,699 — US$7,614) per
square metre

B V-5 K Z Al 5HE A% 7,300 58 — 9,144
76 (2016: 6,699F It —7,614F8)
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & Mt 5

% B B &R A

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

3

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y- -BREKZE (&)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mfat > (5F)
(d) Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (d) ¥~ R R RENA R R ()
(continued)
(ii) Information about level 3 fair value measurements (ii) FHE=R AR A7 22 B
Office premises of the Group were revalued based AAE T 2 T MR A RRAE T AR
on valuations performed by Castores Magi (Hong Bl e (W) AIRAE (SRR
Kong) Limited, an external independent and qualified S B A B R FEAY B ) BT AR Z AL B
valuer. The Group’s finance team discussed with the FE o PRIAF:JIE A B o T HE AT R
valuers on the valuation assumptions and results when Al > AS4E [ 2 B 75 B B 3 6 B BE
the valuation was performed for annual financial AR B 5 o L AP AR P AR B B AR o
reporting purpose.
The fair value of the office premises in Hong Kong A A 9 e b B R B Y T SR
and mainland China are determined using market ARETIETIZ IR EEE » 2%
comparison approach by reference to recent quotation SE 00 3 4 T ) o R B A (F
or sale prices of comparable properties on a price per FoK) o
square metre basis.
A significant increase/decrease in the estimated price FEIkZMhEHEKRAER LT
per square metre would result in a significant increase/ TR EHMERTEZARMETEKR
decrease in the fair value of the office premises. LT T
16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 REWE
2017 2016
- Sl ol 2 ZRANE
Note US$’000 US$’000
Kt E o FILFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January B—H—HZHREE 13,513 16,365
Net changes in fair value A e fE 5 B 7 (2,091) (272)
Transfer from/(to) owner—occupied ey (A E ¥
properties 15 11,169 (1,625)
Exchange realignment iEE 56, 3R 4% 1,306 (955)
Carrying amount at 31 December P A= —HZREE 23,897 13,513
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Notes:

(a)

(i)

b E B E R 2

G|

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16 BREWE (&)
M 3t
All investment properties of the Group are situated in (a) J A 35 3 L B K R o
mainland China.
Fair value measurements of investment properties (b) B/EWENARMEFTE
Fair value hierarchy (i) AR Z R
The following table presents the fair value of the TESMRBRERAREEHZ E
Group’s investment properties measured at the end of PRI ARG R A RE > W
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised e O R B S MR R 135 A 2 A
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in BZEFN R =R -
[FRS 13 Fair value measurement.
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December categorised into
RTZH=Z+—HARMGRZ 48
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B | B0 s
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FILTFIT FILTIT FILTFIT FILTIT
2017 —E L
Investment properties Erd2g/ES - - 23,897 23,897
2016 ZE AN
Investment properties HEWE - - 13,513 13,513

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of reporting period used in the

valuation models.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

16

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Fair value measurements of investment properties (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Type
HE% A6 75

Factories and farms in mainland China

(8 T PNER )Y T 55 b g

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

Investment properties of the Group were revalued
based on valuations performed by Beijing Huadeheng
Assets Evaluation Co., Ltd., an external independent
and qualified valuer. The Group’s finance team
discussed with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and results when the valuation is

performed for annual financial reporting purpose.

The fair value of the investment properties are
determined using market comparison approach
by reference to recent quotation or sale prices of
comparable properties on a price per square metre

basis.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated price
per square metre would result in a significant increase/

decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.

A

16
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Valuation technique

REWE (&)

Wrak : (40
(b)  HEWEM A RE R (B
(i) RARAEZ RS (H)

Market comparison approach

Key unobservable inputs

T BIER2 B

Estimated price of US$4 — US$420

(2016: US$4 — US$475) per square

metre

B J5 R Z Al FHE A 45858 — 4203850

(i1)

(RN 1 438 —475K70)

H R =R AT 7 2 B

ARG B Z B YN RALTI R
B Ak T 2 8 1 B AT A A R A A
(O 3 B A B A R AL B ) BT AR 2
FEAR R o PRI4F B B 5 35 T HE 4T
WISERRAG I ACHE 2 S I kY
1 SR R a4 AR I A
o

BEWREZ A AT 5 L
HEAE > 25 R ST i
B (FITK) -

R AN U wNI Y
THREEIEREMEZARMEK
ET T
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b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE
LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS 17 HEFrBERE
2017 2016
“E L ZF-NE
Note US$’000 US$’000
HiaE FixFrx  FILF
Carrying amount at 1 January *—H—H R 131,996 108,874
Acquisition of subsidiaries WA i oV 2 ) 38 4,099 29,792
Additions W 15,197 4,699
Amortisation provided during the year AENEHR B 9 (3,840) (3,588)
Disposal e - (94)
Exchange realignment [ b3, o 3% 9,027 (7,687)
Carrying amount at 31 December B+ _H=+—HKmE 156,479 131,996
Current portion included in prepayments, & RE KX - EE&E X
deposits and other receivables i IR sk =2 3 E 8 4 (3,983) (3,589)
Non-current portion FE B ER 4 152,496 128,407

Analysis of leasehold land by location: RIEMAE L AEMBEZHWT -

Mainland China L DN 147,981 123,955
Vietnam FE 8,498 8,041

156,479 131,996
Note: Mt ¢

At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s leasehold land with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately US$45,111,000 (2016:
US$43,246,000) were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings of the
Group (note 31(b)).
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Notes to Financial Statements

18

B

B 75 ] & Mt &
Year ended 31 December 2017 B E - —tLHE+ A=+ —HILEE
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS EYEE
Current Other
Breeders livestock — biological
and layers swine assets Total
FHgH HEHEE- At .
REH BE A B At
Note US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$'OO£)
Mzt Er T Eomvn FLF ELFT
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(Hfit(a) (HiEe) (Hfit(c)
At 1 January 2017: R_F—-tHE—~H—H:
At cost less accumulated depreciation BT R 714 8 R Rif ¢
and impairment:
Cost AR 98,115 - 25,078 123,193
Accumulated depreciation and ZEH T RO
impairment (21,474) - - (21,474)
76,641 - 25,078 101,719
At fair value less costs of disposal AR R B B - 282,079 - 282,079
76,641 282,079 25,078 383,798
Net carrying amount: R T
At 1 January 2017 BN_Z—tE—~A—H 76,641 282,079 25,078 383,798
Acquisition of a subsidary WO — K W A ] 38 1,306 - - 1,306
Increase due to purchases/raising /R G 3 170,058 873,363 163,321 1,206,742
Net changes in fair value less costs of 2 f & & B A
disposal BHFH - 7,389 - 7,389
Depreciation provided during the ERFHEE
year 9 (35,991) - - (35,991)
Decrease due to sales R 8 1 > (90,760) (856,163) (155,632)  (1,102,555)
Decrease due to culling K] 2 52 T Y (34,122) (11,225) - (45,347)
Exchange realignment EE Ju i 2% 832 783 70 1,685
At 31 December 2017 RZF—LHEFZAH
=+—H 87,964 296,226 32,837 411,027
At 31 December 2017: RF—L4
+ZA=+—H:
At cost less accumulated depreciation B B 7147 2 R if ¢
and impairment:
Cost A 116,837 - 32,837 149,674
Accumulated depreciation and R R
impairment (28,873) - - (28,873)
87,964 - 32,837 120,801
At fair value less cost of disposal VNIRRT AN TN - 296,226 - 296,226
87,964 296,226 32,837 411,027
Analysed into: AHWT
Current biological assets EEEEE 22,277 296,226 32,837 351,340
Non-current biological assets FEBEYEE 65,687 - - 65,687
87,964 296,226 32,837 417,027
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b E B E R 2

Notes to Financial Statements

B R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE
18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) EYMEE (&)
Current Other
Breeders livestock - biological
and layers swine assets Total
AlEAE  HHAE- Jflh .
REH BE LNy Mgt
Note US$°000 US$'000 US$’000 US$°000
Mt E o ELFI E T FITr
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(W#t(a) (HiEe) (Hfit(c)
At 1 January 2016: REZ—AE—A—H:
At cost less accumulated depreciation A B 34T K
and impairment: WAH
Cost AR 83,004 - 25,809 108,903
Accumulated depreciation and BT RO
impairment (20,530) - - (20,530)
62,564 - 25,809 88,373
At fair value less costs of disposal N AREREE R A - 260,318 - 260,318
62,564 260,318 25,809 348,691
Net carrying amount: R T
At 1 January 2016 RZF—N4F—H—H 62,564 260,318 25,809 348,691
Acquisition of subsidaries I i B e 2 ] 38 6,789 - - 6,789
Increase due to purchases/raising PRI B/ 48 1 3 79,830 776,038 146,851 1,002,719
Net changes in fair value less costs A REREE A
of disposal BHFH - (33,009) - (33,009)
Depreciation provided during the year 4 5t e H7 8 9 (28,174) - - (28,174)
Decrease due to sales R 8 i A (14,799) (710,115) (147,265) (872,179)
Decrease due to culling W 2 5211 9 (28,407) (7,139) - (35,546)
Exchange realignment [FE i % 2 (1,162) (4,014) (317) (5,493)
At 31 December 2016 BRZFR—AEFZA
=+—H 76,641 282,079 25,078 383,798
At 31 December 2016: RZF—AE+ZA
=+—H:
At cost less accumulated depreciation A 2 5T K
and impairment: WA
Cost A 98,115 - 25,078 123,193
Accumulated depreciation and R R
impairment (21,474) - - (21,474)
76,041 - 25,078 101,719
At fair value less costs of disposal N RSB A - 282,079 - 282,079
76,641 282,079 25,078 383,798
Analysed into: AHWT .
Current biological assets R EE 19,425 282,079 25,078 326,582
Non-current biological assets EEMAEMERE 57,216 - - 57,216
76,041 282,079 25,078 383,798
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

18 BIOL

Notes:

(a)

OGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Breeders and layers

Breeders and layers of the Group are (i) sows and boars
(collectively “swine breeders”) held for the production
of piglets for sales and/or further raising to become swine
parent stock or fattening swine, (ii) chicken breeders held
for production of hatching eggs in order to produce day-old

chicks, and (iii) layers held for the production of consumable

eggs.

Breeders and layers are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses as (i)
they are not sold by the Group and no active market exists;
(ii) other references to market prices such as market prices
for similar assets are not available; and (iii) valuation based
on a discounted cash flow method is considered unreliable
given the uncertainty with respect to external factors, such as

climate and mortality rates, etc.

Cost includes all costs incurred during the growth cycle (e.g.
cost of new born animals, feed costs and farmer fees). Swine
breeders are depreciated using the straight-line method over
their productive period of 24 to 36 months starting from
the reproduction phase, while chicken breeders and layers
are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
productive period of 12 months, both taking into account a

residual value.
Current livestock — swine

Current livestock — swine are piglets and fattening swines and
are stated at fair value less costs of disposal. Fair values are
determined based on market prices, and where transaction
prices are not available for certain age groups, based on
prevailing market prices of other age groups, with adjustments

taking into account difference in weight.
Other biological assets

Other biological assets comprise poultry and aquatic livestock

other than breeders and layers.

B AR

PN
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b % BB B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

Other biological assets (continued)

Poultry livestock are pullets, broilers and hatching eggs,
while aquatic livestock comprise shrimp and fish. Poultry and
aquatic livestock are stated at cost less any impairment losses,
which are not materially different from their fair value due to

short production cycle.

An analysis of the estimates of physical quantities of the
Group’s biological assets as at the end of the reporting period

is as follows:

BE
KB

Livestock

Aquatic

The estimates of physical quantities of biological assets were
based on experience and historical data. The Group conducts
full physical count in swine farms by rotation to ascertain
the quantity and physical condition of swine and project the
overall weight. For poultry livestock, the Group performs real
time update on stock movement to project the overall weight.
For aquatic livestock, the Group uses sampling method to

project the overall weight.

18 4£YEE (&)

ML - (#)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Ho Al 2y ()

REOFE A - A RREE > K E
LR T o BB B A A 3R A AT 1] 98
G BN > 36 EL b A 2 S e B L A
TR AT 2R M L N o K S
e

ACSR [ 3 AR 2 A A B R
figtmF

2017 2016

S Sl i TR R
Tons Tons

g g
272,000 244,000
11,500 8,500

A AR I Y 2y S O R R A R S AR R
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho® B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

BF A% R & M
Year ended 31 December 2017 #E R —LE T+ H =2+ —HILFE
18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 18 4£YEE (&)
Notes: (continued) Mt o (4F)
(e) Fair value measurement of biological assets (e) Y EENA RES R
(i) Fair value hierarchy (i) A RAEZ R
The following table presents the fair value of the TR BEBRARE I Z A
Group’s biological assets measured at the end of the B ST B A Rl s
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into e B B B s s R R 134\ 2 M A
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS ZEF T =MARA

13 Fair value measurement.

Fair value measurement as at
31 December categorised into
BRTZA=Z+—HARMEGHEZ 38
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B8 o3| B0 ek
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FxF Fx T #rxFrx  FExXTr

2017 e v S

Current livestock — Swine EUEE-—HE - - 296,226 296,226
2016 “RRE

Current livestock — Swine EHEE - - - 282,079 282,079
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, BEZZ-LEAZF-AFETZ
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, A=Z+—HILFEERN > WHEE—K
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy B Z 2R s A g
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value WA= o AR B Z BUR T
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in 30 A HE R0 0 A ) A3 P
which they occur. %o
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
b % BB B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e)

Fair value measurement of biological assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of the reporting period used in the

valuation models.

Type

T i 1875 ¥

Current livestock — swine

EWEE - B T35 P

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of current livestock — swine is
performed by the Group’s relevant finance department
and operations team on a quarterly basis using a series

of systematic procedures.

There is an active market for live swine in Vietnam.
The fair value of suckling swine, weanling swine and
fattening swine are determined based on transaction

price per head and their weight.

The estimated fair value of swine increases/decreases
as a result of an increase/decrease in the transaction
price. As at 31 December 2017, if transaction price
increases/decreases by 10%, the estimated fair
value of swine would have increased/decreased by

US$28,135,000 (2016: US$27,004,000).

18

Valuation technique

Market comparison approach

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

£YEE (H)

Wit : (4)

() EMVETE M/ AL R (AD
(i) ARMZHH (H)

TR HUR S S AU B 4 SRR
WA Ft £ JH 2 Al (877 5 B Al {4
ENE RN § 23t

Key unobservable inputs

A BN Z B

Transaction prices of:

— Suckling swine US$52.8 to US$62.4
(2016: US$57.1 to US$66.7) per head

— Weanling swine US$56.8 to US$85.9
(2016: US$60.2 to US$92.7) per head

— Fattening swine US$1.4 to US$1.5
(2016: US$1.5 to US$1.6) per kg

G

— AW IS2.8ETLE6L4KT (=F
— N 1 571K I 66.7KTT)

—/NREREEH56.8KRILES5 9KTL (ZF
—INAE 1 60.2KI6E92.7900)

- BB AT14KTELKE (ZF
—NH 15K ITEL.6EKT)

(i)  HHB=RAARAM 22 EH

EHBE -REIARETINEF
T2 55 A0 S 7 0 £ 5 % [0 I
¥— R I R BN FRAT A

LR A TR A R R o LA
NG B B B 2 2 S A TS AR 4 4 B
22 Gy AR A B B ) O o

R AR A SR AL T BE 2 A2 B A Y
LT T EH TR R F
—LHEFZH=Z+—H > H{ERS
M LT TFBk10% > FEEMA R
A BT T 82,813,588 %0
(ZF— 4 1 2,700.483%70) -

—® - t&&

#
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 HEREE
2017 2016
“E L TR AN
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt FFic E < an
At 1 January: wW—H—H:
Cost JRAR 35,960 38,460
Accumulated amortisation HE RSy (6,496) (4,291)
Net carrying amount 5 TG 29,464 34,169
Net carrying amount: MRTE A
At 1 January HN—H—H 29,464 34,169
Amortisation provided during AN FHREESY
the year 9 (2,553) (2,597)
Exchange realignment [ e, e 2 1,887 (2,108)
At 31 December Nt —HA=+—H 28,798 29,464
At 31 December: R+_HA=+—H:
Cost JAR 38,384 35,960
Accumulated amortisation EE Sy (9,586) (6,496)
Net carrying amount e I R 28,798 29,464
Note: Mt :

The Group’s intangible asset represents customer relationship of
the Group which is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and

impairment losses.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “selling and

A e

distribution costs” in profit or loss.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Company name

ks

CP China Investment Limited

Chia Tai (China) Investment
Co., Ltd. (“CTI”) ™

EXCPE) #EHRA A
([EXHE]) ™

C. P. Premix (Tianjin)
Co., Ltd. @
KB (RH) A RLA 7O

Changsha Chia Tai
Co., Ltd. ™
R AR

Chengdu Chia Tai Company
Limited

JB AR IE K AT B A R @

Fuzhou Da Fu Company
Limited @

T KR R A 7]

Inner Mongolia Chia Tai
Co., Ltd. (@
WS IE KA A

Kunming Chia Tai Co., Ltd. i
ﬁlﬁ%m*ﬁm/ﬁ\\ﬁj(m)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations

B3l AV

Cayman Islands/
Hong Kong

B2

PRC/PRC
i,

PRC/PRC
v g

PRC/PRC
Hrs

PRC/PRC
i

PRC/PRC
i

PRC/PRC
e

PRC/PRC
v

20 RHIBARNES

Issued ordinary/

registered capital
CRTEER
ok i A

US$79,228,000
79,228,000

US$196,695,333
196,695,333% 70

US$23,812,500
23,812,500%7¢

RMB134,000,000

134,000,000 A\ R

US$6,300,000
6,300,00037%

US$9,139,297
9,139,2973%58

US$8,190,700
8,190,700t

US$6,405,300
6,405,300 70
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FEEME AR Z BT

Percentage of

attributable equity
interest held by

Company Group Principal activities
JEAG F5 A PR RE /A 43 L

y N/ AL FEEY

100.0% 100.0% Investment holding

B

- 100.0% Investment holding

and trading of

raw materials

BEERREMEE 5

- 100.0% Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

AR

- 100.0% Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

i 4 4 B

- 70.0% Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

BB R

- 100.0% Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

FE S )y Bt

- 90.4% Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

7 S B R

- 92.4% Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

- -t FF K
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20

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

Company name operations
B3l

AR BEM
Lanzhou Chia Tai Co., Ltd (i PRC/PRC
T IE KA R A ) 60 i, v
Qingdao Chiatai Agricultural PRC/PRC

Development Co., Ltd. HE
HRIEXRERRARA AW
Wuhan Chia Tai Co., Ltd. (@ PRC/PRC
R IERA R A A
Xiangyang Chia Tai Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC/PRC
PR IERA AR o, v
Yichang Chia Tai Co., Ltd. (") PRC/PRC
HEIERARAF g,
Chia Tai Food Enterprise PRC/PRC

(Qinhuangdao) Co., Ltd. ) i, v
EXBMAEERESE)

A RA R
Chia Tai Food Enterprise PRC/PRC

(Qingdao) Co., Ltd ™ HE e
EXBREEGFR)

A RA R

B E R 2 A

Issued ordinary/

registered capital

CRfTEE,
ik M A

US$14,953,000

14,953,00037C

US$12,025,800
12,025,8003 7%

US$3,750,000
3,750,000 70

RMB97,900,000
97,900,000 A\ %

US$18,090,000
18,090,000 76

US$117,460,000
117,460,00097C

US$85,700,000
85,700,0005: 76
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Percentage of

attributable equity
interest held by

Company

Group

UINEEREN S XER g

Al

AR S

90.6%"

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

RKE AR RS ()

Principal activities

EX-E 3/

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

FE B B R

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

FE S By W

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

EESH B R

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

FE B B R

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

FE S By W

Manufacture and

sale of value-added,

processed food products

AR T A

Manufacture and

sale of value-added,

processed food products

S A T i
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20

Company name
2wl 4

C. P. Food (Xiangyang)
Co., Ltd ™
ERR 5 () AR AR

Jilin Chia Tai Food Co., Ltd @
WARIE R & A R A

Chia Tai Food (Sugian)
Co., Ltd. @
ERERH (HT) FRAR®

Fujian Chia Tai Food Co., Ltd.
(“Fuijan Chia Tai”) @

BRERRHERAH
([FgEkD ®

Hubei Chia Tai Co., Ltd.
(“Hubei Chia Tai”) ™

WAL IERA R AH
(ML IE K ])

Modern State Investments
Limited

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

Place of
incorporation/

registration and Issued ordinary/

operations registered capital

3 R CHTEER

2 E o 2 sE & A

PRC/PRC RMB380,000,000

i, dE 380,000,000 A R

PRC/PRC RMB240,000,000

i, dE 240,000,000 A R

PRC/PRC RMB596,298,060

i, B 596,298,060 A R

PRC/PRC RMB218,000,000

i, dE 218,000,000 A R

PRC/PRC RMB280,000,000

i, HE 280,000,000 A R

British Virgin Islands/ US$106,984,000

Hong Kong 106,984,000 70
EBRGEEREE B
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RKE AR RS ()

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by

Company Group Principal activities

AL ¢ A TR RE A 43 Lk

A y N FEER
- 100.0% Manufacture and
sale of value-added,

processed food products

FE B 8 8 T

100.0% Manufacture and

sale of value-added,

processed food products

BB T AR
- 100.0% Manufacture and
sale of chicken

meat products

P SH 5 A E

70.0% Investment holding
and trading of chicken
meat products

B PR B

HEA E i 5

100.0% Manufacture and

sale of animal

feed and chicken

meat products

% S B BB I

DY E

100.0%

100.0% Investment holding

e ceidl
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Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 RKHEXRHNELZR (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ attributable equity
registration and Issued ordinary/  interest held by
Company name operations registered capital Company Group Principal activities
LR, CRTEER . EERER
AR BEM R I A AR ALH FEEH
C. P. Vietnam Corporation Vietnam/Vietnam VND - 70.8% Integrated
(“CPVC”) MR R 1,741,792,500,000 agri-food business
1,741,792,500,000 A R R R
T
Hannick Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong 2 shares - 100.0%  Property investment
=W Tl 2RIy YR K
Notes: M EE -
(i) The Group is only entitled to 85% of the subsidiary’s earnings. (1) AREFEBEGHREAHBFZ85% > Higz
The remaining 15% is attributable to the PRC joint venture 15%5E &8 ANE -
partner.
(ii) Established as a contractual joint venture under PRC law. (ii) WP EERERLAGERERE -
(iii) Established as a cooperative joint venture under PRC law. (iii) WP BRI EGERENE -
(iv) Established as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC (iv) W B BRI RN E R EA R
law.
The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company LRV RZARAFWE AR » EER
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the o FE AR B S AL AR T E
Group’s profits and losses or formed a substantial portion of the BRI - EFER L > 5 BRI b R A
Group. To give details of all the other subsidiaries would, in AR FMER T ESRRAERITE

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21 REELENER
2017 2016
—F L RN
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt FiLFi FILFIT
Investments in joint ventures, REBLENRE > BERIER
included in non-current assets: BEENR :
Share of net assets FEAG & (a) 22,977 19,289

Due from joint ventures, included — REWHEAEFKIE » BERFA

in prepayments, deposits and MRK ~ 4 e At B Wi MR 3k

other receivables 27(a) 17,321 1,413
Due to joint ventures, included in  JEfF A& EHKIE » S8R H b

other payables and accruals FEATEE Sk R TEHIRE 30(a) (13,256) (8,136)

Interests in joint ventures R B ERER 27,042 12,566

Notes: Mtk -

(a) The Group has interests in a number of joint ventures, none (a) AEFPRBUREGELERA MR > HRE
of which is regarded as individually material. The following fl B Sr — R A K » T RN DL RE 25
table summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of all VAR ZBAN M EEERNEGEAEZY
individually immaterial joint ventures that are accounted for BE RGN -
using the equity method:

Other Total

Carrying Profit for comprehensive comprehensive
amount the year income income
e T £ AwH  Hb2mkE 2wk as
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

Fo T KILTTT KL TTT LT

2017 I S o3
Group effective interest A SR A SOE 22 22,977 4,709 1,334 6,043
2016 ZERANE
Group effective interest ARAEEABHER 19,289 4,129 (1,278) 2,851

(b) The Group’s trade receivable and trade payable with joint
ventures are disclosed in notes 26(c) and 29 to the financial

statements, respectively.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

21

Notes: (continued)

21

(c) Particulars of the joint ventures, which are indirectly held by

the Company, are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

operations
Company name s,
AGEA 1 7
Beijing Chia Tai Feedmill Limited PRC/PRC
ABI3R IE KB LA H] W, v
Handan Chia Tai Feed Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC
HIS B IE K B B A W] HE,
Henan East Chia Tai Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC
W R T IE KA RA A W,
Jilin Chia Tai Enterprise Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC
HARIEREERRA A g,

Registered capital

M A
US$5,000,000

5,000,000 J&

RMB11,200,000
11,200,000 A\ B %

US$5,400,000
5,400,0003 ¢

RMB70,000,000
70,000,000 \ R ¥
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i

ML - (#)

(c) HIAR A R HERF Z

HY

i

BX

Percentage of

HAESLL

Interest

attributable
to the Profit
Group sharing

A4 M
MEAGRERE  REAN R
50.0% 50.0%
50.0% 50.0%
50.0% 50.0%
50.0% 50.0%

(

)

AR AR T

Principal activities

FEEH

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

S & ) 0 0 et

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

T 4 B8y A Rk

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

RS 4 580 400 A Bk
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 MREEQNTWES
2017 2016
—“F L TR
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt B an FILTFT
Investments in associates, included in WS AT G »
non-current assets: BENIERBEEN :
Share of net assets AN B A (a) 97,237 76,411
Goodwill on acquisition Wt B P A W P 28,868 28,868
126,105 105,279
Due to associates, included in other FEAT 2 A Bl 30E > AERHE
payables and accruals b JRE A MR 5k B TE B 2 T 30(a) (101) (50)
Interests in associates T Y A w] B RE 3R 126,004 105,229
Notes: Mtk :
(a) The Group has interests in a number of associates, none of (a) AR RS BOR BB 2 ) A RS > AR A AE

A 98 S — SR WA R B T K o TR e Mt DL
25 TR DR 2 R B T 5 2 2K B I 2 A )

T . . . . > ] 2 = .
individually immaterial associates that are accounted for using Z T R A

which is regarded as individually material. The following

table summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of all

the equity method:

Profit Other Total

Carrying for the comprehensive comprehensive
amount year income income
e T 1A AEGH bR ERE kAR
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

b b S/ FT T LT

2017 e Sl 3
Group effective interest AKE A RORE 2 126,105 15,351 7,616 22,967
2016 RN
Group effective interest A4 E A AR 3 105,279 11,091 (5,051) 6,040
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Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22 REBERANER (&)

Notes: (continued) Mt : (4F)

(b) Particulars of the principal associates, which are indirectly (b)

held by the Company, are as follows:

AR 2y ] e R 2 B A E R
T

Percentage of

HHESL
Place of Interest
incorporation/ attributable
registration and Issued ordinary/ to the Profit

operations registered capital Group sharing Principal activities

Company name B3 W eRITEEE A M
YAEER 1 8 A A WEALHERS  MEAG R F B
Conti Chia Tai International Hong Kong/ HK$3,122,000 50.0% 50.0%  Investment holding,
Limited” PRC 3,122,000#70 and manufacture and
J5FE 1 TE R B A PR W) Tk sale of animal feed
B e e e E B B A
R}
Qingdao Yi Bang Bio-Engineering PRC/PRC RMB28,409,090 12.0%* 12.0%* Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Yi Bang”)* rp /v 28,409,090 \ ¥ sale of animal vaccine
HRABENTRARAR (FE S B

CEJN

N Since the Group is not in a position to exercise joint * HRAAREBRGEHZE AR ZHE

control over the economic activity of the entities
but has significant influence over the entities, the
Group’s interests therein are classified as interests in

associates.

# The Group has a board seat at Qingdao Yi Bang and

has significant influence over the entity.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23 TAHHEZRE
2017 2016
SE-LE CE AR
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt FILFIL FILFIT
Unlisted equity investment, at cost JE LT Z RERRE > AR (a) 1,056 11,730
Listed equity investment, at fair value b RERRTRE - A RME (b) 40,695 -
41,751 11,730

Notes: Mt 3t

(a) The unlisted equity investments are not stated at fair value but (a) W5 Ik b RE S B T R AR FE A A

at cost because they do not have a quoted market price in an
active market, the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for these investments and the probabilities of the

various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
disposed unlisted equity investments of US$3,950,000 (2016:

nil) to a non-controlling shareholder at cost.

(b) Fair value measurement of listed equity investment

During the year ended 31 December 2017, one of the
unlisted equity investments of the Group became listed.
Such available-for-sale investment are subsequently measured
at fair value upon listing, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the investment is

derecognised. The movement during the year is as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B E _F—tHE+_H=+—HILEE

23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Fair value measurement of listed available-for-sale investment

(continued)

A

23 AHHEZRE (&)

ML - (#)

(b) AL EZ bR A R R (B

2017

B Sl s 3

US$’°000

E e n

Carrying amount at 1 January A—H—H Z MR E 6,898
Unrealised gain recognised in other comprehensive AN A2 T R R R 2

income during the period REEBLFH AR 32,096

Exchange realignment e 0, ) 2 1,701

Carrying amount at 31 December BT ZH=+—HZIEmE 40,695

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
listed available-for-sale investment measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair

value measurement.

2017

Listed equity investment

—E bk
il 2 3

HARMEZ R

TRANRREMRAERZ AL EZ
bR A A R R A A R - W
B % S 5 R R A 13 A A A 2 S
s = A B o

Fair value measurement as at 31 December categorised into

RtZA=Z+—HBanfatiz 48

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
W gt 31| = i
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Er i an Eman Emin Emin
40,695 - — 40,695

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no
transfers between Level 2 and Level 3, or transfers into or
out of Level 1. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the

reporting period in which they occur.

The fair value of the listed available-for-sale investment
is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset from observable markets as at the end of the

reporting period.

BREZFR-LFEFTAZ+—HIEEE
W WS T RBEMBZ B R - 5
N S B — A o AR 2 WK TR
At ST R G 0 A i B B 2 R

RSz B R 2 A RE TR S
B2 % R IR 2 W35 LA IR R R
A B i S
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

GOODWILL o
2017 2016
L
US$’000 US$’000
FFic FIL T
At 1 January w—H—H 35,121 37,563
Exchange realignment [EE 3, 38 & 2,367 (2,442)
At 31 December Nt -H=+—H 37,488 35,121

Goodwill represented the assets that do not meet the criteria
for recognition in the financial statements including workforce
and synergies that the Group expected to achieve through the

business combinations.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(CGU) identified according to the country of operation and

the operating segment.

Goodwill is allocated to the China agri-food segment.
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2016: 3%). The cash
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 10.0% (2016:
14.9% — 18.9%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant CGUs.
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FHmRE T 35 0 R R AT HER - Bl AR E T
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B 7% 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2017 B E _F—tHE+_H=+—HILEE

25

26

B AR

A

INVENTORIES 25 =EE

2017 2016
BBl BN
US$’000 US$’000
FEi T FEo L
Raw materials B R} 508,883 444,359
Work in progress Fedl 3,639 3,156
Finished goods B 100,148 85,856
612,670 533,371

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26 EUWEZERRERE
2017 2016
“E L ZE AR
US$’000 US$’000
E e n FILFIC
Trade receivables FEWE 5 Rk 277,547 196,027
Bills receivable JE W 10,353 6,875
287,900 202,902

Depending on the requirements of the market and business,
the Group may extend credit to its customers. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management
and interest may be charged by the Group for overdue trade

receivables at rates determined by the Group with reference

PP T 5 B B R AR BE R K P
5 B o A AR I B A R AR OBR I e 2 B
Vo BB IR O R WA AR Z A K > KTl
HE 7 3% AC 42 ] 2 % 1 3t ) e 2 R R G
B HERFH > KAEMBAEREPER
JE i o AR 55 1 M AL B o Wk M O R 2 MR i 4

to market practice. In the opinion of the directors, there is no (B E AU ARE) T
significant concentration of credit risk. An aging analysis of
the Group’s trade and bills receivables, based on the date of
delievery of goods, is as follows:
2017 2016
it Sl ol 5 ZR AN
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T FL T
60 days or below 60HE LT 257,220 179,466
61 to 180 days 61%180H 27,387 23,272
Over 180 days % 180H 3,293 164
287,900 202,902
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b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

26 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26 BEWESERIAREE (&)
(continued)
Notes: M Et -
(a) The movements in the provision for impairment of trade and (a) AF P HE W B ) MR ik T S R Uk A S A5 4 B
bills receivables during the year are as follows: T
2017 2016
2 —ts TR
Note US$’°000 US$’000
it Emon Emn
At 1 January m—H—H 9,167 8,531
Impairment during the year recognised in  R4E RN EREEMERZ
profit or loss, net VA VR 9 1,754 952
Uncollectible amounts written off A o WL BT 2 i 4 A (182) (316)
At 31 December Bm+—_A=+—H 10,739 9,167

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade and
bills receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
and bills receivables of US$10,619,000 (2016: US$7,872,000)
with a carrying amount before provision of the same amount.
The individually impaired trade and bills receivables relate to

customers who were in financial difficulties.

The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables that are

2t W BT R sk Tk S R R A B A
T MR TH B 45 1,061.9% K0 (% — N4 -
T87. 285350 ) 2 M8 i M W B 5% MR kAR ol )
TR TG o 2% 108 ol 1B e B 5 MRk I 5
WA BN EZ R P AR -

(b) AR A A A 2 M B 50 SR Ak I

neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired BRIRE AT
is as follows:

2017 2016
- Sl e S AY: S
US$’000 US$’000
FiLF I FILT T
Neither past due nor impaired B ] B A IR AE 265,384 181,327
180 days or below past due WA 180H 19,975 19,101
Over 180 days past due WHZ I 180H 1,791 689
287,150 201,117

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to

customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] & Mt &
Year ended 31 December 2017 #E R —LE T+ H =2+ —HILFE
26 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26 EBUHESERMRERE (&)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mt - (%)
(b) (continued) (b) (%)
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to 300 34 S DA 2 ME ROIR R B AR SR B R A
independent customers that have a good track record with FRERZ ML E P A B o BB . K
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the UNGIE € AV 8 ) SR R & Ny |
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment B % SR B AR A W A O | > P S
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been JH ¥ 3% SR AR A R A o
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
(c) Included in the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December (c) REAR - F—LET_HA=+—HZHE
2017 are aggregate amounts of US$3,815,000 (2016: KEZEFEBEREFBEHREER
US$3,986,000) and US$219,169,000 (2016: US$152,727,000) 5y W BT A A st R385 E Kt (2R — A
due from joint ventures and related companies, respectively, 4 1 398.68 E0) 281,916,998 L (=
arising from transactions carried out in the ordinary course BN 1 185,272,783 58) 20 79 2 HE I
of business of the Group. The balances are unsecured, bear GEAERBBATZHRE - ZEHRE
interest at rates determined by the Group after past due and SEHCHT - 730 4% F A 42 18 B e 2 B R B
are repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by B RE G SR (AL R E
the Group to its major independent third party customers. BB =07 & PR GEZF R RAE B
#) o
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27 BENER RERHMEWERXN
RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
G- Sl i3 TR N
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T FxL T
Prepayments TEAT HR K 215,466 96,456
Deposits W4 5,771 8,099
Other receivables i IR R 111,083 72,086
Derivative financial instruments fik4EmTH - 5,063
332,320 181,704
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE
AR B RHEMEKRERR

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2017 were aggregate amounts of
US$17,321,000 (2016: US$1,413,000) and US$140,156,000
(2016: US$52,206,000) due from joint ventures and related

companies, respectively.

The balances with joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for an aggregate
amount of US$17,216,000 (2016: nil) due from certain joint
venture which bear interests at 4.9% (2016: nil) per annum

and are repayable on demand.

The balances with related companies are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an aggregate
impairment loss of US$2,419,000 (2016: nil) (note 9) was
recognised for prepayments, deposits and other receivables
with an aggregate carrying amount of US$4,790,000 (2016:
nil) as only a portion of the respective balance is expected to

be recovered.

Fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
derivative financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the

three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair

value measurement.
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(%)

(b)

AEMP_F—-LEFT_A=Z+—HZ
TR~ e R R RR S - B
BRI B32IEEIL (SR —NE - 14138
00) K 14%4,015.68 K0 (2B — N4 -
5,220.685 £ 70) 4 Bl B BE WA 8 A 3 KB
HANE ZARIE o WS IR A AT - &
B 1] R AR o

HEBREZRE - BT AF,721.683%
T(ZE—NE ) ERETEERER
AR KL% (ZF— N4« ) 5H B K%
BORAER AN > HAR AR ML ~ B K
I 1] 2 R A o

SR 2 W] 2 BT AR AT - 408 % J

RE-Z—LETFZHAZ T —HIEEE > K
5 T e R TR MR K~ 32 4 T Lt M O ok
ARG H241.98 %70 (ZF — N4+ ) (K
7E9) » FLHRTH AR (H479.08 KT (ZF—A
A E) > BR BEEHE B IR A —
EEER

A 4w TR A REF &

ARMEZ RS
TR RA G B Z AT G Rh T
FLF AR BT B O A SO o S 3 B B

B i M Q134N M i 2 A O A =AW
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2017 B E _F—tHE+_H=+—HILEE

27 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27 EANERFR BRERHEMEWRERER

RECEIVABLES (continued) (&)

Notes: (continued) Mt o ()

(b) Fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments (b) A4 T HAARER & ()
(continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RAAEZ R ()

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December categorised into
BRHA=Z+F—HARMRRERZ M
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
| Ry B0 ik
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FILTIT FILTIT FILTF 7T FILTIT

2016 ZEAE
Derivative financial instruments — 4w TH -

Forward exchange contracts 7 B A A TR — 5,063 — 5,063
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no BE_Z—-ANET_HA=+—HIL&EE
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or o WS — R RN 22 B
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers AR BE =R c REEZBEIR
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the SR A 1 R W R U0 B Ak A AR ) 2 R o

reporting period in which they occur.

The fair value of the forward exchange contracts was HEMANEARZARMBEHET IS LK E:2
determined by using market comparison approach with 2% R B R 22 v 35 R ] R RE Y a8 A
reference to the forward rates of forward exchange contracts BAFMEEEREE -

involving the same currencies in the market as at the end of

the reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

RERBITERRHEMBRERE]

CASH FLOW INFORMATION ¥
2017 2016
S B CBAR
US$’000 US$’000
BETE KT
Cash and bank balances other than time B& RRIT &R R a$EEMERK)
deposits 265,512 236,153
Time deposits FE TR 61,362 224,868
Total cash and bank balances BR4e R RAT R ek 326,874 461,021
Less: Pledged deposits W BRI EK (24,762) (41,005)
Less: Time deposits with maturity over koo B H BB =M A 2 g ER
three months (15,305) (151,112)
Cash and cash equivalents B4 M E5EY 286,807 268,904

Notes:

(a)

At 31 December 2017, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) amounted to US$283,739,000
(2016: US$418,906,000) and US$25,790,000 (2016:
US$20,692,000), respectively. RMB and VND are not freely
convertible into other currencies. Under Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations in China and
the Law on Foreign Investment in Vietnam, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB and VND into other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business for our foreign currency businesses such as imports of

raw materials and equipment, distribution of dividends, etc.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
depending on the cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

NoBZ—tHE A=+ —H s KEEZ
DA B W B W vl S 1 B 4 B RAT B 47
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2017 B E _F—tHE+_H=+—HILEE

28 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER 28 HEeRBITEFEREHEMEESREE

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) (&)
Notes: (continued) Mt (%)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: (c) Tl G B P A i B R AR

A AN S A A AR I S B A M R
gk > AR AR SRIEH &2 EAL - §
B BT A A I R R B e B R R
HERBENTEAERGEAREREERD
G S5 A TR Y AR M B A

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flow were, or future cash flow will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as

cash flows from financing activities.

Bank borrowings Corporate bond Total
LT AR eI M
US$’000 US$’000 US$’°000
E i n Pk n P n
At 1 January 2017 W_Z—LHE—H—H 1,280,226 143,386 1,423,612
Changes from financial cash flow: MERERED -
Proceeds from new bank borrowings BT 4 SR AT K 1,168,983 - 1,168,983
Repayment of bank borrowings B R SRAT G 5 (949,920) - (949,920)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38) W Ji — 1 P} J&§ 2 )
(B iE38) 9,445 - 9,445
Total changes from financing cash il B A AR )
flows 228,508 - 228,508
Exchange realignment [ 5t 9 3 23,177 8,939 32,116
Other changes: HAis#H) :
Amortisation of upfront fee T S 4 4 e R Y 2,303 493 2,796
At 31 December 2017 w_Z—LtHE+-H
=+—H 1,534,214 152,818 1,687,032
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

29 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 29 EBHEZFERIARER
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of AR E RN E B RN B 5 R 2 R 8BaHr
the reporting period, based on the date of receipt of goods, is as (BB HM ARE) W :
follows:
2017 2016
G- Sl 2 TR
US$’000 US$’000
B FILFIT
60 days or below 60H B AT 337,173 258,471
61 to 180 days 61%180H 25,733 16,616
Over 180 days ZJ*180H 3,872 2,424
366,778 277,511
Bills payable AT 48 96,056 63,098
462,834 340,609
Included in the Group’s trade payables as at 31 December 2017 AEAR_F—LtHET_HA=Z+—HZE
is an aggregate amount of US$1,234,000 (2016: US$941,000) G EROEREH W EBER SRR E
and US$19,864,000 (2016: US$17,884,000) due to joint PV E A B i 3 % B A W] Z K OE 43 B
ventures and related companies respectively, arising from BRH23.48 R T (ZF—AF 1 9418 K 0)
transactions carried out in the ordinary course of business of F1,986.48 R0 (ZF— N4 : 1,788.48 3£
the Group. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and are JC) o EFERB I ML - B RAREE
repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by its P9t (BRAS S [ R B 28 = R
major independent third party suppliers. PRt Z I E) -
30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30 HttEMSERREAREHR
2017 2016
—F—L4 RN
US$’000 US$’000
E o FxL T
Receipts in advance THCE 3K 86,929 59,688
Deferred income BN A 42,749 37,884
Accruals THREH 188,985 179,420
Other payables LAt £5F B 3k 125,262 69,416
Derivative financial instruments fik&EmTH 8,091 -
452,016 346,408
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals as at 31
December 2017 were aggregate amounts of US$13,256,000
(2016: US$8,136,000), US$101,000 (2016: US$50,000) and
US$22,970,000 (2016: US$20,194,000) due to joint ventures,

associates and related companies, respectively.

The balances with joint ventures, associates and related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment, except for (i) an aggregate amount of
US$12,853,000 (2016: US$8,106,000) due to certain joint
ventures which bear interests at 2% (2016: 2%) per annum,
and are repayable on demand, and (ii) an aggregate amount
of US$14,886,000 (2016: US$16,409,000) due to a related

company which is repayable within one month.

Fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
derivative financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair

value measurement.

B AR

PN

30
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B

Htb BN RAEERER (R)

Mt

(a)

(b)

AEER - R—LETZA=Z+—HZH
b JRE A R Ak T AR B PG A1 1,325.68
KIE(ZF— N4 813.683%50) ~ 10.18
KT (TR —ANE 5.08ET) K2,297.08
EIC(ZF— N £ 2,019.48%58) 40k
JE AT B A 2 - T o0 ) Rk B A W) 2K
1E °

LA A3 s A R R A R Z R
o BTG A28 38 ET (ZF—A
41 810.68 K0 BN E T B AETIX
AERIR2% (ZRB— N 2%) 7H B RIRE
SRR > DL K (i) A wt1,488.68 K50 (ZF
—INAE 1 1,640.9% F50) AT — Z B4
B AE TR — 8 A R HEREREE Y
SEHGPH ~ Ho o B JHE B S R A o

g g I N TP W= i 6

ARAEZ RS
TSR R A G I A A ek T
Bt UG R A R fE > M35 W B
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017 #E _F—tHFE+_H=+—HILEE

30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30 HttESNRERREARER (&)

(continued)
Notes: (continued) MfaE > (4F)
(b) Fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments (b) it & ih T B0 A RAEF R (81
(continued)
Fair value measurement as at 31 December categorised into
RTHZHA=+— A RMEEE2Z 08
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
S8 SN =8 sk
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
KL TIC FILT T FILTIT FILTIL
2017 e w2
Derivative financial instruments — 4w TH -
Forward exchange contracts AN A R - 8,091 - 8,091
During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no HRE-_Z—EHEE+_A=Z=1+—HILEE
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or o WS — R A 2 B R B
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers A skil AR = AR R o AN 2 SR TR
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the 4 A R T R BB A AR 2 AR o

reporting period in which they occur.

The fair value of the forward exchange contracts is determined FEHAMNE A R Z A RAE TR m 5 i 2
by using market comparison approach with reference to the T 3 SR 2 T 3 b R [ e R A s A
forward rates of forward exchange contracts involving the [ A [l 1y 4 ) BB R A 2 o

same currencies in the market as at the end of the reporting

period.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & Mt 5

% B B &R A

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

31 BANK BORROWINGS 31 H|ITHER
2017 2016
—E L RN
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt FFic E < an
Bank borrowings, secured AR SR (a),(b) 162,936 113,477
Bank borrowings, unsecured SEHEAT SRATAE 3K 1,371,278 1,166,749
Total bank borrowings SRAT A AR AR 1,534,214 1,280,226
Analysed into amounts repayable: BIREH SN
Within one year or on demand —4FE N IR R 697,749 376,093
In the second year R AR 211,802 137,714
In the third to fifth year WE=F A 614,481 748,410
Beyond five years R AR 10,182 18,009
Total bank borrowings SRATAE AR B 1,534,214 1,280,226
Portion classified as current liabilities 438 B BB AE A (c) (697,749) (376,093)
Non-current portion FETR B 836,465 904,133
Notes: i3

(a) At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s property, plant

and eqiuipment with carrying amounts of US$72,685,000
(2016: US$59,542,000) (note 15(b)) were pledged as security

for bank borrowings of the Group.

(b) At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s land lease
prepayments with carrying amounts of US$45,111,000 (2016:
US$43,246,000) (note 17) were pledged as security for bank

borrowings of the Group.
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b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% R & M =
Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE
31 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 31 HRITER(E)
Notes: (continued) Mt : (4F)
(c) The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings of the Group are (c) AR 2 SRAT MG IR A DL TR M R B
denominated in the following currencies: fir :
2017 2016
B Sl w3 ZEF A
US$’000 US$’000
FLFii FILTIT
Us$ e 761,717 789,811
VND W E 381,474 229,695
RMB N 391,023 260,720
1,534,214 1,280,226
As at 31 December 2017, none of the covenants relating to R-F—tE+_HA=+—H > EER
bank borrowings had been breached (2016: nil). 1L A B SRATAE Sk 3t (B — N4 .
) o
(d) As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current portion of long- (d) N_F—tHE+H=+—H > X4EHAE
term bank borrowings amounted to US$115,464,000 (2016: BIRAT R K Z TR B R 2 14R1,546.4 8550
US$66,057,000). (ZB—N4 1 6,605. 78K 0) -
32 CORPORATE BOND 32 BHEEFHF
2017 2016
SELE CRAE
US$’000 US$’000
VT Fx T
Carrying amount at 1 January B—H—HZEEE 143,386 -
Additions gy - 144,842
Accrued interest expense HRA S EH 493 768
Exchange realignment T 56 3 2% 8,939 (2,224)
Carrying amount at 31 December RHZH=Z+—HZEmE 152,818 143,386
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Year ended 31 December 2017 #E R —LE T+ H =2+ —HILFE
32 CORPORATE BOND (continued) 32 1¥EEH(E)
On 6 January 2016, the Group received approval from the 20164 1H6H » A4 [ Yo B v 3 i 95 B %
China Securities Regulatory Commission for the application of EHZEGMEERPEGEGE > R8T
CTI for the proposed issuance of domestic corporate bonds. BN A
On 11 November 2016, the book-building exercise for the RE-F—AFE+—HT—H > BI74%EEH
issuance of the corporate bond with a principal amount of ARG Ak N R 106800 (FH %7 1484,630.5
RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to US$146,305,000) was HELT) ZHILERE T/ AR _F
completed; and on 29 November 2016, the corporate bond —NEF+—HZ+NILH > ZLEEHFCBIT
was issued and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. WL EFZSH LT BB ITEM
After deducting the issuance costs, the Group received a net 1% » AREFEWBI N BATFRREANRE
proceed of RMB990,000,000 (equivalent to US$144,842,000) 1870 M 25 8 1484,484 .28 35 58) » IE K H
from the issuance. CTI used the proceeds from the issuance MEBITARERNTAREA M BRIT
of the corporate bond for repayment of loans from financial AEAMARBE S -
institutions and replenishment of working capital.
The coupon rate of the corporate bond was fixed at 3.69% A EAR IR 2 A R D E R EFA3.69% ©
per annum. The maturity of the corporate bond shall be 5 GAEEFEZ RIS > MRBZFEKIE
years, with CTD’s right to adjust the coupon rate and a right of KRB A S WA R R R EH
redemption exercisable by the holders at the end of the first e Il 4 2 R ERAE o
three-year period.
33 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 33 HttkEARHAERE
2017 2016
- Sl ot 5 ZENE
US$’000 US$’000
FiL T F T
Provision for severance allowance B B R 1,481 1,038
Non-current portion of deferred income F it B B Ay 1 AR A A 23,790 23,058
25,271 24,096
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Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE
34 DEFERRED TAX 34 FERIE
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the AREE RS A M BRI P HER Z R TR
consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: HERE/ (A WT:
2017 2016
L TR N
US$’000 US$’000
e FL T
Deferred tax assets BERIEE 24,397 3,907
Deferred tax liabilities A S IE A (69,467) (61,626)
(45,070) (57,719)
The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets and AR - A 2 0 A B A A 2 s
liabilities and their movements during the year are as follows: BT
Revaluation
of properties, Depreciation Losses
plant and  Revaluation in excess  available for
machinery  of available-  Revaluation of related offsetting Dividend Net deferred
and intangible forsale o biological ~ depreciation future taxable  withholding tax assets/
assets  investment assets allowance profits tax Others  (liabilities)
LESY T TERM IRk
REGREE WHEEZ RHHE ERRARZ 175} FRERA
BEEN  REEN EWEEEN  KENRE O TEEER  DARE A EE/(AK)
US$000 US$°000 U$§°000 US$°000 US$000 US$$°000 US$°000 US$000
Eifrn  EiTi Eifi ELTA Eifi EATA Eifad ELTA
At 1 January 2017 REZZ—=tE—H—H (18,665) - (8,669) 1,828 3,332 (29,102) (6,443) (57,719)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) 0~ AR BH MK/
profit or loss during the year (k) < BRI
(note 12) (Rrit12) 926 - (874) 16 18,884 (209) (189) 18,554
Deferred tax charged to equity ERMEZ AR
during the year BERE (4,402) (8,024) - - - - - (12426)
Acquisition of a subsidiary K- AW B AT
(note 38) (3E38) (890) - - - 8,021 - - 7,131
Exchange realignment JE j (895) (309) (28) 5 661 - (44) (610)
At 31 December 2017 R-F—tEFZH
=t—f (396) (8333) 057 189 3088 (931) (6676 (45010
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

- -t FF K

179



180

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2017 B E _F—tHE+_H=+—HILEE

34 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

b #® H

B AR

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets and

A

34 EZEFIE ()
AR A S ) 2 0 B T R % B A

liabilities and their movements during the year are as follows: BE :
Revaluation
of properties, Depreciation Losses
plant and in excess  available for
machinery ~ Revaluation of related offsetting Dividend Net deferred
and intangible  of biological ~ depreciation future taxable  withholding tax assets/
assets assets allowance profits tax Others  (liabilities)
ERY 1 TEER AR
1383 LR R FRIERH
EEEM AMEEES  NENRE O TEWER REMERE e &E/ (8%)
US$'000 US $°000 US $°000 US $°000 US $°000 US §'000 US $°000
¥ifr  Frfr  Fifi FEnfx Eifr FEnfrn ELFL
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-AE—H—H (18,888) (14,463) 1,675 3,032 (20,707) (1,571) (50,922)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERRER NN/
to profit or loss during the year (H0BR) Z B ALIE
(note 12) (Wk12) 473 5,064 1 474 (8,395) (4,893) (6,500)
Deferred tax charged to equity ENRERRIRZ
during the year EERE (790) - - - - - (790)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) WM 4 7 (WH38) (362) - - - - - (362)
Exchange realignment JEE 5t 902 130 (24) (174) - 1 855
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB-AE+ZR
=1—H (18,665) (8,6609) 1,828 3332 (29,102) (6,443) (57,719)
Notes: M EE -
(a) The Group has tax losses arising in mainland China that will (a) 45 [ o Bk e AR 1K B R Ak HE R 385 A1

expire within five years for offsetting against future taxable

profits.

At 31 December 2017, deferred tax assets have not been

recognised in respect of unused tax losses of US$118,257,000
(2016: US$76,241,000) as it is not considered probable that

taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses

can be utilised. The unrecognised tax losses arose in mainland

China, and will expire within five years from the end of the

reporting period.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

34 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on any
dividends distributable by the subsidiaries established in
mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1

January 2008 onwards.

At 31 December 2017, temporary differences unrecognised
for deferred tax liabilities relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to US$602,319,000 (2016:
US$433,459,000). Deferred tax liabilities of US$60,166,000
(2016: US$43,345,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

34

i SE B E (/)

Mt - (4)

(b)

(d)
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35

b#% EH B & R 2 A

SHARE CAPITAL 35 RAK
Shares % 4
2017 2016
—FE—LH ZERNE
US$’000 US$’000
E Ve it FEo L
Authorised WE
Ordinary shares: B
36,000,000,000 shares (2016: 36,000,000,0008% (=& — 7~
36,000,000,000 shares) of US$0.01 4 1 36,000,000,0008% ) 5
each JBETHEO.013€ 78 360,000 360,000
Convertible preference shares: WS
Series A — 20,000,000,000 shares A% %) —20,000,000,000
(2016: 20,000,000,000 shares) of B (ZF— N4
US$0.01 each 20,000,000,000/8 ) 45 Bt i
fE0.013€ 7€ 200,000 200,000
Series B — 4,000,000,000 shares (2016: B %1 —4,000,000,000% (—
4,000,000,000 shares) of US$0.01 F— N4 1 4,000,000,000
each Jit ) 4 Ji HIE0.013€ 5T 40,000 40,000
240,000 240,000
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid CEITRAR
Ordinary shares: BB :
24,071,837,232 shares (2016: 24,071,837,232 /% (—=F— 7
24,071,837,232 shares) of 41 24,071,837,232/%)
US$0.01 each & B AH0.013 8 240,718 240,718
Conwvertible preference shares: A fe S
Series B — 1,261,077,748 shares (2016: B&% - 1,261,077,748 (=
1,261,077,748 shares) of US$0.01 F—NEE [ 1,261,077,748
each JB ) B i {E0.013E 5T 12,611 12,611
253,329 253,329

There is no movement in the Company’s issued ordinary shares

and convertible preference shares during the years ended 31

December 2017 and 2016.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Convertible preference shares

The convertible preference shares are convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company and are entitled to the
same dividends that are declared for the ordinary shares.
Convertible preference shares do not carry the right to vote
in shareholders’ meeting. Upon winding up, the Company’s
residual assets and funds are distributed to the members of the

Company in the following priority:

(i) in paying to the holders of the convertible preference
shares, pari passu as between themselves by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts of the convertible
preference shares held by them respectively, an
amount equal to the aggregate of the issue price of
all the convertible preference shares held by them

respectively;

(ii) the balance of such assets shall be distributed on a pari
passu basis among the holders of any class of shares in
the capital of the Company other than the convertible
preference shares and other than any shares which are
not entitled to participate in such assets, by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts paid up on the shares

held by them respectively; and

(iii)  the remaining balance of such assets shall belong to
and be distributed on a pari passu basis among the
holders of any class of shares including the convertible
preference shares, other than any shares not entitled to
participate in such assets, by reference to the aggregate

nominal amounts of shares held by them respectively.

The convertible preference shares shall be non-redeemable by

the Company or the holders thereof.
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35

36

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 36 to the

financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“2002 Share
Option Scheme”) which became effective on 26 November
2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date. On 22 June 2012, the
board of directors of the Company approved the Company to
terminate the 2002 Share Option Scheme and adopt a new
share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) in place of
the 2002 Share Option Scheme, which will remain in force
for a period of ten years from that date. Upon termination, no
further options will be granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme. However, the rules of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
will remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to
give effect to the exercise of any option granted prior to its
termination, or otherwise to the extent as may be required
in accordance with the rules of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme. All options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme prior to its termination will continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the rules of the 2002 Share

Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme is operated for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the Company’s directors, senior executives, employees of
the Group and those participants that, in the opinion of the
directors, have contributions or potential contributions to the

Group.

B AR

A

35

36
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. The maximum number of
ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of share options granted
to each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s ordinary shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer (including the date of offer
granted), upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after the grant and ends on a date which is not

later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; and (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary share of the
Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at a shareholders’ meeting.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had no share

options outstanding.

There was no grant of share options during the years ended 31

December 2017 and 2016.
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37 RESERVES 37

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are

presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a) The merger reserve represents the excess of the total
of the consideration transferred for the acquisition
of subsidiaries through business combinations under
common control and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interest over the carrying amount of the
assets acquired, liabilities assumed and pre-acquisition

reserves combined by the Group.

(b) The available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for available-for-sales investments in note

2.4(m).

(c) The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for

office premises held for own use set out in note 2.4(g).

(d) The PRC reserve funds are reserves set aside in
accordance with the PRC Companies Law or the Law
of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using Chinese and
Foreign Investment as applicable to the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. None of the
Group’s PRC reserve funds as at 31 December 2017 and
2016 were distributable in the form of cash dividends.

(e) The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note

2.4(aa).
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BUSINESS COMBINATION

In January 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of a
subsidiary, namely Chia Tai Food (Sugian) Co., Ltd. (previous
name: COFCO Meat (Sugian) Co., Ltd.) (“Sugian Chia
Tai”) (the “2017 Acquisition”), with the details of the 2017

Acquisition was shown in below:

In December 2016, a subsidiary of the Group signed an equity
transaction agreement with COFCO Poultry Industry Co. Ltd.
(the “Seller”) to:

(i) acquire the entire interest in Sugian Chia Tai from
the Seller at a consideration of RMB187,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$26,926,000); and

(ii)  take over the shareholder’s loan, due from Sugian Chia
Tai to the Seller, of RMB384,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$55,801,000) by paying the same

amount to the Seller.

Sugian Chia Tai is principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of chicken meat products in the PRC. The
total consideration of RMB571,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$82,217,000) was fully settled and included
in “Other non-current assets” in the consolidated statement of

financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016.
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38 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38 EKEHE(E)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of HEBIERRBEE WA RIEERABZA
Sugian Chia Tai as at the date of acquisition are set out as RAEWT :
follows:
Sugian
Chia Tai
mEIEX
Note US$’000
Kt Fr T
The 2017 Acquisition 201700
Property, plant and equipment W~ R NG 15 75,523
Land lease prepayments AT LA 2 17 4,099
Deferred tax assets ESEBLIE A 34 7,131
Inventories ety 4,466
Current biological assets EWEYEE 18 1,306
Trade receivables JRE W B2 5 MRk 2,130
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR - #EK
F At B WO R 5k 8,096
Cash and cash equivalents BE&ERBALSEFEY 1,778
Trade payables FEAT B 5 BR K (6,968)
Other payables and accruals JL At JE A) Bk B TR AR B (60,943)
Bank borrowings AT K 28 (9,445)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value B F A R Z A 27,173
Shareholder’s loan took over BB EK 55,801
Exchange realignment I 34, 5% 2% (757)
Satisfied by cash DLBL4& X p) 82,217
The cash flows in respect of the 2017 Acquisition is AR01TBEM B SmENT -
as follows:
Total
At
US$’000
B n
Cash consideration paid in 2016 A S N S5 2 TR AW 82,217
Cash and cash equivalents acquired in 2017 T LR RE B S K
Bl (1,778)
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Since the acquisition, Suqian Chia Tai contributed
US$58,181,000 to the Group’s revenue and a loss of
US$10,353,000 to the consolidated net profit for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Had the business combination taken place at the beginning of
the year, the revenue of the Group and the net profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
US$5,640,785,000 and US$40,147,000, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group acquired
the following businesses (collectively known as the “2016

Acquisitions”):

(i) 100% interest of Hubei Chia Tai from Chia Tai Food
Investment Company Limited (an indirect wholly-

owned subsidiary of CPG) with a consideration of

US$15,950,000.

(ii) 70% interest of Fujian Chia Tai (previous name:
Fujian Sumpo Foods Holding Co., Ltd.) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Fujian CT Group”) from
Sumpo International Holdings Limited and Longyan
Huiren Investment Co., Ltd. with a consideration of
RMB322,665,000 (equivalent to US$47,207,000).

Hubei Chia Tai and Fujian CT Group are principally engaged
in the manufacture and sale of animal feed and chicken
meat products in the PRC. The considerations for the 2016
Acquisitions were fully settled during the year ended 31
December 2016.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Hubei
Chia Tai and Fujian CT Group as at the dates of acquisition

were set out as follows:
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Year ended 31 December 2017 & E - F—LE+_H=+—HILFEE
38 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38 EKEHE(E)
Hubei Fujian
Chia Tai CT Group Total
WHLIEXR fEIEREH it
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
A E F i F i
The 2016 Acquisitions 2016 W%
Property, plant and equipment W - RE Sk 15 81,068 50,194 131,262
Land lease prepayments A R EE 17 21,636 8,156 29,792
Other non-current assets Ho A IR B A 53 4,400 4,453
Inventories e 8,649 10,276 18,925
Current biological assets EWAEmEE 18 3,601 3,188 6,789
Trade receivables JRE W 52 5 Bk 17,722 7,275 24,997
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  THATHRZK ~ %4 K HAth
JRE WSk 1,848 43,916 45,764
Cash and cash equivalents e RBLE&EHEY 13,320 595 13,915
Trade payables A B 5 MRk (4,242) (10,541) (14,783)
Other payables and accruals At JE A R ik e TE B
#H (20,626) (13,685) (34,311)
Bank borrowings AT (107,381) (36,533)  (143,914)
Deferred tax liabilities AEIERL I FUE 34 (53) (309) (362)
15,595 66,932 82,527
Non-controlling interest FEF bl 2 - (20,080) (20,080)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value Ak EE A AE
ZHEfE 15,595 46,852 62,447
Exchange realignment [ 5, R 2 355 355 710
Satisfied by cash VLB 4 32 A 15,950 47,207 63,157
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE
BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38 EBEO(E)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the 2016 BR20I6ENRESRESHWT
Acquisitions was as follows:
Hubei Fujian
Chia Tai CT Group Total
WIALIE R  fR eI K4 Bk
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FILFIL FILFL FIL L
Cash consideration paid in 2016 R ANEINZB4E
R 15,950 47,207 63,157
Cash and cash equivalents acquired in RN B 8 K
2016 BlaSHY (13,320) (595) (13,915)
Net cash outflow included in cash flows BER2016HBEFE 284
used in investing activities in 2016 MENHR AR EE 2,630 46,612 49,242

Since the acquisitions, Hubei Chia Tai and Fujian CT
Group contributed US$99,058,000 and US$16,272,000 to
the Group’s revenue, respectively and US$4,023,000 and
US$811,000 to the consolidated net profit, respectively, for
the year ended ended 31 December 2016.

Had the business combinations taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue of the Group and the net profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 would have been
US$5,539,199,000 and US$335,575,000, respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees were given by certain subsidiaries in the Group
to financial institutions in the PRC for certain indebtedness
of independent third party customers of the Group. In the
case of financial guarantees provided which exceed the
net asset value of the relevant subsidiaries, our maximum
contingent liabilities are limited to the net asset value
of these subsidiaries. The net asset value of the relevant
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 was US$91,158,000 (2016:
US$85,766,000). The contingent liabilities of the Group
in respect of such guarantees as at 31 December 2017 were

US$23,537,000 (2016: US$30,900,000).
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] & Mt &
Year ended 31 December 2017 BRE_-F—LEF+ _H=Z+—HILFEE
40 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 40 REHERH
As lessor EREHEA
The Group leases its investment properties under operating AEAMRBEREHELRHEHAEREDE
lease arrangements, with the leases negotiated with original R EZ B A1 FE20EARE
terms ranging from 1 to 20 years.
At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum MN_2—LE+H=+—H > A=z
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with MBHET » AL R AR A 8 ERHE
its tenants falling due as follows: mF :
2017 2016
G- Sl i 2 TR AN
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T FILFIT
Within one year —4E N 2,721 79
In the second to fifth years, inclusive B o_EPHE (BFEHRME) 2,859 -
After five years TR 1 -
5,581 79
As lessee EREEE
The Group leases certain of its properties, plant and equipment AEAMRBELEMELHMPE THWE - K
and land under operating lease arrangements, with the leases 5 TS i B M > BT E Z R A 2 1 3504
negotiated with original terms ranging from 1 to 50 years. N
At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum W_F—EFET_A=Z+—H AU HEZ
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling BRI T » AHE JH 7 AR o 55 A S8 0 B B 32
due as follows: mF
2017 2016
- Sl S ZR AN
US$’000 US$’000
FiLF i FILFIT
Within one year —ERN 57,849 44,375
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F 2RI (BFEERMES) 195,244 143,423
After five years FAEDIR 291,918 232,297
545,011 420,095
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

The Group had the following capital commitments as

at the end of the reporting period:

BEREE

(a)

ACER B B R 2 EAREWM T ¢

2017 2016
SE-pE SN
US$’000 US$’000
FL Tt FILTIC

Contracted, but not provided for: CEA - MR 1 B
Buildings g 38,723 38,247
Plant and machinery (note) W Tk as (B k) 50,759 33,894
89,482 72,141

Note:

Included in the Group’s capital commitment of plant and
machinery and buildings as at 31 December 2017 are amounts
of US$2,821,000 (2016: US$3,325,000) and US$449,000
(2016: nil), respectively, contracted but not provided for to

related companies.

The Group’s share of capital commitments,
contracted but not provide for, of joint ventures and
associates amounting to US$74,000 (2016: nil) and
US$4,853,000 (2016: US$4,022,000), respectively.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE
42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 42

(a)

In addition to the acquisition of Hubei Chia Tai in
2016 disclosed in note 38, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties during the year:

Sales of goods to:

High Orient Enterprises Limited
(“HOEL”) and its related
entities”

ITOCHU Corporation
(“ITOCHU”)"

Joint ventures

Associates

Other related entities with same
shareholders as CPG

Purchases of goods from:
HOEL and its related entities”
CTEI and its subsidiaries®
ITOCHU"
Joint ventures
Associate
Other related entities with same

shareholders as CPG

Rental income received and

receivable from HOEL and its

related entities”

HOEL and its related entities”

Technical service fee to CPG*

Royalty fee to CPG*

Royalty fee to Chia Tai Animal

Husbandry Investment (Beijing)
Co., Ltd. (“CT Animal
Husbandry”)*

SHEEMT

High Orient Enterprises
Limited (THOEL) &
BN FEETE

A PR Xy v g
(M)
TR

T A Wl

HoAth B 2 A 26 5L CPG A
) e 3R

TREMA
HOEL K H B A3~
CTEI K 2 Fft g A wl -
R R
Lok g 3
/N
WAL A CPGH

HH T JBe R

EHOEL K H B i £ 35 HE
ez HeErA"

Rental expenses paid and payable to JEff & Ot &S HF

HOEL Fe J B 78 42 2%
ol i # & ¥ CPG~
#F 7 %7 CPG”

HFAT T IERBEWIRE

(Aex) A R A (TEX
)~
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(a)  BRAMREISHE A B —F—ANER
S AL IE K > AR R A 1 A L )
ANEHUTHZRZ S

Note
Mk

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

2017
Bk
US$’000
KT

947,357

28,233
2,924

11,196

872,598
2,432
1,235

17,912
6

75,194

2,033

1,645

29,190

629

2016
—BAHE
US$’000
ET

684,739

421
27,200
1,600

551,566
9,641
431
14,041

1,890

1,606

32,024
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B 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 42 BEATHE (&)
(continued)
(a) (continued) (a) (%)
2017 2016
e S i 2 TR
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt E T abn FILFIC
Project management fee to: HEENET . (viii)
Chia Tai Land Co., Ltd.’ ERE AR AR 412 108
Chia Tai Handing Engineering EREHTREHAER
Management Co., Ltd.” /NG 2,072 688
Di Peng Construction Consulting W TR EW (L) A
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.” R 2 &)~ 145 27
Interest income on trade VB H HOEL J% M At
receivables from HOEL and EZHEINE B RHKZ
its related entities ) B WA (ix) 8,626 5,845
Notes: it -

(i)

(it)

Prices of goods sold to related parties were determined
with reference to the prevailing market prices of the
goods in respective local markets. The procedures to
determine the prices of products sold to related parties
are the same as those used to determine the prices
of products supplied to independent third parties
customers. The selling prices to related parties shall
be no more favourable than those made available
tothe Group’s customers which are independent third

parties.

Price of goods purchased from related parties were
determined on the basis of arm’s length negotiations
taking into account the prevailing market prices in
respective local markets. The methods and procedures
to determine the prices of goods purchased from
related parties are the same as those used to determine
the prices of goods purchased from independent third
party suppliers. The purchase prices from related
parties shall be no less favourable than those made
available to the Group from suppliers which are

independent third parties.
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Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE
42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)
(a) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The rental income comprises of (i) US$1,861,000
(2016: US$1,781,000) related to the lease and/or
use of relevant non-feed related fixed assets located
in the PRC by HOEL and its related entities, which
was determined by reference to the depreciation
charge of the relevant assets and applicable tax
costs incurred by the Group, and (ii) US$172,000
(2016: US$109,000) related to the lease of certain
properties of the Group in Hong Kong to other related
companies at rates determined by the Group with

reference to market rates.

The rental expense was determined by reference
to the depreciation charge of the relevant assets
and applicable tax costs incurred by the related

companies.

The technical service fee was charged at 1.5% of the

net sales value of products sold by CPVC.

The royalty fee was charged at 1.5% of the net
revenue from sale of goods by CPVC.

The royalty fee was charged at 0.2% of the net sale
value of fresh-food products and 0.4% of the net sale
value of cooked-food products sold by the subsidiaries
of CP China Investment Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group. CT Animal Husbandry is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CPG.

The project management fee was charged at 3.0% of
the incurred construction cost of production facilities
of the Group’s food processing plants located in the
PRC.

The interest income was charged on trade receivable
balances due from related companies at rates
determined by the Group with reference to market

practice.

PN

42
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Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE
42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 42 BEATHEE (&)
(continued)
(a) (continued) (a) (%)

Notes: (continued) HaE: (4)

# These related party transactions also constitute # W% BN A2 B R R b TR
continuing connected transactions as defined in ASE+HIUAR N E R FFEBER
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. 5 o

A These related party transactions also constitute A AR YN R R
continuing connected transactions as defined in IR IAT N E &R B
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but their size is Gy MHEAEAR B LR > B
such that the transactions were exempt from the A7 e 58 A e SR v AR S ) R A A
disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements for B G o
continuing connected transactions.

* These related party transactions also constitute * EE A YN R 30 W N
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of BHUAENERZBHEZ S -
the Listing Rules.

(b) Balances with related parties (b) BB N A 22 R R

Details of the Group’s balances with joint ventures, FRALHEHBEGENE BEAFR X

associates and related companies included in trade B L 2 ] 2 O L R M R ) TR

and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other BRRER - EAIRK - &S R IR

receivables, trade payables and other payables and W R 3k~ HE A B 5 M 3k B il E ) R

accruals are disclosed in note 26(c), 27(a), 29 and HKEFEBRE RO BRI RE

30(a) to the financial statements, respectively. it sE26(c) » 27(a) » 292%30(a) ©

(c) Compensation of key management personnel who are (c) AEEMFEEEAR (P AEER) ZH
also directors of the Group: 1 -

2017 2016

“E L4 AN

US$’000 US$’000

Ve n Fx T

Short term employee benefits 51108 B 15 A 3,944 3,947
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Year ended 31 December 2017 B E _F—tHE+_H=+—HILEE

43

44

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

Other than the unlisted and listed equity investments being
classified as available-for-sale investments as disclosed in
note 23 to the financial statements and the forward exchange
contracts being classified as derivative financial instruments as
disclosed in notes 27 and 30, all financial assets and liabilities
of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were loans and
receivables and financial liabilities stated at amortised cost,

respectively.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk, credit risk, foreign
currency risk and liquidity risk. During the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016, the Group has entered into forward

exchange contracts to manage its exchange rates exposures.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates
primarily to the Group’s debt obligations. The Group
monitors interest rate movements and determines
appropriate hedging activities when necessary. The
Group’s exposure to market risk arising from changes in
interest rates in respect of cash and cash equivalents is

considered relatively minimal.

B AR

A

43

44
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Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

44 B EREE T RBUER (K)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued) (a) EBE=EEK(E)
The following tables set out the carrying amounts of DL % A5 ] Y 3R 5 B oK - RATAS R
the Group’s bank borrowings and corporate bond as T A 3 A5 S A v 3 R S L g s 9 SR T
at the end of the reporting period that are exposed to 1l > BHWT :
interest rate risk:
2017 2016
e S 2 ZE A
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
amount interest rate amount interest rate
YR 4L EERTIES W BB &R
US$’000 % US$’000 %
<y an FIL T
Fixed rate ] 5 1) 2845 DL 8 W A B -
denominated in:
RMB AR 314,095 4.08 203,660 3.92
Floating rate BB R TE
denominated in: B YA
US$ e 761,717 4.59 789,811 3.94
VND o F ) 381,474 4.73 229,695 3.92
RMB NN 229,746 4.75 200,446 4.84
1,372,937 1,219,952
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Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

K

¥ B B & R D

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a

reasonably possible change in interest rates, through

the impact on floating rate bank borrowings, of the

Group’s profit after tax and equity (with all other

variables held constant):

US$
US$
RMB
RMB
VND
VND

e
e

N
N
0L g i
7t i

B

44 BB EE T & R BUR (&)

(a) EXEb(H)

2 ) B A R AT A K B A
REGE T > A B BRI % b 2R
Ay R (O ft 5 O 52 )

2017 2016

—F—L4 TR

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) (decrease)
(decrease)  in profit after in profit after

in basis points  tax and equity  tax and equity

B BE 1% i A1 W3 A58 1% ¥ )

5k B 25 Y&

W, CEA) ¥/ (EA)  #m (EA4)
US$’000 US$°000 US$’000

FE By abn FILFIC

100 (7,200) (7,407)

(100) 7,200 7,407

100 (1,723) (1,503)

(100) 1,723 1,503

100 (3,052) (1,792)

(100) 3,052 1,792

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

- -t FF K



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

G|

Notes to Financial Statements

B 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group places its cash deposits with a number
of major banks and financial institutions. This cash
management policy limits the Group’s exposure to

concentration of credit risk.

A significant portion of the Group’s sales are made
to customers in the agricultural industry and, as such,
the Group is directly affected by the well-being of that
industry. However, the credit risk associated with trade
receivables is considered relatively minimal due to
the Group’s large customer base and its geographical
dispersion. The Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions. Trade
receivables of US$6,781,000 (2016: US$2,408,000)
were supported by guarantee issued by bank provided
by customers as at 31 December 2017. Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance
recognised is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective

interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in note 39, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the
reporting period is disclosed in note 39. The Group
held assets of US$1,323,000 as at 31 December 2017
(2016: US$1,412,000) as pledge for the guarantees

granted to independent third party customers.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

44 FINA

NCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

RMB and VND are not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions are
conducted with reference to the exchange rates quoted
by the People’s Bank of China and banks in Vietnam,
respectively. Payments for imported materials and
remittance of earnings out of mainland China and
Vietnam are subject to the availability of foreign

currencies.

The products of the Company’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates operating in mainland
China and Vietnam are sold primarily in RMB and
VND, respectively. Revenues and profits are thus
predominantly denominated in RMB and VND. For
certain subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
funds denominated in RMB and VND may have to
be, and from time to time are, converted into US$ or
other foreign currencies for the purchase of imported

materials and equipment.

Should RMB and VND appreciate/depreciate against
the US$, it may increase/reduce the foreign currency
equivalent of such earnings available for distribution by
these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of the

Company.

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in
mainland China and Vietnam and substantially all
transactions are conducted in RMB and VND.

B AR

A

44
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
b B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % ) & Mt &
Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BIHEBEBEESRBCK (E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(c)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (c) SMERER (M)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at T 3 B O 7 G i A3 B A Ry A A 1 DL
the end of the reporting period to a possible change in T o A4 [ 2 kB A v A R E RS (A
RMB and VND exchange rates, with all other variables AR A [ 0 AP A R 2 B A R
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and BB A RS RS RE A
equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary RO R p G RE R T RE B A 2 S )
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries). BURFRRE o ZF A SRS RE
The analysis excludes differences that would result from EBEMBEREEAREEZ T HRE R
the translation of the financial statement of foreign WREEANER -
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.

Appreciation/ Increase/

(depreciation) (decrease) Increase/
in RMB in profit (decrease)
or VND before tax in equity

N R W sl v B B i i R 43

FHE /(W2 ) B,/ (W) B,/ (W)

US$’°000 US$’000
E b
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_Z—L4+2H
Zob— Bk
If US$ weakens against RMB i R0 N B HZ A 3% 4,952 3,706
If US$ strengthens against RMB CEIM INL Hixi: (3%) (4,952) (3,706)
If US$ weakens against VND i) 55 70 188 R P T 2 AL 3% 1,558 1,215
If US$ strengthens against VND v 3 70 188 R 7 FHE (3%) (1,558) (1,215)
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BF A% R & M

Year ended 31 December 2017 #E R —LE T+ H =2+ —HILFE

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 HEEREBERES S REE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(c)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (c) HSERBK(E)

Appreciation/ Increase/

(depreciation) (decrease) Increase/
in RMB in profit (decrease)
or VND before tax in equity

N1 Wik B i ¥ A B2

FHE, (B2 1) i, (W) #im,” (HA)

US$’000 US$’000

E S ion Fx T

Year ended 31 December 2016 REZE—-AHTZA
Z=+—HILFE
If US$ weakens against RMB fisETeme \ R 3% 5,899 4,424
If US$ strengthens against RMB f 30\ R THE (3%) (5,899) (4,424)
If US$ weakens against VND lESN oy N g A N 3% 454 354
If US$ strengthens against VND i 9 705 8 O T (3%) (454) (354)
(d) Liquidity risk d) RBESLER

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between A AR [ 1) H T 928 A R AR A Y
funding continuity and flexibility through the use of FH AR > M35 4 A A9 B O itk 2 T
various types of borrowings. H - 1 o
The Group monitors current and expected liquidity AREEERBNEXENZRBES T
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient KUAHER A Fr R A BL &R R BT
reserves of cash and bank facilities to meet its liquidity BUBRNERDESFK -
requirements.
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b B A R 2 A
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B % ) & Mt &
Year ended 31 December 2017 E _F—LHEF+_H=+—HILFEE
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BIHEBEBEESRBCK (E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(d)  Liquidity risk (continued) (d RBESEAMR(F)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities TREERBREHARZBHA > A4E
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the AR 38 A 00 A T B O A B S A
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:
At 31 December 2017 RoZ2—t#+"H=+—H
Within
1 year or
on demand 1to5 years  Over 5 years Total
TR K
HR—4 —Eh4 A ikl
US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$’°000

#0178 #7178 #7178 #0170

Trade and bills payables FEAS B 5 Mk B i 462,834 - - 462,834
Other payables and accruals Hoft e AR SR R T AR 314,246 - - 314,246
Bank borrowings RATHE 697,749 826,283 10,182 1,534,214
Corporate bond TEEH - 153,689 - 153,689
Estimated interests on bank At AT A 5RA B

borrowings 51,089 97,709 4,018 152,816
Estimated interests on corporate bond  fi gt EEHH B 5,671 16,746 - 22,417

Guarantee issued in respect of certain BAHLEZFEF 2 & TE
indebtedness of independent third BARBEZ AR (M 7E39)
party customers (note 39) 23,537 - - 23,537

1,555,126 1,094,427 14,200 2,663,753
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Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

A

44 BB EE T & R BUR (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) (d) RBESZRAMR(F)
At 31 December 2016 R-F—ANE+_A=Z+—H
Within
1 year or
on demand 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
RERH
H—4 —EhAE AR LA Ek
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$°000
Frtr Frtr FL T FrL T
Trade and bills payables JEAT B 5 Rk R 5 4 340,609 - - 340,609
Other payables and accruals Kb kIR E R 248,836 - - 248,836
Bank borrowings BATHE K 376,093 886,124 18,009 1,280,226
Corporate bond REESH - 143,988 - 143,988
Estimated interests on bank hFHRAT i 3R A B
borrowings 25,846 06,897 3,213 95,956
Estimated interests on corporate bond i 5t 4t % & % F B 5,564 21,002 - 26,566
Guarantee issued in respect of certain BB IEZF R F 2% T4
indebtedness of independent third BRI (M 7E39)
party customers (note 39) 30,900 - - 30,900
1,022,978 1,188,011 21,222 2,167,081
Capital management (e) ERER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital AREFESHERNETEA M BREAR

management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2017 R E_F—tHE+_H=+—HILFE

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 HEEREES & REE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
() Capital management (continued) (e) EXEHE(E)
The Group monitors its capital structure using a A4 [ A P SOE B S b R B AR
number of financial ratios. A key ratio is the net debt ZAKE o Hop—IE B L A
to equity ratio, which is total bank borrowings and i P B > B SRAT i sk I A S AR 25 AR A
corporate bond less cash and deposits divided by total TRBL B B A7 AR AR B DARE 25 HA A o A
equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the net debt ] 2 SR T A R R AR L R
to equity ratio at reasonable level. Capital represents PR c BARTIW S EARAFHER
the equity attributable to owners of the Company. The ANZHRERR - IR Z B EBRELR
net debt to equity ratios as at the end of the reporting RWTF -
periods were as follows:
2017 2016
—F—LH RN
Note US$’000 US$’000
Kt # Tt Fx T
Total bank borrowings and corporate ATIE R XA AN
bond o) 31, 32 1,687,032 1,423,612
Less: Pledged deposits W CHGER 28 (24,762) (41,005)
Time deposits with maturity over B H B =z
three months SE AR 28 (15,305) (151,112)
Cash and cash equivalents BERkB&FEY 28 (286,807) (268,904)
Net debt P 1,360,158 962,591
Total equity RE 25 AE 3R 1,515,364 1,418,748
Net debt to equity ratio FREBRESS LR 0.90 0.68
) Agricultural activities () BETH
The Group is exposed to risks arising from A 4 [ i S o B ST A SRR A -

environmental changes, climatic changes, outbreak of

diseases, regulatory changes, etc..

The Group’s geographic spread of farms allows a
high degree of mitigation against adverse climatic
conditions. The Group has appropriate environmental
policies and procedures in place to comply with
environmental and other laws. The Group monitors
the health of its livestock on a regular basis and has
procedures in place to minimise and manage risk

exposure to diseases.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho® B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2017 B E _F—tHE+_H=+—HILEE

45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45 ZA& 2 8B RxE
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
SR CRAE
US$’000 US$’000
o Fi FILFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik W By & A
Property, plant and equipment L E Y & 121 171
Investments in subsidiaries T A w B E 1,822,334 1,822,334
Due from subsidiaries JRE WAL B e 2 ] sk 3,657 65,043
Total non-current assets 48 Ik B 1,826,112 1,887,548
CURRENT ASSETS WEE E
Due from subsidiaries JRE WA o i A ] sk I 385,970 391,357
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEATHR SR ~ 34 B il B ISR 2k 425 357
Cash and cash equivalents BR4Ee B &%EY 9,746 12,107
Total current assets M E 396,141 403,821
CURRENT LIABILITIES b IR ER
Other payables and accruals Al JE A R T R TR B 2,141 2,323
Bank borrowings SRATAE K 44,627 -
Total current liabilities A B £ 46,768 2,323
NET CURRENT ASSETS HmEEE 349,373 401,498
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BB B B £ 1
LIABILITIES 2,175,485 2,289,046
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017 #E _F—tHFE+_H=+—HILEE

45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45 ZXARBEBARREK (B)
THE COMPANY (continued)
2017 2016
—E—LE TR ANE
US$’°000 US$’000
ES/egn FEL T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES IR B £
Bank borrowings AT K 550,395 593,213
Other non-current liabilities HAbIEFR G = 685 719
Total non-current liabilities H8Jk i B A 551,080 593,932
NET ASSETS BT 1,624,405 1,695,114
EQUITY 25
Issued capital AT IR A 253,329 253,329
Reserves (note) ol (B 5E) 1,348,195 1,389,485
Proposed final dividend HE AW A 22,881 52,300
TOTAL EQUITY HE i K2R 1,624,405 1,695,114
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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% B B &R A

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZF—LHE+_H=+—HILEE

45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45
THE COMPANY (continued)

B

AAF BT R (R

Note: M Et -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RAFZHERENT -
Share
premium  Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
Btk  EARMKEKE  RAOEAHE ik
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’°000
At E e E b B an
At 1 January 2016 A F—N
—H—H 10,740 1,272,669 227,324 1,510,733
Profit for the year and total AR 3 ) e 4 9 2
comprehensive income for the W 25 A AR
year - - 9,502 9,502
2016 interim dividend ZEAEP RIS 13 - (78,450) - (78,450)
2016 final dividend proposed TR NFERHEARM
B8 13 - (52,300) - (52,300)
At 31 December 2016 and R_F—A%ETZAH
1 January 2017 Z=F—HR-Z
—ti4—H—H 10,740 1,141,919 236,826 1,389,485
Loss for the year and total A AR A B AR N 2
comprehensive expense for e 4 4 %
the year - - (18,409) (18,409)
2017 final dividend proposed ~ —ZF—-LAFERHERW
JBe B 13 - (22,881) - (22,881)
At 31 December 2017 w_Z—LETZH
=+—H 10,740 1,119,038 218,417 1,348,195
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